
 
 
 
 
 

Pride ~ Progress ~ Possibilities 

 

Riverside Municipal Building 
5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100 

Riverside, Ohio 45431 
  

 
March 2, 2023 

 
 

Council Meeting 
 

6:00 P.M. 
 

 
 

City Council 
 

PETER J. WILLIAMS, MAYOR 
  

MIKE DENNING  
APRIL FRANKLIN 

BRENDA FRY 
ZACHARY JOSEPH 

SARA LOMMATZSCH 
JESSE MAXFIELD 

 
 

Josh Rauch, City Manager 
 

Katie Lewallen, Clerk of Council 



January
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

February
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28

March
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

April
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

May
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

June
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

July
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

August
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

September
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

October
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

November
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

December
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

Calendar for year 2023 (United States)

Jan 1
Jan 2
Jan 16
Feb 20
May 29

Jun 19
Jul 4
Sep 4
Oct 9
Nov 10

Nov 11
Nov 23
Dec 25

New Year's Day
'New Year's Day' day off
Martin Luther King Jr. Day
Presidents' Day
Memorial Day

Juneteenth
Independence Day
Labor Day
Columbus Day
'Veterans Day' day off

Veterans Day
Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day

Council meetings in aubergine. Work sessions in pale yellow. 

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Underline

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight

clerk
Highlight



 
 

AGENDA 



Please place all cell phones in silent mode before the meeting begins. 
 

 
If you need special accommodations to attend this meeting, 

please notify the City of Riverside at least 72 hours in advance by calling 937.233.1801. 
 
 

 

RIVERSIDE CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
1) CALL TO ORDER 

2) ROLL CALL 

3) EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 

4) ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA 

5) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

6) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 

7) PRESENTATION – RTA 

8) MINUTES – Approval of minutes from the February 9, 2023, council work 
session, and the February 16, 2023, council business meeting. 

9) ACCEPTANCE OF CITIZEN PETITIONS  

10) DEPARTMENT UPDATES: 

A) Finance Department  

B) Administration Department 

C) Community Development Department 

D) City Manager Report 

11) PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 

12) NEW BUSINESS 

            A) ORDINANCES 

Riverside Administrative Offices 
5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100 
Riverside, Ohio 45431 
 

Thursday, March 2, 2023 
Business Meeting 6:00 P.M. 

 
 

 



 
 

I) Ordinance No. 23-O-820 – An ordinance amending Section 351.03 
Prohibited Standing or Parking Places of the Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) of the City of Riverside, Ohio. (1st reading) 

II) Ordinance No. 23-O-821 – An ordinance amending Chapter131 
Public Health and Safety Commission of the City of Riverside, 
Ohio. (1st reading) 

 
B) RESOLUTIONS 

 
I) Resolution No. 23-R-2828 – A resolution recognizing 

Fisher/Nightingale House, Inc. as a function that promotes the 
public health, general welfare, and contentment of the citizens of 
the City of Riverside.  

II) Resolution No. 23-R-2829 – A resolution appointing 
representatives to the Ohio Benefits Cooperative Council. 

III) Resolution No. 23-R-2830 – A resolution authorizing the city 
manager to enter into an agreement with McGohan Brabender 
for Insurance Brokerage and Consulting Services.  

IV) Resolution No. 23-R-2831 – A resolution authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into a revised professional service agreement 
with ‘Projects West, Inc.’ an Ohio for profit corporation, DBA 
Downing Community Advisors (DCA), for the purpose of including 
the conditions of a grant award.  

V) Resolution No. 23-R-2832 – A resolution adopting a strategic plan 
for the City of Riverside.  

13) PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

14) COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

15) ADJOURNMENT 



 
 

MINUTES 



 
 

Thursday, January 12, 2023 

Page 1 of 6 
 

CALL TO ORDER: Deputy Mayor Lommatzsch called the Riverside, Ohio City Council 
Work Session to order at 6:00 pm at the Riverside Administrative Offices located at 5200 
Springfield Street, Suite 100, Riverside, Ohio, 45431. 
    
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Deputy Mayor Lommatzsch led the pledge of allegiance.  
 
ROLL CALL:  Council attendance was as follows: Mr. Denning, present; Mrs. Franklin, 
present; Ms. Fry, present; Mr. Joseph, present; Ms. Lommatzsch, present; Mr. Maxfield, 
present; and Mayor Williams, absent. 
 
Staff present was as follows: Josh Rauch, City Manager; Chris Lohr, Assistant City 
Manager; Kathy Bartlett, Public Service Director; and Katie Lewallen, Clerk of Council.  
   
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS:  Mr. Denning moved, seconded by Mr. Joseph, to excuse 
Mayor Williams. All were in favor. Motion carried.  
  
ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA: No changes were made to the agenda. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mr. Joseph moved, seconded by Mr. Maxfield, to approve the 
agenda as presented. All were favor. Motion carried.  
 
WORK SESSION ITEMS:  
 
 I. Ordinance: Parking in front of mailboxes – Mr. Rauch stated there were some 
complaints previously regarding parking in the Matt Way area, specifically, where 
parking has been in front of mailboxes and mail not being delivered. Chief Robinson 
stated the ORC Section 4511.68 regarding parking prohibition mirrors exactly what the 
City of Riverside has; however, there is no law against parking in front of a mailbox at a 
state level. Most states do not have a law regarding this as they rely on local 
municipalities to handle this.  He stated the United States Post Office does have a 15’ 
policy regarding distance between vehicles and mailboxes. He spoke with two residents 
in the area that had similar parking in front of their residents, roughly 8’ – 10’, to see if 
they had problems getting their mail. Both indicated they did receive their mail. 
Discussion was had on the distances between aprons in the area. He added that 
someone was having work done with a contractor and it prohibited that resident from 
getting mail for a week and a half. They received a call about that, but informed the 
resident there is not a law. He proposed legislation that would allow them to move a 
car. They aren’t looking to give citations but want to be able to have the legislation that 
requires them to move. He stated 10’ on either side of the mailbox would be sufficient. 
He suggested a time frame on enforcing the law as well such as 8 am – 5 pm.  
 
Mr. Maxfield stated that was his neighborhood and that not all postal workers exhibit 
the same behavior as one is strict and will not deliver if a mailbox is blocked, but one will 



 
 

Thursday, January 12, 2023 

Page 2 of 6 
 

continually deliver. He stated that parking is tight, and they have prohibited parking on 
one side of the street even though many don’t follow that. He feels they do need to do 
something about the mailboxes. Ms. Fry asked how the enforcement would play out. 
She stated an easy way would be that another person cannot park in front of a house, 
but that a resident can park in front of their own. Mrs. Franklin asked if they looked at 
other cities. Chief Robinson stated there are other cities that have this code. Deputy 
Mayor Lommatzsch asked if there is legislation regarding fire hydrants as people park 
beside hydrants. Chief Robinson replied there is; it is in the code already. Mrs. Robinson 
stated they can add this, but there is other code that prohibits parking, and they are not 
being cited. She asked if it will take priority because it is new. Chief Robinson stated he 
didn’t think so. Sometimes things do get overlooked; officers are busy with other things. 
They do need to enforce it, and they do plan to do it. Discussion continued on legislation 
and it continuing through to future police officers to use as a tool. Mr. Maxfield stated 
it will overall help the postal workers. Chief Robinson stated they can decide on 10’ and 
the postal workers can still not deliver. Mr. Denning replied that would be up to them, 
but the city is trying. If there is an issue and a complaint, they can go out and say 
something to get a person to move. He agreed with an 8 am – 5 pm time. Discussion was 
held on mail running later than that. Mr. Rauch stated they can put something together 
and put it in front of council to review. 
 
Mr. Joseph stated he would like an overall parking overhaul for the city and cited some 
issues in his neighborhood. Mr. Maxfield stated that he already has no parking in his 
neighborhood; it is impossible to enforce. There is a lot going on in the city and the signs 
are a waste of money as they aren’t obeyed. It is hard to enforce. Mr. Rauch stated that 
they are driving to a place where they can address infrastructure. That will be a natural 
pivot point to address the parking concerns. There will be a number of things that need 
to adjust in the right-of-way. They will end up tackling it in the process. He will get with 
the chief and get an ordinance put together that will include Ms. Fry’s suggestion.  
 
 II. Strategic Plan Update – Mr. Rauch stated they did the Strategic Planning 
process with partner’s at WBI, which resulted in their workshop final report. Council 
identified the main areas of focus for the community: governance, infrastructure, public 
safety, and economic development. The next phase is implementing the plan and how 
they will do that. He created a spreadsheet on the priority areas, the main categories of 
the areas, the project, the task at hand, the responsible parties, and a target 
accomplishment date. This implementation plan is a living document and has to be able 
to adapt. He will send out the sheet to council and requested feedback. He added they 
do not want to get too specific of an implementation plan. They need something 
focused on what the priorities of the community are. He plans to revisit in March 
bringing the implementation plan with council comments and have them adopt that.  
 
Power went out due to windstorm at approximately 6:21 pm; system restored at 6:38 pm.  
 



 
 

Thursday, January 12, 2023 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 III. Health & Safety Commission – Mr. Rauch stated that this commission had 
been paused, and he is now ready to get it moving forward with the strategic plan. He 
suggested that a council member be appointed as an ex-officio member as a council 
voice will help to bring things to the table. This person could also be a part of shaping 
the mission of the role of the group in the community. He stated he will bring it before 
them in the form of an ordinance in the near future.  
 
 IV. Land Use Plan Update - Mr. Rauch stated that a first draft has been received 
and MKSK is asking for comments in the next two weeks. He plans to give it to the 
planning commission, the governance committee, and council for their review. Any 
comments need to be submitted back to staff, and once it is finalized, he will bring forth 
a resolution of adoption to council in May. Ms. Fry asked what the resolution of adoption 
will do. Mr. Rauch replied that it will move them from a 2005 plan to a new plan. This 
also creates a first step to updating the zoning code. It will make it official. He added 
that he will send the first draft to council for their review.  
 
 V. Engineering Services RFQ Update – Ms. Bartlett stated that they issued an 
RFQ for a new engineering firm. Choice One has been the firm for the past seven years, 
a five year contract with an additional two years allowed. The contract expires in April. 
She stated they received four proposals: Crawford, Murphy, and Tilley (CMT); Choice 
One Engineering; Kleingers; and Burgess & Niple. She reviewed the scoring criteria and 
added that they followed the ODOT/Federal Highway selection process as that allows 
them to get federal money without going out for federal qualified firms. CMT scored the 
highest and will have a five year contract with a two year option to renew. Deputy Mayor 
Lommatzsch asked if Choice One will continue in the contracts they are in. Ms. Bartlett 
stated that they will finish the contracts they are currently in as they know all the details. 
She added that scores were very close, especially among the top three. They looked at 
the project manager and gave the most points that way. She stated that she, Mr. Rauch, 
and Ms. Holt all thought that CMT was best for the city. She added that the 2023 budget 
includes $50,000 for internal engineering and covers basic questions/issues that come 
up over the course of the year with some minor improvements. This year, they will get 
assistance with the signal/lighting maintenance contract and damaged guardrail and 
fence contract. She added that this does not cover any new projects; those would 
require a supplemental to this year’s budget, if and when needed. She stated that CMT 
is the engineer for the City of Trotwood and the City of Carlisle and has contracts with 
ODOT District Seven and District Eight. Mr. Joseph asked if cost was taken into 
consideration. Ms. Bartlett stated that cannot be used as a selection factor in federal 
dollars. They did ask for their hourly rates to know what they were getting into. Mr. 
Rauch stated they are a bit more expensive, but the main thing they look into is what 
they put in the budget. The $50,000 is what they have set aside to do this kind of work. 
If they need to adjust, they will develop some recommendations. A resolution will be 
forthcoming to council. 
 



 
 

Thursday, January 12, 2023 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 VI. Aggregation Update – Mr. Lohr stated he had additional information that he 
hopes will help council to come to a decision to move forward. Representatives from 
SOPEC, Philip Leppla and Luke Sulfridge, were in attendance for questions. He stated 
that since last discussed, SOPEC was approved by PUCO for the Natural Gas Aggregation 
Program, so they can start that program. He found out that the City of Fairborn did go 
with MVCC to go with them for electric aggregation.  
 
Mr. Lohr stated that they compared the size of aggregation groups last time. SOPEC has 
since provided numbers for that. MVCC /Palmer has a potential of 860 GWh annually, 4.2 
BCF yearly. This is the interested group; they do not have a full idea of what it will actually 
be. The first bid process is in April, and they are not sure what jurisdictions they would 
join with in that bid process. With SOPEC, when they include their actual number and 
the additional communicates that are interested, the total is around 1,000 GWh annually, 
Now, they have a 600 GWh pool of jurisdictions. It would add an additional 400 GWh. 
The gas program is still forming. Mr. Lohr stated that SOPEC also provided some 
clarification and comparisons with the processes of locking in a contract for electric or 
natural gas. With MVCC the plan is to put out for bids in April with prices in effect for 
August. With SOPEC, if council passes legislation to join, they would be able to start 
electric sooner as they have an agreement with AEP energy already as their sole 
aggregator. They will look at rates on a daily basis to see where best to lock it in. He 
added that SOPEC offers legal and grant assistance for energy assisting ability issues. IF 
they wanted to get into a sustainability project and to apply for a grant, SOPEC would 
provide them with assistance. MVCC does not offer this. He stated with SOPEC recently 
being approved by PUCO and other listed reasons he would recommend going with 
SOPEC as their electric and gas aggregator.  
 
Mrs. Franklin asked how billing would work with AES and how does the brown energy 
option work. Mr. Sulfridge stated that they have RECs (Real Energy Certificates) that 
represents the green value, so when power is produced that is one component of what 
is being produced. It is an $0.83 difference per month. If someone decides not to 
participate in the green program in Dayton, then it is backed out of their rate. Very few 
residents take advantage of that. It is something that a person can choose to do. He 
added that Dayton is actually saving. From June 2022 – June 2023, they are saving about 
$300/household. AES is at 10.9 while SOPEC is at roughly 7.4 - 7.5. 
 
Mr. Maxfield asked about the grants they offer. Mr. Sulfridge stated that their budget 
includes grants and is a component for communities that want to participate. They set 
a base line number and they back it up on a per meter basis. Communities get that on a 
per meter basis. From that it is then approved by the board on a project basis and 
received by the council on the other side. As long as it is part of the program design that 
is how it works. He added that 70 percent of the grants go back into the community, 20 
percent go to a revolving loan fund that is budgeted and any community can draw down 
on that for a short term loan that will be reimbursed fairly quickly or on an energy project 



 
 

Thursday, January 12, 2023 

Page 5 of 6 
 

like an LED light conversion that may take a year-and-a-half to pay for itself. The last 10 
percent goes towards regional projects that would be broad-cutting projects like 
installing regional car chargers. He added that the loans are not competitive; it is 
allocated and divided up per community. If the funds aren’t used in a given year, it rolls 
into the next year. It is set aside for a given community.  
 
Mr. Joseph asked if the larger pool of customers they have will give them more 
bargaining power to negotiate lower rates. Mr. Sulfridge said with bargaining power 
there are a couple of pieces to that. There are lower rates, but timing the market is way 
more significant, especially now since it is a volatile commodity. Watching the market 
and not picking an arbitrary date has been key to their savings. They are growing and 
are currently talking to a dozen communities that are having active conversations for 
the fall ballot. It will continue to grow especially since rates are going up across the 
board.  AES went from 4.8 to 10.9.  
 
Discussion was held on SOPEC being the right aggregator to join. Mr. Lohr stated that 
MVCC is pulling in people regionally, but SOPEC is reaching across the state. Mr. Rauch 
stated they will bring this forward to council in March. If there is a change in the market, 
they will come back with an update.  
 
Mr. Joseph asked what the process to switch from an existing aggregate. Mr. Sulfridge 
stated they will need to look at their early termination fees to see what make sense. 
They do have a 1-800 number where people can asked to be switched and enrolled in 
the program. AES will still do the billing, but AEP Energy is who they are procuring and 
will make the switch. Mr. Joseph stated a big communication blast will probably be in 
order with all the questions that will be asked. Mr. Sulfridge stated a resident who has 
previously shopped will not be included in the aggregation list, and some residents are 
excluded due to program requirements. Once switched it happens as quick as the next 
meter read.  
 
Discussion was held on how information gets to the public and who handles those costs. 
Mr. Sulfridge stated they will handle all of that information as they work with attorneys 
at AEP Energy. The letter will come to the city beforehand, then to PUCO for their 
review. It will then be mailed out to the public. It will provide them with 21 days to say if 
they do not want to be in the program. There is no early termination fee with SOPEC. 
The only delay is how long it takes to synchronize them with their program. Mr. Rauch 
stated as with anything it is a market and things can change, but they feel this will be 
beneficial for the city and its residents and give the best opportunity to get the most 
competitive pricing. Mr. Maxfield asked when they would qualify for the grants. Mr. 
Sulfridge replied it would be this calendar year.  
 
CITY MANAGER UPDATES: Mr. Rauch stated he will work with Ms. Bartlett to get the 
purchase order through for lighting on Beatrice Drive. Those lights will fall into one 



 
 

Thursday, January 12, 2023 

Page 6 of 6 
 

district and the lights will be assessed just like all the other streetlights in that district. 
He stated the wait time on new medics is nearly two years, and the oldest medic they 
need to replace is 12 years old. The fire department has a reserve balance. They would 
like to earmark some of those funds and set it aside to hold in reserve until they receive 
the vehicle in two years. He stated at the March 2, 2023, meeting there will be legislation 
for the OBC staff appointments, and a resolution with JobsOhio that Ms. Minnich helped 
obtain to pay $25,000 of the work the Downing group is doing to position the buildings. 
He added they do have some contractual cleanup with McGowan Brabender, who 
helped them with the OBC process.  
 
He quickly presented the Land Use Plan as power went out when the subject was 
discussed. He showed the 95 page document and highlighted a number of areas where 
the consultant was able to summarize information and make it easily presentable. He 
stated that the big maps that were at the community meetings are in the presentation 
as well. All culminating in that map shows the focus areas of development. The circle 
area indicates a downtown area, and then there are the back sections of the report that 
do a deep dive into each area. It is a living document. They are working on the 
deliverable element. He added that they asked them to expand on some sections.  
 
COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS: Ms. Fry stated the next blood drive is on February 27, 
2023. Anyone who wishes to signup can go to www.donortime.com and look under 
Riverside. The time will be 3:00 – 7:00 pm. 
 
Mr. Maxfield stated on February 18, 2023,will be the Mad River Youth Fish Fry. It will be 
$15/person presale and $20 at the door. It is all you can eat with adult beverages or soda. 
Tickets will be sold at the football field next week. It will be held at Advance Business 
Properties at 1675 Woodman from 6:00 – 11:00 pm. He added it is a very well attended 
event. Deputy Mayor Lommatzsch encouraged residents to support the youth as this 
helps to pay for equipment and referees and such.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Maxfield moved, seconded by Mr. Joseph, to adjourn. All were in 
favor. The meeting adjourned at 7:12 pm. 
 
 
 
_________________________________      ____________________________________ 
Peter J. Williams, Mayor                               Clerk of Council 

http://www.donortime.com/


 
 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 

Page 1 of 13 
 

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Williams called the Riverside, Ohio, City Council Meeting to 
order at 6:00 p.m. at the Riverside Administrative Offices located at 5200 Springfield 
Street, Suite 100, Riverside, Ohio, 45431. 
    
ROLL CALL:  Council attendance was as follows: Mr. Denning, present; Mrs. Franklin, 
present; Ms. Fry, present; Mr. Joseph, present; Ms. Lommatzsch, present; Mr. Maxfield, 
present; and Mayor Williams, present. 
 
Staff present was as follows: Josh Rauch, City Manager; Frank Robinson, Police Chief; 
Dan Stitzel, Fire Chief; Tom Garrett, Finance Director; Kathy Bartlett, Public Service 
Director; Nia Holt, Zoning Administrator; Jon Freeman, Legal Representative; and Katie 
Lewallen, Clerk of Council.   
   
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS:  No members were absent. 
  
ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA: No changes were made to the agenda. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Mr. Denning moved, seconded by Mr. Joseph, to approve the 
agenda. All were in favor. Motion carried.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE: Mayor Williams led the pledge of 
allegiance.  
 
MINUTES: Deputy Mayor Lommatzsch moved, seconded by Mr. Maxfield, to approve 
the minutes of the February 2, 2023, council business meeting. All were in favor. Motion 
carried. 
 
WRITTEN CITIZEN PETITIONS: Mayor Williams stated a number of forms have been 
turned in for speaking. Any citizen wishing to speak should fill out a petition form and 
turn it in to the clerk.  
 
DEPARTMENT UPDATES:  
     
     A) Police Department – Chief Robinson stated Major Jackson is still off work and 
hopes to get a doctor release soon to come back to work. Two officers are still in the 
field training program and are doing well. There is a current opening for an officer.  They 
will begin the testing process shortly to fill that position. He stated they are waiting on 
the funding to get the flock cameras before they get aggressive about what they plan 
to do. They are expecting the check next week, which should be $82,000. They are still 
working with Enterprise for cruisers. They are waiting on paperwork from PNR; looking 
to see if they get a better price or better product or both. He stated that St. Helen will 
have their festival this year on June 9, 10, and 11, 2023. 
 



 
 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 

Page 2 of 13 
 

Mr. Maxfield asked how applications have been for the new officer position. Chief 
Robinson stated that they haven’t been too bad but not great as there are a lot of 
people hiring. They have 12 – 16 applicants, which is what they had last time.  
 
     B) Fire Department – Chief Stitzel stated three new full-time firefighters are on staff 
with two already starting and one starting next week. A full-time firefighter position will 
be coming open at the end of March. There are three part-time firefighters starting over 
the next couple of weeks as the last one went through physical agility and drug screen. 
They are keeping up on the new software. They will have a conclusion soon on all of 
that. He stated they will be bringing forward a resolution for another medic unit. The 
time from order to delivery is predicted to be two years. They want to secure what is 
out there now as the cost is going up rapidly, and they want to get in queue for another 
medic. They are unsure how long the three older medics will be viable, so they want to 
get something on order. Before all the issues, there was only a six-month wait, now it is 
two years. The estimate is $350,000 for the same type of medic that they ordered, which 
should be in the city by July 2023. Once they get the next one, he stated they should be 
sitting pretty good for the long term.  
 
Mr. Maxfield asked if the applicant situation for fire is the same as police. Chief Stitzel 
replied it is horrible. They are not getting many applicants. For the three they just filled, 
they got seven applicants, scheduled five for an interview and one didn’t show, so they 
interviewed four. Then, they filled three. There is one applicant on file for the next 
position. They are trying to recruit from different areas. 
 
     C) Public Service Department – Ms. Bartlett stated they have ordered the new pickup 
through the Enterprise lease program and should receive it within the next two to three 
weeks after it gets lights and logo. Next year, they will replace two of the 2016 pickups 
through the lease program. She stated they have finalized 2023 work plan and are 
working from that. They are gearing up to line a culvert under Penn Avenue in March. 
She attended a webinar about strategies to improve aging infrastructure and spur 
economic development; this is a lot like the plan for the Woodman corridor making it an 
area that slows people down and utilizes businesses along the corridor rather than 
making it a throughway. Kevin Miller attended the pre-construction meeting for the 
Woodman/35 interchange, yesterday. Eagle Bridge is the contractor on the project, and 
they plan to start next week on the bike path detour. The Community Park play structure 
that was expected in the summer of 2022, is scheduled for delivery February 27, 2023. 
This was a supply chain issue. The Base reached out to her about attending a webinar 
on funding for infrastructure around the base. She attended the seminar, today, and 
stated it may be another funding source for Woodman Drive. 
  
     D) City Manager Report – Mr. Rauch stated the SSI implementation continues to be 
on pace. They will be turning their attention to payroll, time entry, and some of the other 
modules they have embarked upon. He is pleased on their ability to report on and 



 
 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 

Page 3 of 13 
 

understand where the finances are at any given time. He stated the Kroger project is 
nearing completion with a March 10, 2023, opening. There are a couple of inspections 
and minor checklist things that have to occur, but they are optimistic on that date. He 
stated that the planning commission met last night, and they discussed how to best fit 
in the urban agriculture with the work they are currently doing. They will continue the 
work they are doing on the updates to the UDO and not lose that momentum with the 
idea of wrapping it up in April or May. They will then pivot to the urban agriculture with 
the planning commission. It will allow staff to do more research about what neighbors 
do, review the last ordinance, and then bring it to the commission sometime in May. 
 
Mr. Joseph asked if the plan with Enterprise and vehicle replacement, will they surplus 
the existing cars they have. Mr. Rauch replied they will. There is a resolution on the 
agenda for surplus this evening and that has one vehicle on it. Discussion continued on 
vehicles and what they could get for them.  
     
PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS: Mayor Williams stated that a number of forms 
have been turned in. He stated many people want to speak on an agenda item, and that 
ordinance also has a public hearing. He asked Mr. Freeman when the best time would 
be to speak. Mr. Freeman stated anyone wishing to speak on a particular piece of 
legislation should save their comments for that as that is where the record is created for 
it. However, if they wish to make general comments about multiple things, which would 
include the legislation, then they are free to do that beforehand. Mayor Williams 
thanked Mr. Freeman for pointing that out and stated the discussion on the ordinance 
should be limited to the zoning aspect as that is what they are considering. He stated 
there is opportunity to speak both times. He asked when a person is called up to state 
their name, address, and to keep comments to three minutes.  
 
Mr. Youssef Elzein, 4906 Amberwood Drive, Dayton, Ohio, stated that two weeks ago 
after watching the video of him speaking, he realized he did not finish his thoughts 
related to the planning board and not necessarily what council is taking actions on. He 
stated the practice that he had when the planning board was hearing the PUD or 
rezoning was different. He wants to bring it to their attention is to take control of that. 
He stated when he was part of the public hearings, the planning board allowed 
comments not related to rezoning. The planning board took comments that had nothing 
to do with his friend that he was helping. He asked that those comments made (by other 
speakers) be detracted from the meeting minutes. He stated that they refused to do 
that. He stated they asked him to speak during the public hearing to retract that officially 
as public information. The practice that he wanted to mention to them is the 
discrepancy between asking certain individuals that have concerns about the rezoning 
to speak about something else, and that exception should not be the norm. He stated 
that related to the PUD staff entertained questions from the council two weeks ago;  
they were eloquently responded to. He stated they are not talking about what kind of 
structure is going on the PUD; many of the people are talking about the density between 



 
 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 

Page 4 of 13 
 

a PUD and an R-3. He believes an R-3 is one structure per acre. This PUD allows close to 
five structures per acre. He stated they have no problem what kind of structure they are 
building; it is the density they are concerned about. He asked them to keep that in mind. 
He added that staff did a great job answering many questions, but they stopped short 
of telling them that about the density of the PUD versus the R-3. 
 
Mr. John Zeigler, 4238 Blue Rock Road, Riverside, Ohio, stated he very familiar with 
zoning and likes the traditional zoning as a PUD is a little more difficult to understand,  
and he is afraid that an incomplete PUD can happen where more is promised and they 
are unable to deliver on what they promise or sell to someone else before the property 
is finished. He is concerned about property in front of the Air Force Museum as everyone 
is wanting restaurants there. He knows it is coming up as it is for sale. He asked the 
Mayor if that kind of thing could happen. Mayor Williams stated he is happy to comment 
and would lean on the city manager and zoning administrator. He stated that he believes 
what he is describing would not exactly be a PUD. A PUD in the city’s zoning code would 
outline what a final development might look like not necessarily stating what specific 
establishment would go in certain places as they do not legislate those matters. They 
can legislate density; they can legislate setbacks. Mr. Rauch agreed that was correct.  He 
stated the PUD allows a developer to determine their own setbacks and density 
requirements and layout how they want to use a site. It is less prescriptive about specific 
industries and businesses. Ms. Holt stated there are safeguards in place should a project 
not move forward. They can come back to council and revert back to the original zoning, 
if needed. Mr. Zeigler stated he is familiar with other city’s zonings. Some have a PUD 
and call it something else. He thanked them for clearing that up. He stated they should 
really understand it all the way before they end up voting on it. He doesn’t know if there 
will end up being more PUDs. He knows it is a tool for them to use, but it seems like a 
lot of wiggle room. He stated he appreciates what council does.  
 
Mayor Williams stated they don’t typically have all the answers when asked, but when 
the first speaker asked about an R-3, he wanted to clarify that in one R-3 acre, they can 
fit as many as eight lots in the current zoning. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
     A. ORDINANCES 
 

I) Ordinance No. 23-O-818 – An ordinance by the City Council of the City of 
Riverside, Ohio approving a change in the district boundaries as shown 
on the zoning map of the City of Riverside, Ohio for the property located 
at 7544 Union Schoolhouse Road, Parcel ID No. I39300201 0053, from R-3 
Medium Density Residential District to PUD, Planned Unit Development 
District. (2nd reading and public hearing) 

 



 
 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 

Page 5 of 13 
 

Mr. Denning moved, seconded by Mr. Joseph, to approve the second reading of 
Ordinance No. 23-O-818. The clerk read the ordinance by title only. 
 
Mayor Williams opened the public hearing at 6:26 pm. He asked that speakers state their 
name and address for the record and to keep comments to three minutes. 
 
Mr. Robert Allen, 7544 Union Schoolhouse Road, Riverside, Ohio, stated he was in favor 
of the proposed rezoning of the property he and his wife own. He stated they are facing 
change and change is always threatening. Everyone has reservations about change 
regardless of what they are. He sympathizes with his opponents in this matter and with 
the council. He understands the concerns and the responsibility council has to make the 
decision. He hopes that he and his wife’s concerns are also understood. He stated that 
things are never as good or as bad as they are perceived to be. Things tend to get 
exaggerated a little bit, but change is inevitable. His property is what remains of a 126-
acre dairy farm that ceased operation in 1965 when the majority of the farm was sold 
for the development of Forest Ridge. Then came Cherry Creek in the 1980s with 
Wynwood in the 1990s. His property is surrounded by residential development. It is 
inconceivable to think the property will not be developed as it is a donut hole, an infill 
site. The most appropriate use of that property is residential. They aren’t proposing a 
public storage facility, a toxic waste disposal facility, or a new landfill for Montgomery 
County. They are proposing residential, which is the highest and best use of the 
property. He reviewed the criteria for highest and best use: physically possible, 
financially feasible, and maximally productive. He asked council to approve rezoning.  
 
Mr. Greg Thurman, 20 Village Square, Cincinnati, Ohio, stated that he is the applicant 
that has the property under contract. He stated that two weeks ago they had a chance 
to review the presentation of Redwood. He stated that if zoning is approved, they come 
forward with a preliminary plan or a final development plan to be approved, which goes 
through the same process as the rezoning. If the development plan is approved, there 
are about a dozen permits that have to be submitted: sewer, water, gas, electric, 
grading, storm sewers, streets, wetlands, streams, ADA compliance, and a few others. 
All of these have to be acquired before the project goes; it is part of the process. The 
first step is getting the zoning in place. He appreciates the of the current R-3 zoning of 
DPAs, dwelling units per acre. They will be down zoning for that at five and a half or so 
per acre in the current concept plan not yet submitted. The question came up on what 
happens when a project fails. He stated that Redwood has purchased two failed projects 
in the last nine years that were also single family home communities. One was from the 
recession, and the other was in Vandalia held by a bank from a developer that skipped 
town. They purchased the communities, rezoned it, replanned it, and they are now 
under construction. He stated between rezoning a broken project to what it was 
preciously or someone coming in and purchasing it and going through this same process 
again, the future can’t be predicted. Everyone has a right to try. They have a great track 



 
 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 

Page 6 of 13 
 

record with Redwood. People know what they are getting. They have 20 or so 
neighborhoods. He is available to answer any questions.  
 
 Mr. John Calligan, 4126 Loyola Chase Lane, Dayton, Ohio, stated that it was mentioned 
that eight houses could fit on one acre in current zoning and that is true, but if you put 
a street there, 60’ wide including curbs and sidewalks, then there would not be eight 
houses on an acre. He stated his biggest issue is the density of the project. It just doesn't 
fit the area. Most houses in the area have 25’ front yards; this new development will not. 
He took pictures of the development they have in Sugarcreek Township and submitted 
them to council. He reviewed the pictures with council on the size of the front yards. He 
stated that 25’ front yards is required by the zoning code. Mayor Williams clarified that 
he meant a 25’ front yard setback. Mr. Calligan replied that is what he means. He stated 
that development is approximately 15’. He stated the 90-unit apartment complex is not 
suitable for the area as they have hundreds of single family homes surrounding this. He 
stated it will be a high-density donut hole. 
 
Mrs. Kelly Bush, 7240 Union Schoolhouse Road, Dayton, Ohio, stated she emailed in 
signatures she received for a petition but she also had signatures that she walked to get. 
She turned in the signatures to the clerk. She stated that the Allen’s Farm is the only R-
3 in the area besides Valley View Plat, all the others surrounding are zoned R-2. She 
reviewed other areas as being R-2 and R-1. She stated she doesn’t understand the 
purpose of why they need a PUD. She stated that Mr. Allen said it will be redeveloped 
anyway so why not leave it alone and put homes in there and make it a nice 
neighborhood just like on Coury Lane, an R-2. She would like them to leave it alone or 
take it back, but not make it a PUD.  
 
Mr. Greg Bush, 7240 Union Schoolhouse Road, Dayton, Ohio, stated he read Ordinance 
Chapter 1119 about Planned Unit Developments. He asked if they have read and re-read 
what they have approved after sitting in the past meetings. He stated he found multiple 
discrepancies and supports against the PUD they are discussing: removal of mature 
trees, removing an active pond and stream, and effects of stormwater, lighting, traffic 
and noise. The proposed zoning change from an R-3 to a PUD will change the layout of 
how this community functions. He stated Mr. Allen said this property will be 
redeveloped one way or another; he does not doubt that. His is okay with development, 
but he is not okay with the greed and asphalting of a quiet region of their community. 
He suggested that the council go to one of the Redwood Developments; they should 
have done it already. They will see the crumbling streets in a new development; the dead 
trees throughout the development. He does not want that next to his home. The 
Redwood they toured had a vibrant retention pond, while another had a murky 
semblance of a retention area that will accommodate nothing but mosquitos in the 
summer. He stated he spoke to some residents of the communities when they were out 
walking, but not all were pleased with Redwood. He stated they saw a high rating video 
of Redwood at the last meeting, but if they speak to residents of Redwood not all are 



 
 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 

Page 7 of 13 
 

pleased. He stated that that Mr. Allen said his property was a donut hole. He differs 
because they share the largest border with his property, and they are not the 
development, not homes, they are a single family residence on the largest side of his 
property. The Allens have homes on two sides of their property, but the third side is his 
farm that abuts the Allens.  
 
Mr. Kenneth Jackson, 4157 Coury Lane, Riverside, Ohio, stated he has lived there for the 
last 30 years and has seen a lot of changes. He stated the new development according 
to council will make Riverside a better place to live, but some of them disagree. They 
think it is about political power and greed. They like where they live, and they hope it 
doesn’t change. They don’t have a problem with the farm being sold, but they want it 
done within the existing regulations, however, the politicians have agreed to rezone this 
property. This will generate more taxes for the city. He stated the politicians will then 
say to look at the great improvements they made to the city and to reelect them. He 
added the property owner and the developer need to make maximum money. The 
politicians, the landowners, and the developers come out as the winners. He stated the 
current residents are the losers. He urged council not to recommend the proposal to the 
city government. He added that the development does not fit into the surrounding 
residential properties. 
 
Ms. Carolyn Gretzinger, 3425 Surrey Ridge Way, Dayton, Ohio, stated she wanted to 
address the traffic issue they are considering coming from Redwood. She stated in 2020, 
they updated the average vehicles in American homes at 1.78, meaning a vast majority 
of American homes have at least two cars. According to the study of 90-units, they could 
add up to 160 vehicles based on the national averages of 1.78/home. It could be 180 or 
more as some homes has three cars. She stated Redwood is planning on a majority of 
their residents having two vehicles since they make two-car garages. She added that 
their independent study from Good Hue Consulting only considered the traffic from 
1,800’ north, east of Elmshaven Drive, which doesn’t consider anybody that is southwest 
of that. The intersection at Wynwood at Forest Ridge and Union Schoolhouse Road is a 
major intersection for the area, because it is the only entrance and exit to Wynwood. 
There are 336 homes in Wynwood, and based on the numbers that would put them at 
over 500 vehicles coming and going in the neighborhood. She stated the study by Good 
Hue says they are expecting the increase in traffic by Union Schoolhouse to be between 
50 – 60 cars at peak hours, which they defined as 7 – 9 am and 4 – 6 pm. Their 
neighborhoods have a lot of traffic going earlier in the morning and earlier in the 
afternoon as they have a lot of school buses and there are lots of kids in the single family 
residential homes. She stated she thinks they have grossly underestimated how much 
they think the traffic will increase. She stated she did not know if the City of Dayton or 
the City of Riverside take care of the traffic on Union Schoolhouse in front of Wynwood. 
The City of Dayton does have a sign there. She asked who would respond to the uptick 
in accidents at Forest Ridge and Union Schoolhouse Road. Mayor Williams stated that 
the road is in Riverside. She stated it was reasonable to expect there will be a huge 



 
 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 

Page 8 of 13 
 

uptick in traffic that is not being considered. She went on to say that Redwood’s 
estimate was closer to 30 – 40 cars. It was their consultant that said 50 – 60. 
 
Mr. Colton Trego, 4347 Union Schoolhouse Road, Dayton, Ohio, stated that at the last 
meeting it was asked if fire and emergency apparatus would be able to fit down those 
roads. He stated he made a public records request to the City of Fairborn regarding fire 
and EMS calls to the two Redwood neighborhoods in that city consisting of 248 
dwellings. In 2022, the City of Fairborn had a total call volume of 7,253 calls. Two EMS 
calls and six fire apparatus calls for the entire year were to those neighborhoods. As far 
as those developments go, they are relatively quiet. He stated he is a real estate agent 
for rural properties and confirmed that the highest and best use for that property is for 
this development as nobody will buy that in hopes of being a substantial farmer. He 
added that of the 18 acres there are maybe five that are tillable. He stated he is in 
support of this; and it is a good deal for the city. He stated there is no malice intended. 
The Allen’s should be rewarded for investing in this property.  
  
Mayor Williams invited Mr. John Zeigler back up as he indicated earlier he wished to 
speak both times. Mayor Williams added that anyone else who wishes to speak after Mr. 
Zeigler may come up to the microphone as the hearing will still be open until everyone 
has had an opportunity to speak.  
 
Mr. John Zeigler, 4238 Blue Rock Road, Riverside, Ohio, stated he has been trying to 
research the history of Riverside. He had provided them with information on the 
Underground Railroad in the city followed by the Erie Canal. He wanted to know if 
anyone has found out any further information on that. Mayor Williams replied that he 
did not think anyone was prepared to comment tonight on that specifically. Mr. Zeigler 
stated he didn’t know if any research was going on. Mayor Williams stated that he will 
ask Ms. Holt regarding one of the components of the staff report covers the historic 
relevance of the property. Ms. Holt stated it is not on the national register, but they will 
dig more into that should this move forward towards a final development plan. Mr. 
Zeigler stated that the second thing he wanted to ask about was the deed he submitted 
from 1813, and that everyone was able to get a copy of that. He wanted to know what 
they thought about that deed. Mr. Rauch stated it is not something they were not 
prepared to speak to and that they don’t have much say over the historical preservation 
as that is largely a function of the state historical preservation office. Mr. Zeigler asked 
if they were looking into this information. Mr. Rauch replied they are looking at it to the 
extent should the rezoning be approved, these things come up as part of a final site plan 
development. They are doing their due diligence. Mayor Williams stated there are a 
dozen different permits and agencies that will have to have a sign off on any final site 
plan and/or buildings that happen to go on the property. Ms. Holt added that should it 
move forward and in the process something of archeological significance is found then 
state organizations will step in. Mr. Zeigler stated he is worried about that they may be 
able to find something before it is torn down. Ms. Holt stated it is still private property 



 
 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 

Page 9 of 13 
 

as of now. Mr. Zeigler stated he heard the owners state that the house was from 1870, 
but the county has 1830, and the deed says 1813. He stated the farm is 1813, but maybe 
none of the other buildings are. He just wants to make sure everyone got to see the 
deed. He added that the history matters.  
 
Mayor Williams asked if anyone else wished to speak. Someone wanted to ask a 
question. Mayor Williams stated as mentioned before they may not have the answer 
right then. Mrs. Bush came to the microphone and stated the question may be more for 
Mr. Allen, but she wanted to know if it had ever been put up for public sale, if there was 
a chance to save that. Mayor Williams stated that it is private property and not 
something they would address and that she would need to ask him. Mrs. Bush stated 
that is why she said it is probably more a question for Mr. Allen. Mayor Williams stated 
he needs to be asked outside of the public meeting as a private citizen should not be put 
on the spot in a public meeting to answer that.  
 
No one else wished to comment. Mayor Williams closed the public hearing at 6:54 pm. 
 
Mr. Denning stated that he believes everyone on council received an email from Mr. 
David Lutzweit that he would read into the minutes: “Hello, I just wanted to write to let 
you know that a majority of citizens of Riverside approve on this project on Union 
Schoolhouse to be re-zoned.  There has been a lot of talk about history, well there is 
history all over Riverside, but not historical.  You will be hearing from the same people 
that spoke at the planning commission.  A majority that do not live in the city of 
Riverside.  They will talk about history, there is history on the land their house now sits 
on too.  The owners of this farm and previous owners watched as the farmland got 
houses built on it, while they remained.  Now it’s their turn and some are up in arms.  I 
am hoping you will look beyond the emotional talks, crying like what happened at the 
planning commission.  With the schools talking of putting a tax increase on the ballot 
for May, residents are going to be taxed to death.  So, we need these types of 
developments to bring in additional taxes coming in.  These roads as you know need 
done, but with all the taxing, we need to see that income is coming from other sources 
too or there is no way you will ever get a road levy passed.  So, we need these 
projects.  This being the first PUD build, we think it’s a great idea.  Also, that type of 
housing is great it is so close to WPAFB every gate you could get to in minutes, also it 
could be appealing to elderly wanting things done for them and being on one level.  So, 
all these Dayton residents are trying everything to stop this project, but that is not what 
the citizens want.  People should know when they move to a city there is growth.  I have 
woods behind my house that could be developed any day now. I know it, my parents 
knew it, so moving, thinking you’re going to have all this wooded area and farm forever 
is a foolish thought.  And they have the same excuse that you won't hear them say, they 
are for development, just not right there anywhere else is fine or we don't want 
rentals.  Truth is they just want it to stay as it is with nothing there but the farm.  I hope 
you as I said look beyond the drama and do what is best for the citizens of Riverside and 



 
 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 

Page 10 of 13 
 

want they want.  This has been the talk of my group Riverside Ohio Concerned Citizens. 
Respectfully, David Lutzweit.” Mr. Denning stated he took the time and put a lot of 
thought into that along with a lot of surveys on Facebook to see what folks in Riverside 
thought. He knows it may be his opinion, but he wanted it included that there are people 
in favor of this happening. 
 
Ms. Fry stated she wanted to address some of the comments regarding density and 
taxes. When she came on council in 2018, one of the first decisions she was asked to 
weigh in on was a road levy. She came into it thinking they have a need and have nothing 
paying for the roads to be repaired. She thought they would give the citizens 
information and surely they will get a road levy passed. They have tried three times now. 
The community elected not to pay for a residential paving program. As a result, they 
have no revenue source to pay for crumbling residential streets. One of the reasons 
given was that the cost per property owner was too high. Taking that under advisement, 
one of the very real ways to help alleviate that concern would be to increase density. 
She knows for the past several decades, suburbanization has led them to believe that it 
is fiscally possible to have wide expansive properties and streets and it is sustainable. It 
is not. They do not have a way to continue Forest Ridge like development in perpetuity. 
If anyone questions the validity of that, she askes that they look to the work of Charles 
Marone, who has done substantial research on this. It is a fiscal responsibility of 
Riverside to look favorable on more density in their development.  
 
Mrs. Franklin stated when she ran for her seat three years ago it was because she 
believed Riverside had potential. She thinks that Riverside has been neglected and has 
been looked over. She stated that she makes decisions for 25,000 people and not every 
single person will benefit and not every single person will be affected by a decision. She 
has to look at the overall picture of what it will do for the residents on the whole. She 
agreed with Ms. Fry and stated that research is correct. It is not just a problem in 
Riverside. City’s cannot afford the suburbs like they once could or rather they couldn’t, 
but now it is 50 years later, and costs are rising. They can’t afford that. She stated the 
City of Riverside is doing a comprehensive plan and had input from thousands of 
residents. One of the things weighed in on was residents wanting new housing. She 
acknowledged that not everyone wants to live in a dense area, but she stated many of 
her retired friends are looking at that because they don’t want the maintenance, they 
don’t want to have to take care of the property. The culture in the country is going that 
way. She believes this is a good opportunity for the city. She stated the median 
household income in Riverside is $48,000/year. She has heard tonight, and it sometimes 
frustrates her when she hears that someone of lower income may move into these units 
that means it will be bad or that it will bring crime. She added that everyone has a right 
to live in a community they like and appreciate. She thinks that when they say the term 
dense it is taken to mean low-income, poverty-type of houses with lots of crime; that is 
a misguided thought. She stated she does not feel anyone in this room would be happy 
if she told them what they can do with their property just as what the Allens are doing 



 
 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 

Page 11 of 13 
 

with their property. Mr. Allen owns the property and has the right to sell it to whoever 
he wants. It is already an R-3 and homes will go up there. The difference she sees is that 
they are looking at attached homes rather than single home units. She doesn’t think it 
is a bad thing. There are people that want to live in that home rather than have a yard. 
She can’t shame others for wanting something different than they want. 
 
Mr. Joseph stated that the rent for that on the high end is $2,300/month. When looking 
at how much to afford on housing, that is not a lower income tax bracket. They sat 
through work sessions with residences for the strategic plan and heard how they 
needed senior housing, homes for people who don’t want to maintain a property; they 
don’t want steps. This provides a large amount of the housing that will fit the needs the 
residents are requesting. He urged attendees to look at the map of Riverside on the back 
wall. Riverside is a landlocked city and has been chopped up by the City of Dayton back 
when it was Mad River Township. He stated if they look at the areas of Mad River 
Township that Dayton acquired, they are income generating, businesses. That is income 
tax dollars. Before Riverside became a city, they had struggles with the land that they 
have. Riverside is not like Huber Heights or New Carlisle where they can annex 
townships and make R-1 houses. Riverside is limited to what they have. They have to 
continuously look at highest and best use. Valid concerns were raised. He thinks with 
the due diligence of staff and the planning commission all the concerns will get proper 
research. He stated he is confident in the process they will go through before a bulldozer 
comes to level out the ground.  
 
Mr. Bush questioned why one email was read and not others. Mayor Williams stated 
that the public hearing was closed, but that Mr. Denning read that as his comment and 
council has all received and read various emails. A brief discussion was held on the 
school district and income taxes. Deputy Mayor Lommatzsch called for the vote.  
 
Roll call: Mr. Denning, yes; Mr. Joseph, yes; Mrs. Franklin, yes; Ms. Fry, yes; Ms. 
Lommatzsch, yes; Mr. Maxfield, yes; and Mayor Williams, yes. Motion passed. 
 

II) Ordinance No. 23-O-819 – An ordinance to approve employee position 
titles, number of positions and pay ranges and to repeal Ordinance No. 
22-O-807 passed October 6, 2022, and declaring an emergency. (2nd 
reading and public hearing) 

 
Deputy Mayor Lommatzsch moved, seconded by Mr. Joseph, to approve the second 
reading of Ordinance No. 23-O-819. The clerk read the ordinance by title only. 
 
Mayor Williams opened the public hearing at 7:10 pm. No one came forward to speak. 
Mayor Williams closed the public hearing at 7:10 pm. 
 



 
 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 

Page 12 of 13 
 

Roll call: Ms. Lommatzsch, yes; Mr. Joseph, yes; Mr. Denning, yes; Mrs. Franklin, yes; Ms. 
Fry, yes; Mr. Maxfield, yes; and Mayor Williams, yes. Motion passed. 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
    A. RESOLUTIONS 

 
I) Resolution No. 23-R-2825 - A resolution recognizing the Bob Chiles Golf 

Classic as a function that promotes the public health, general welfare, and 
contentment of the citizens of the City of Riverside.  

 
Deputy Mayor Lommatzsch moved, seconded by Mrs. Franklin, to approve Resolution 
No. 23-R-2825.  
 
All were in favor. Motion caried. Deputy Mayor Lommatzsch asked that it be noted this 
is an event by the Miami Valley Military Affairs Association connected to Wright-
Patterson Air Force Base and supports airman. The clerk stated it was in the resolution. 
 

II) Resolution No. 23-R-2826 - A resolution declaring miscellaneous equipment 
to be surplus and no longer needed for city purposes and authorizing its sale 
by sealed bid, a broker, direct sale to a public entity, or auction. 

 
Mr. Denning moved, seconded by Mr. Joseph, to approve Resolution No. 23-R-2826.  
 
All were in favor. Motion caried.  
 

III) Resolution No. 23-R-2827 - A resolution authorizing the city manager to 
enter into an agreement with Crawford, Murphy, Tilley to provide general 
engineering services and serve as the engineer of record to the City of 
Riverside under certain terms and conditions. 

 
Mr. Denning moved, seconded by Mr. Maxfield, to approve Resolution No. 23-R-2827.  
 
All were in favor. Motion caried.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS: No one came forward to speak. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS: Ms. Fry reminded residents of the blood drive on 
Monday, February 20, 2023. The blood mobile will be in the parking lot from 3 – 7 pm. 
Sign-ups can be done online at www.donortime.com under Riverside. 
 
Deputy Mayor Lommatzsch motioned, seconded by Mr. Maxfield, to cancel the work 
session on March 9, 2023, as council has a conflict with another event that requires their 

http://www.donortime.com/


 
 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 

Page 13 of 13 
 

attendance.  
 
Mr. Joseph asked when they would discuss the items scheduled for that work session. 
Mr. Rauch stated they would be fairly brief to cover. He will send emails about the 
information, and they can discuss it at the meeting prior as well as the meeting after on 
March 2, and on March 16, 2023. 
 
All were in favor. Motion carried.  
 
Mr. Joseph stated it was nice to see the room packed; since he has been on council, it 
has happened maybe three or four times. By looking at the YouTube attendance and 
what was in the room, they doubled their normal attendance. He stated that council 
meets on the first and third Thursdays with a work session on the second Thursday of 
each month. He stated people will come to meetings if there is something happening in 
their neighborhood. He thinks civic engagement is important. He encourages residents 
to come to the meetings to give comments as council works for them, the constituents.  
 
Mr. Maxfield stated that Saturday, February 18, 2023, is Mad River Indians Youth Football 
Team’s Fish Fry at Advanced Business Properties, 1675 Woodman Drive, Riverside, Ohio. 
Tickets are $15 for pre-sale; he believes they can still be purchased at the football field 
tonight or message them through their Facebook page. Cost at the door will be $20 for 
all you can eat fish, fries, hot dogs, adult beverage, soda, and then there will be 50/50 
games and raffle baskets. It will take place from 6 -11 pm. 
 
Mayor Williams stated that if came across rude to members of the audience, he did not 
mean to. He was trying to run the meeting efficiently and fairly for all those who wanted 
to speak. There is a very specific method to which they hold public comments for the 
record. He wanted to give people three different chances to come up and speak and ask 
questions. He apologized if he did not come across as polite as he should have.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Denning moved, seconded by Mrs. Franklin, to adjourn. All were in 
favor. Motion carried. The meeting adjourned at 7:17 pm. 
 
 
 
_________________________________      ____________________________________ 
Peter J. Williams, Mayor                               Clerk of Council  



 
 

CITY COUNCIL 

CALENDAR 



2023 COUNCIL CALENDAR 
 

• Executive Session: Property, Personnel 
 

 
• Ordinance: Parking in front of mailboxes (Frank)  
• Strategic Plan 
• Health and Safety – Code changes for Council ex-officio 
• Land Use Plan preview/update 
• Update on Engineering Services RFQ 
• Aggregation Update 

• Monthly Update: Police, Fire, Public Services, and CM Report 
• Ordinance: 7544 Union Schoolhouse Rd. Rezoning (2nd Reading) 
• Ordinance: TO Update – EMT Basic (2nd Reading) 
• Resolution: Bob Chiles Golf Outing 
• Resolution: Engineering Services 
• Resolution: Surplus Items 

 

• Monthly Update: Finance, Administration, Community Development, and CM Report 
• Presentation: RTA 
• Ordinance: Parking Code Update (1st Reading) 
• Ordinance: Health and Safety Update (1st Reading) 
• Resolution: Fisher-Nightingale Houses All-American Evening 
• Resolution: OBC Representatives 
• Resolution: Downing Group/Jobs Ohio Agreement 
• Resolution: Benefits Administration Broker 
• Resolution: Strategic Plan Adoption 

 

 

• Monthly Update: Police, Fire, Public Services, and CM Report 
• Presentation: Oath of Office for Full-Time Firefighters; Oath of Office for Police Officers 
• Ordinance: Parking Code Update (2nd Reading) 
• Ordinance: Health and Safety Update (2nd Reading) 
• Ordinance: Codification of Riverside Code (1st reading) 
• Ordinance: Mayor’s Wages (1st reading) 
• Ordinance: Councilmember’s Wages (1st reading) 

 

February 9, 2023 – Work Session 

February 16, 2023 

March 2, 2023 

March 9, 2023 – Work Session - CANCELLED 

March 16, 2023 



 
STATEMENT  

OF CASH FROM 
REVENUE AND 

EXPENSE 



CITY OF RIVERSIDE

Statement of Cash from Revenue and Expense
From: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023

Funds: 1100 to 9999 Include Inactive Accounts: No

Fund Description Beginning
Balance

Net Revenue
YTD

Net Expense
YTD

Unexpended
Balance

Encumbrance
YTD

Ending
Balance

Message

1100 GENERAL FUND $4,164,903.30 $598,549.26 $1,256,444.44 $3,507,008.12 $359,436.80 $3,147,571.32

2201 FIRE FUND $1,088,111.50 $135,288.93 $449,482.01 $773,918.42 $146,845.68 $627,072.74

2202 STREET FUND $478,083.30 $360,833.02 $310,609.06 $528,307.26 $223,766.64 $304,540.62

2203 POLICE FUND $628,341.56 $161,450.23 $594,199.01 $195,592.78 $324,268.69 ($128,675.91)

2205 STATE HIGHWAY FUND $368,616.27 $8,592.02 $10,535.93 $366,672.36 $22,093.81 $344,578.55

2209 PERMISSIVE TAX FUND $490,646.47 $169,595.67 $127,817.40 $532,424.74 $157,212.60 $375,212.14

2210 OPWC UNION SCHOOLHOUSE RD $33,910.26 $0.00 $1,490.46 $32,419.80 $0.00 $32,419.80

2211 FEMA GRANT FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2212 GENERAL ASSESSMENTS $208,054.05 $50,000.00 $9,500.00 $248,554.05 $19,000.00 $229,554.05

2213 OPWC VALLEY PIKE FUND $8,660.07 $0.00 $0.00 $8,660.07 $0.00 $8,660.07

2214 OPWC NEEDMORE RD FUND $11,529.84 $0.00 $0.00 $11,529.84 $0.00 $11,529.84

2215 COUNTY GRANT FUND $40,176.70 $0.00 $0.00 $40,176.70 $0.00 $40,176.70

2216 BRANTWOOD II SUBDIVISION
FUND

$0.01 $0.00 $0.00 $0.01 $0.00 $0.01

2217 FEDERAL GRANTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2218 BRANTWOOD SUBDIVISION FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2219 DRUG LAW FUND $3,982.37 $0.00 $0.00 $3,982.37 $0.00 $3,982.37

2220 DUI ENFORCEMENT FUND $326.00 $0.00 $0.00 $326.00 $0.00 $326.00

2223 CDBG PROJECTS $58,079.50 $0.00 $0.00 $58,079.50 $0.00 $58,079.50

2225 N.E.P. GRANT FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2227 ONEOHIO OPIOID SETTLEMENT
FUND

$7,067.77 $15,814.34 $0.00 $22,882.11 $0.00 $22,882.11

2228 VOCA/SVAA $13,363.25 $0.00 $0.00 $13,363.25 $0.00 $13,363.25

2229 FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION
GRANTS

$19,898.88 $0.00 $0.00 $19,898.88 $0.00 $19,898.88

2231 STATE LAW ENFORCEMENT
TRUST

$4,176.83 $5,778.75 $0.00 $9,955.58 $0.00 $9,955.58

2232 FEDERAL EQUITABLE SHARING $624.60 $0.00 $0.00 $624.60 $0.00 $624.60

2236 LOCAL CORONAVIRUS RELIEF
FUND

$0.03 $0.00 $0.00 $0.03 $0.00 $0.03

2237 LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUND $1,201,827.68 $0.00 $28,162.00 $1,173,665.68 $143,118.03 $1,030,547.65

2402 WRIGHT POINT FUND $260,885.24 $0.00 $71,156.15 $189,729.09 $159,055.81 $30,673.28

2404 EINTRACHT FUND $5,665.27 $0.00 $0.00 $5,665.27 $0.00 $5,665.27

2406 CENTER OF FLIGHT $61,039.63 $550.00 $634.67 $60,954.96 $6,080.79 $54,874.17

2407 AIRWAY/WOODMAN IMPROVEMT
FUND

$245,500.50 $0.00 $0.00 $245,500.50 $5,980.76 $239,519.74

2410 FIRE/EMS & POLICE INCOME TAX $1,815.89 $640,824.26 $19,014.00 $623,626.15 $170.64 $623,455.51

2600 CEMETERY FUND $3,668.20 $2,000.00 $1,497.95 $4,170.25 $752.05 $3,418.20

2803 CONTINGENCY RESERVE FUND $331,284.79 $0.00 $0.00 $331,284.79 $0.00 $331,284.79

2/24/2023 10:26 AM Page 1 of 2 V.3.5



Statement of Cash from Revenue and Expense

From: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Fund Description Beginning

Balance
Net Revenue

YTD
Net Expense

YTD
Unexpended

Balance
Encumbrance

YTD
Ending

Balance
Message

3300 G.O. DEBT RETIREMENT $683,540.78 $0.00 $21,627.14 $661,913.64 $0.00 $661,913.64

4405 DANIS LAND ACQUISITION $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4702 CAPITAL INFRASTRUCTURE FUND $897,829.61 $617,645.98 $546,641.92 $968,833.67 $449,407.80 $519,425.87

4703 CAPITAL EQUIP IMPROVEMENT
FD

$223,261.62 $118,300.00 $192,259.80 $149,301.82 $98,606.18 $50,695.64

7804 INSURANCE DEPOSITS $60,971.19 $0.00 $0.00 $60,971.19 $15,840.00 $45,131.19

9999 Payroll Clearing Fund $0.00 $711,665.58 $615,171.91 $96,493.67 $0.00 $96,493.67

Grand Total: $11,605,842.96 $3,596,888.04 $4,256,243.85 $10,946,487.15 $2,131,636.28 $8,814,850.87

2/24/2023 10:26 AM Page 2 of 2 V.3.5



 
EXPENSE 

REPORT 



CITY OF RIVERSIDE

Expense Report for Current Year
Accounts: 1100-210-100-512010 to 9999-000-000-950099 Include Inactive Accounts: No

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023 Include Pre-Encumbrances: No

Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

1100 GENERAL FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

City Clerk

1100-210-100-512010 FRINGES-EMPLOYER PAID $0.00 $0.00 $877.66 ($877.66) $0.00 ($877.66) N/A

1100-210-100-512020 FRINGES-WORKERS COMP $1,700.00 $0.00 $127.39 $1,572.61 $254.78 $1,317.83 22.48%

1100-210-100-512030 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $21,100.00 $1,682.87 $1,682.87 $19,417.13 $1,687.13 $17,730.00 15.97%

1100-210-100-512040 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $4,200.00 $0.00 $1,875.00 $2,325.00 $0.00 $2,325.00 44.64%

1100-210-100-512050 FRINGES-LIFE INSURANCE $125.00 $0.00 $0.00 $125.00 $27.00 $98.00 21.60%

1100-210-100-512060 FRINGES-MEDICARE $0.00 $0.00 $27.52 ($27.52) $0.00 ($27.52) N/A

1100-210-100-512070 FRINGES-FICA $1,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,750.00 $0.00 $1,750.00 0.00%

1100-210-100-523020 FEES-INSURANCE/BONDS $606.67 $0.00 $0.00 $606.67 $0.00 $606.67 0.00%

1100-210-100-523060 FEES-SUBSCRIPTIONS/ME $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $500.00 $500.00 50.00%

1100-210-100-524000 ACTIVITIES-GENERAL $1,000.00 $0.00 $36.09 $963.91 $213.91 $750.00 25.00%

1100-210-100-524040 ACTIVITIES-LEGAL NOTICE $4,000.00 $181.44 $181.44 $3,818.56 $818.56 $3,000.00 25.00%

1100-210-100-524160 ACTIVITIES-PUBLIC FUNCTI $1,399.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,399.00 $0.00 $1,399.00 0.00%

City Clerk Totals: $36,880.67 $1,864.31 $4,807.97 $32,072.70 $3,501.38 $28,571.32 22.53%

Elected Officials

1100-210-101-511030 WAGES-ELECTED $30,000.00 $2,499.98 $4,999.96 $25,000.04 $0.00 $25,000.04 16.67%

1100-210-101-512010 FRINGES - EMPLOYER PAI $4,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,200.00 $0.00 $4,200.00 0.00%

1100-210-101-512060 FRINGES - MEDICARE $440.00 $36.23 $72.46 $367.54 $0.00 $367.54 16.47%

1100-210-101-512070 FRINGES - FICA $250.00 $20.67 $41.34 $208.66 $0.00 $208.66 16.54%

1100-210-101-522030 PROF DEV-EDUCATION/TR $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-101-522053 PROF DEV-TRAVEL/TRANS $3,000.00 $2,600.00 $2,600.00 $400.00 $360.00 $40.00 98.67%

1100-210-101-522054 PROF DEV-TRAVEL/TRANS $2,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,200.00 $2,000.00 $200.00 90.91%

1100-210-101-522055 PROF DEV-TRAVEL/TRANS $2,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,200.00 $0.00 $2,200.00 0.00%

1100-210-101-522056 PROF DEV-TRAVEL/TRANS $2,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,200.00 $0.00 $2,200.00 0.00%

1100-210-101-522057 PROF DEV-TRAVEL/TRANS $2,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,200.00 $0.00 $2,200.00 0.00%

1100-210-101-522058 PROF DEV-TRAVEL/TRANS $2,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,200.00 $0.00 $2,200.00 0.00%

1100-210-101-522059 PROF DEV-TRAVEL/TRANS $2,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,200.00 $0.00 $2,200.00 0.00%

1100-210-101-524160 ACTIVITIES-PUBLIC FUNCTI $399.00 $0.00 $0.00 $399.00 $399.00 $0.00 100.00%

Elected Officials Totals: $51,489.00 $5,156.88 $7,713.76 $43,775.24 $2,759.00 $41,016.24 20.34%

Boards & Commissions

1100-210-102-524231 ACTIVITIES-BOARDS AND C $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-102-524232 ACTIVITIES-BOARDS AND C $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $250.00 $750.00 25.00%

1100-210-102-524233 ACTIVITIES-BOARDS AND C $5,000.00 $471.42 $471.42 $4,528.58 $778.58 $3,750.00 25.00%

1100-210-102-524234 ACTIVITIES-BOARDS AND C $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 0.00%

Boards & Commissions Totals: $8,000.00 $471.42 $471.42 $7,528.58 $1,028.58 $6,500.00 18.75%

City Clerk

1100-210-103-511011 WAGES-FULL TIME REGUL $55,000.00 $4,245.20 $8,347.60 $46,652.40 $0.00 $46,652.40 15.18%

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 1 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

1100-210-103-512010 FRINGES-EMPLOYER PAID $7,700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,700.00 $0.00 $7,700.00 0.00%

1100-210-103-512060 FRINGES-MEDICARE $860.00 $57.11 $84.63 $775.37 $0.00 $775.37 9.84%

1100-210-103-522051 PROF DEV-TRAVEL/TRANS $2,500.00 $163.49 $218.49 $2,281.51 $481.51 $1,800.00 28.00%

1100-210-103-524010 ACTIVITIES-CODIFICATION $6,000.00 $0.00 $450.00 $5,550.00 $1,050.00 $4,500.00 25.00%

City Clerk Totals: $72,060.00 $4,465.80 $9,100.72 $62,959.28 $1,531.51 $61,427.77 14.75%

Administration

1100-210-150-511011 WAGES-FULL TIME REGUL $296,000.00 $22,937.68 $45,581.20 $250,418.80 $0.00 $250,418.80 15.40%

1100-210-150-511012 WAGES-FULL TIME OVERTI $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-150-511021 WAGES-PART TIME REGUL $13,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,000.00 $0.00 $13,000.00 0.00%

1100-210-150-511060 WAGES-RETIREMENT PAY $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0.00%

1100-210-150-512010 FRINGES-EMPLOYER PAID $43,200.00 $0.00 $3,162.76 $40,037.24 $0.00 $40,037.24 7.32%

1100-210-150-512020 FRINGES-WORKERS COMP $6,200.00 $0.00 $621.13 $5,578.87 $1,242.26 $4,336.61 30.05%

1100-210-150-512030 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $21,200.00 $1,682.87 $1,682.87 $19,517.13 $1,685.13 $17,832.00 15.89%

1100-210-150-512040 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $4,200.00 $0.00 $1,875.00 $2,325.00 $0.00 $2,325.00 44.64%

1100-210-150-512050 FRINGES-LIFE INSURANCE $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $164.97 $335.03 32.99%

1100-210-150-512060 FRINGES-MEDICARE $4,500.00 $326.05 $648.32 $3,851.68 $0.00 $3,851.68 14.41%

1100-210-150-512080 FRINGES-UNEMPLOYMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-150-522020 PROF DEV-EDUCATION/TR $3,000.00 $1,850.00 $1,900.00 $1,100.00 $0.00 $1,100.00 63.33%

1100-210-150-522051 PROF DEV-TRAVEL/TRANS $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $610.00 $390.00 61.00%

1100-210-150-523020 FEES-INSURANCE/BONDS $600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $600.00 $0.00 $600.00 0.00%

1100-210-150-523060 FEES-SUBSCRIPTIONS/ME $3,000.00 $450.00 $450.00 $2,550.00 $300.00 $2,250.00 25.00%

1100-210-150-523150 FEES-RENTS/LEASES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Administration Totals: $401,400.00 $27,246.60 $55,921.28 $345,478.72 $4,002.36 $341,476.36 14.93%

Finance

1100-210-200-521010 SUPPLIES-POSTAGE $4,500.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 44.44%

1100-210-200-521020 SUPPLIES-OFFICE $10,000.00 $414.17 $427.16 $9,572.84 $1,572.84 $8,000.00 20.00%

1100-210-200-521050 SUPPLIES-FUEL $7,500.00 $477.72 $477.72 $7,022.28 $1,397.28 $5,625.00 25.00%

1100-210-200-522020 PROF DEV-EDUCATION/TR $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $750.00 $2,250.00 25.00%

1100-210-200-523010 FEES-AUDITOR/TREASURE $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 0.00%

1100-210-200-523020 FEES-INSURANCE/BONDS $27,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $27,000.00 $0.00 $27,000.00 0.00%

1100-210-200-523030 FEES-REAL ESTATE TAXES $16,000.00 $5,353.77 $5,353.77 $10,646.23 $3,281.68 $7,364.55 53.97%

1100-210-200-523040 FEES-INCOME TAX COLLE $136,000.00 $0.00 $12,664.00 $123,336.00 $0.00 $123,336.00 9.31%

1100-210-200-523050 FEES-ELECTIONS $19,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,500.00 $0.00 $19,500.00 0.00%

1100-210-200-523060 FEES-SUBSCRIPTIONS/ME $27,500.00 $2,787.06 $2,787.06 $24,712.94 $3,212.94 $21,500.00 21.82%

1100-210-200-523070 FEES-LICENSES/PERMITS $60.00 $0.00 $0.00 $60.00 $0.00 $60.00 0.00%

1100-210-200-523150 FEES-RENTS/LEASES $219,450.00 $0.00 $0.00 $219,450.00 $0.00 $219,450.00 0.00%

1100-210-200-523170 FEES-RELEASE DEPOSITS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-200-524001 ACTIVITIES-GENERAL-COVI $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-200-524020 ACTIVITIES-ADVERTISING $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00%

1100-210-200-524031 ACTIVITIES-PRINTING-NEW $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 20.00%

1100-210-200-524050 ACTIVITIES-CLAIMS $11,000.00 $184.65 $184.65 $10,815.35 $1,815.35 $9,000.00 18.18%

1100-210-200-524060 ACTIVITIES-RECRUITMENT $57,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $57,000.00 $0.00 $57,000.00 0.00%

1100-210-200-524070 ACTIVITIES-RECOGNITION $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $250.00 $750.00 25.00%

1100-210-200-524081 ACTIVITIES-WELLNESS-PH $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $500.00 $1,500.00 25.00%

1100-210-200-524082 ACTIVITIES-WELLNESS-EM $3,000.00 $639.84 $639.84 $2,360.16 $110.16 $2,250.00 25.00%

1100-210-200-524100 ACTIVITIES-NUISANCE ABA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 2 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

1100-210-200-524151 ACTIVITIES-NEIGHBORHOO $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-200-531010 UTILITIES-ELECTRIC $800.00 $22.56 $22.56 $777.44 $100.00 $677.44 15.32%

1100-210-200-531020 UTILITIES-GAS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-200-531030 UTILITIES-WATER/SEWER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-200-531040 UTILITIES-TELECOM $26,000.00 $3,226.23 $4,814.05 $21,185.95 $1,685.95 $19,500.00 25.00%

1100-210-200-531050 UTILITIES-MISC $35,000.00 $2,813.97 $2,813.97 $32,186.03 $6,113.65 $26,072.38 25.51%

1100-210-200-533000 ACTIVITIES-INTERNAL ENG $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-200-540000 CONTRACT SERVICES-GEN $114,000.00 $177.60 $177.60 $113,822.40 $7,322.40 $106,500.00 6.58%

1100-210-200-541000 CONTRACT SERVICES-ARC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-200-541030 CONTRACT SERVICES-IT/W $50,000.00 $6,868.21 $6,868.21 $43,131.79 $26,186.79 $16,945.00 66.11%

1100-210-200-541040 CONTRACT SERVICES-WO $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $750.00 $2,250.00 25.00%

1100-210-200-541110 CONTRACT SERVICES-REC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-200-547600 CONTRACT SERVICES-ASS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-200-557010 ASSETS-GENERAL-INFORM $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-200-557810 ASSETS-FLEET-VEHICLES $8,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 0.00%

Finance Totals: $798,810.00 $24,965.78 $39,230.59 $759,579.41 $56,049.04 $703,530.37 11.93%

Finance

1100-210-201-511011 WAGES-FULL TIME REGUL $140,000.00 $10,553.61 $21,107.22 $118,892.78 $0.00 $118,892.78 15.08%

1100-210-201-511012 WAGES-FULL TIME OVERTI $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-201-511060 WAGES-RETIREMENT PAY $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 0.00%

1100-210-201-512010 FRINGES-EMPLOYER PAID $19,600.00 $0.00 $1,509.42 $18,090.58 $0.00 $18,090.58 7.70%

1100-210-201-512020 FRINGES-WORKERS COMP $2,800.00 $0.00 $231.55 $2,568.45 $463.10 $2,105.35 24.81%

1100-210-201-512030 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $8,200.00 $624.19 $624.19 $7,575.81 $625.81 $6,950.00 15.24%

1100-210-201-512040 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $2,100.00 $0.00 $937.50 $1,162.50 $0.00 $1,162.50 44.64%

1100-210-201-512050 FRINGES-LIFE INSURANCE $300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $44.55 $255.45 14.85%

1100-210-201-512060 FRINGES-MEDICARE $2,100.00 $148.32 $296.64 $1,803.36 $0.00 $1,803.36 14.13%

1100-210-201-512080 FRINGES-UNEMPLOYMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-201-522020 PROF DEV-EDUCATION/TR $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-201-522051 PROF DEV-TRAVEL/TRANS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-201-523020 FEES-INSURANCE/BONDS $300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $0.00 $300.00 0.00%

1100-210-201-523060 FEES-SUBSCRIPTIONS/ME $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-201-524000 ACTIVITIES-GENERAL $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 0.00%

1100-210-201-524030 ACTIVITIES-PRINTING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-201-541070 CONTRACT SERVICES-ANN $35,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $32,000.00 $32,000.00 $0.00 100.00%

1100-210-201-547400 CONTRACT SERVICES-ASS $20,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 0.00%

Finance Totals: $261,900.00 $14,326.12 $27,706.52 $234,193.48 $33,133.46 $201,060.02 23.23%

Legal

1100-210-250-511011 WAGES-FULL TIME REGUL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-210-250-541060 CONTRACT SERVICES-LEG $50,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $12,500.00 $37,500.00 25.00%

1100-210-250-541061 CONTRACT SERVICES-LEG $52,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $52,000.00 $12,499.98 $39,500.02 24.04%

1100-210-250-541062 CONTRACT SERVICES-LEG $25,000.00 $1,708.00 $1,708.00 $23,292.00 $4,542.00 $18,750.00 25.00%

1100-210-250-541063 CONTRACT SERVICES-LEG $22,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $22,000.00 $5,500.00 $16,500.00 25.00%

Legal Totals: $149,000.00 $1,708.00 $1,708.00 $147,292.00 $35,041.98 $112,250.02 24.66%

Community Development

1100-230-300-511011 WAGES-FULL TIME REGUL $218,000.00 $16,440.00 $32,880.00 $185,120.00 $0.00 $185,120.00 15.08%

1100-230-300-511012 WAGES-FULL TIME OVERTI $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 3 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

1100-230-300-511021 WAGES-PART TIME REGUL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-300-511060 WAGES-RETIREMENT PAY $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-300-512010 FRINGES-EMPLOYER PAID $30,600.00 $0.00 $2,301.60 $28,298.40 $0.00 $28,298.40 7.52%

1100-230-300-512020 FRINGES-WORKERS COMP $4,400.00 $0.00 $528.62 $3,871.38 $1,057.24 $2,814.14 36.04%

1100-230-300-512030 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $47,500.00 $3,663.78 $3,663.78 $43,836.22 $3,666.22 $40,170.00 15.43%

1100-230-300-512040 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $8,400.00 $0.00 $3,750.00 $4,650.00 $0.00 $4,650.00 44.64%

1100-230-300-512050 FRINGES-LIFE INSURANCE $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $98.04 $401.96 19.61%

1100-230-300-512060 FRINGES-MEDICARE $3,200.00 $228.98 $457.96 $2,742.04 $0.00 $2,742.04 14.31%

1100-230-300-512080 FRINGES-UNEMPLOYMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-300-521000 SUPPLIES-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-300-522020 PROF DEV-EDUCATION/TR $2,000.00 $0.00 $50.00 $1,950.00 $450.00 $1,500.00 25.00%

1100-230-300-522021 PROF DEV-EDUCATION/TR $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-300-522051 PROF DEV-TRAVEL/TRANS $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $2,600.00 $1,400.00 65.00%

1100-230-300-523020 FEES-INSURANCE/BONDS $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $0.00 $200.00 0.00%

1100-230-300-523060 FEES-SUBSCRIPTIONS/ME $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $500.00 $2,500.00 16.67%

1100-230-300-524020 ACTIVITIES-ADVERTISING $6,000.00 $173.82 $302.94 $5,697.06 $1,697.06 $4,000.00 33.33%

1100-230-300-524030 ACTIVITIES-PRINTING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-300-524100 ACTIVITIES-NUISANCE ABA $55,000.00 $3,017.99 $3,017.99 $51,982.01 $6,982.01 $45,000.00 18.18%

1100-230-300-524130 ACTIVITIES-ECON DEV INC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-300-524140 ACTIVITIES-BUSINESS RET $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-300-533000 ACTIVITIES-INTERNAL ENG $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-300-540000 CONTRACT SERVICES-GEN $50,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $12,000.00 $38,000.00 24.00%

1100-230-300-541000 CONTRACT SERVICES-ARC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-300-543010 CONTRACT SERVICES-ENG $20,000.00 $1,600.00 $6,172.50 $13,827.50 $1,827.50 $12,000.00 40.00%

1100-230-300-551010 GENERAL-PROPERTY ACQ $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-300-557810 ASSETS-FLEET-VEHICLES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $452,800.00 $25,124.57 $53,125.39 $399,674.61 $30,878.07 $368,796.54 18.55%

Planning & Zoning

1100-230-301-511011 WAGES-FULL TIME REGUL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-511012 WAGES-FULL TIME OVERTI $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-511021 WAGES-PART TIME REGUL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-511060 WAGES-RETIREMENT PAY $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-512010 FRINGES-EMPLOYER PAID $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-512020 FRINGES-WORKERS COMP $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-512030 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-512040 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-512050 FRINGES-LIFE INSURANCE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-512060 FRINGES-MEDICARE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-512080 FRINGES-UNEMPLOYMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-522021 PROF DEV-EDUCATION/TR $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-522051 PROF DEV-TRAVEL/TRANS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-523020 FEES-INSURANCE/BONDS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-523060 FEES-SUBSCRIPTIONS/ME $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-524020 ACTIVITIES-ADVERTISING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-524030 ACTIVITIES-PRINTING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-524100 ACTIVITIES-NUISANCE ABA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 4 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

1100-230-301-524150 ACTIVITIES-NEIGHBORHOO $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-533000 ACTIVITIES-INTERNAL ENG $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-540000 CONTRACT SERVICES-GEN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-541000 CONTRACT SERVICES-ARC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-230-301-543010 CONTRACT SERVICES-ENG $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Planning & Zoning Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

1100-235-350-511011 WAGES-FULL TIME REGUL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-235-350-521000 SUPPLIES-GENERAL $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $1,250.00 $3,750.00 25.00%

1100-235-350-531010 UTILITIES-ELECTRIC $7,900.00 $355.95 $355.95 $7,544.05 $557.84 $6,986.21 11.57%

1100-235-350-531020 UTILITIES-GAS $1,145.00 $394.09 $394.09 $750.91 $205.91 $545.00 52.40%

1100-235-350-531030 UTILITIES-WATER/SEWER $2,865.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,865.00 $716.00 $2,149.00 24.99%

1100-235-350-531040 UTILITIES-TELECOM $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-235-350-537200 ACTIVITIES-ASSET MAINT- $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-235-350-537600 ACTIVITIES-ASSET MAINT-F $7,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,500.00 $1,875.00 $5,625.00 25.00%

1100-235-350-540000 CONTRACT SERVICES-GEN $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $1,250.00 $3,750.00 25.00%

1100-235-350-547600 CONTRACT SERVICES-ASS $7,500.00 $752.10 $752.10 $6,747.90 $2,594.08 $4,153.82 44.62%

Public Service Totals: $36,910.00 $1,502.14 $1,502.14 $35,407.86 $8,448.83 $26,959.03 26.96%

Finance

1100-345-200-582000 ADVANCES-OUT $0.00 $0.00 $470,000.00 ($470,000.00) $0.00 ($470,000.00) N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $470,000.00 ($470,000.00) $0.00 ($470,000.00) N/A

Finance

1100-355-200-592010 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO FIRE $464,500.00 $0.00 $54,860.00 $409,640.00 $0.00 $409,640.00 11.81%

1100-355-200-592020 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO PUBLI $1,290,350.00 $0.00 $322,585.00 $967,765.00 $0.00 $967,765.00 25.00%

1100-355-200-592030 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO POLI $119,000.00 $0.00 $29,750.00 $89,250.00 $0.00 $89,250.00 25.00%

1100-355-200-592040 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO DEBT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-355-200-592050 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO VOCA $75,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $75,000.00 $0.00 $75,000.00 0.00%

1100-355-200-592060 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OPW $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-355-200-592070 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OPW $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-355-200-592080 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO CAPI $473,300.00 $0.00 $118,300.00 $355,000.00 $0.00 $355,000.00 24.99%

1100-355-200-592090 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OTHE $146,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $146,000.00 $0.00 $146,000.00 0.00%

1100-355-200-592100 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OPW $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-355-200-592110 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OPW $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-355-200-592120 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO CEME $7,750.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $5,750.00 $0.00 $5,750.00 25.81%

Finance Totals: $2,575,900.00 $0.00 $527,495.00 $2,048,405.00 $0.00 $2,048,405.00 20.48%

1100 Total: $4,845,149.67 $106,831.62 $1,198,782.79 $3,646,366.88 $176,374.21 $3,469,992.67 28.38%

2201 FIRE FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Fire

2201-215-400-511011 WAGES-FULL TIME REGUL $1,808,000.00 $117,285.92 $228,295.33 $1,579,704.67 $0.00 $1,579,704.67 12.63%

2201-215-400-511012 WAGES-FULL TIME OVERTI $77,000.00 $714.25 $5,565.64 $71,434.36 $0.00 $71,434.36 7.23%

2201-215-400-511021 WAGES-PART TIME REGUL $360,000.00 $28,787.05 $60,605.98 $299,394.02 $0.00 $299,394.02 16.83%

2201-215-400-511050 WAGES-HOLIDAY PAY $45,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $45,600.00 $0.00 $45,600.00 0.00%

2201-215-400-511060 WAGES-RETIREMENT PAY $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2201-215-400-512010 FRINGES-EMPLOYER PAID $474,500.00 $0.00 $28,439.24 $446,060.76 $0.00 $446,060.76 5.99%

2201-215-400-512020 FRINGES-WORKERS COMP $46,100.00 $0.00 $2,879.09 $43,220.91 $5,758.18 $37,462.73 18.74%

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 5 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

2201-215-400-512030 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $364,500.00 $21,116.84 $21,116.84 $343,383.16 $20,123.02 $323,260.14 11.31%

2201-215-400-512040 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $37,200.00 $0.00 $23,400.00 $13,800.00 $1,950.00 $11,850.00 68.15%

2201-215-400-512050 FRINGES-LIFE INSURANCE $2,800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,800.00 $513.00 $2,287.00 18.32%

2201-215-400-512060 FRINGES-MEDICARE $33,400.00 $2,042.55 $4,104.53 $29,295.47 $0.00 $29,295.47 12.29%

2201-215-400-512070 FRINGES-FICA $23,400.00 $1,685.43 $3,537.31 $19,862.69 $0.00 $19,862.69 15.12%

2201-215-400-512080 FRINGES-UNEMPLOYMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2201-215-400-521000 SUPPLIES-GENERAL $10,000.00 $530.26 $530.26 $9,469.74 $1,969.74 $7,500.00 25.00%

2201-215-400-521010 SUPPLIES-POSTAGE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2201-215-400-521020 SUPPLIES-OFFICE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2201-215-400-521030 SUPPLIES-CLOTHING $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 50.00%

2201-215-400-521040 SUPPLIES-PPE $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $2,500.00 $7,500.00 25.00%

2201-215-400-521050 SUPPLIES-FUEL $61,000.00 $4,464.49 $4,464.49 $56,535.51 $10,535.51 $46,000.00 24.59%

2201-215-400-521110 SUPPLIES-TOOLS & EQUIP $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $2,500.00 $7,500.00 25.00%

2201-215-400-521150 SUPPLIES-FIRE/EMS $11,000.00 $3,310.23 $3,310.23 $7,689.77 $1,439.77 $6,250.00 43.18%

2201-215-400-522020 PROF DEV-EDUCATION/TR $10,000.00 $1,887.06 $1,887.06 $8,112.94 $3,772.94 $4,340.00 56.60%

2201-215-400-522051 PROF DEV-TRAVEL/TRANS $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $250.00 $750.00 25.00%

2201-215-400-523010 FEES-AUDITOR/TREASURE $15,888.73 $0.00 $0.00 $15,888.73 $0.00 $15,888.73 0.00%

2201-215-400-523020 FEES-INSURANCE/BONDS $63,760.67 $0.00 $0.00 $63,760.67 $0.00 $63,760.67 0.00%

2201-215-400-523060 FEES-SUBSCRIPTIONS/ME $47,000.00 $12,594.10 $12,594.10 $34,405.90 $3,608.90 $30,797.00 34.47%

2201-215-400-523080 FEES-DISPATCH/RADIO $55,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $55,000.00 $22,000.00 $33,000.00 40.00%

2201-215-400-523090 FEES-EMS BILLING $52,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $52,000.00 $13,000.00 $39,000.00 25.00%

2201-215-400-523100 FEES-EMS BILLING-REFUN $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $500.00 $1,500.00 25.00%

2201-215-400-523140 FEES-CREDIT CARD FEES $1,200.00 $0.00 $113.68 $1,086.32 $0.00 $1,086.32 9.47%

2201-215-400-524030 ACTIVITIES-PRINTING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2201-215-400-524081 ACTIVITIES-WELLNESS-PH $6,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $1,500.00 $4,500.00 25.00%

2201-215-400-524171 ACTIVITIES-INSPECTIONS- $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $125.00 $375.00 25.00%

2201-215-400-531010 UTILITIES-ELECTRIC $12,500.00 $808.67 $808.67 $11,691.33 $588.01 $11,103.32 11.17%

2201-215-400-531020 UTILITIES-GAS $8,500.00 $1,732.50 $1,732.50 $6,767.50 $2,517.50 $4,250.00 50.00%

2201-215-400-531030 UTILITIES-WATER/SEWER $3,300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,300.00 $825.00 $2,475.00 25.00%

2201-215-400-531040 UTILITIES-TELECOM $25,600.00 $2,706.50 $3,765.04 $21,834.96 $2,634.96 $19,200.00 25.00%

2201-215-400-531050 UTILITIES-MISC $700.00 $102.98 $102.98 $597.02 $72.02 $525.00 25.00%

2201-215-400-537400 ACTIVITIES-ASSET MAINT- $4,000.00 $468.10 $468.10 $3,531.90 $531.90 $3,000.00 25.00%

2201-215-400-537800 ACTIVITIES-ASSET MAINT-F $4,000.00 $500.22 $500.22 $3,499.78 $499.78 $3,000.00 25.00%

2201-215-400-540000 CONTRACT SERVICES-GEN $15,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,500.00 $3,875.00 $11,625.00 25.00%

2201-215-400-547400 CONTRACT SERVICES-ASS $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $1,250.00 $3,750.00 25.00%

2201-215-400-547600 CONTRACT SERVICES-ASS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2201-215-400-547800 CONTRACT SERVICES-ASS $32,000.00 $1,856.27 $1,856.27 $30,143.73 $6,143.73 $24,000.00 25.00%

2201-215-400-557410 ASSETS-EQUIPMENT-TOOL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2201-215-400-557810 ASSETS-FLEET-VEHICLES $18,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,000.00 $0.00 $18,000.00 0.00%

2201-215-400-577421 DEBT-LOANS-PROPERTY/F $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2201-215-400-577422 DEBT-LOANS-PROPERTY/F $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Fire Totals: $3,767,949.40 $202,593.42 $410,077.56 $3,357,871.84 $115,983.96 $3,241,887.88 13.96%

Fire

2201-345-400-582000 ADVANCES-OUT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Fire Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 6 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

2201-355-200-592080 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO CAPI $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2201 Total: $3,767,949.40 $202,593.42 $410,077.56 $3,357,871.84 $115,983.96 $3,241,887.88 13.96%

2202 STREET FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

2202-165-350-541090 CONTRACT SERVICES-WA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2202-165-350-541100 CONTRACT SERVICES-STO $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2202-210-350-521110 SUPPLIES-TOOLS & EQUIP $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2202-225-350-511011 WAGES-FULL TIME REGUL $784,000.00 $57,627.04 $114,370.88 $669,629.12 $0.00 $669,629.12 14.59%

2202-225-350-511012 WAGES-FULL TIME OVERTI $20,000.00 $1,474.29 $2,438.92 $17,561.08 $0.00 $17,561.08 12.19%

2202-225-350-511060 WAGES-RETIREMENT PAY $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 0.00%

2202-225-350-512010 FRINGES-EMPLOYER PAID $111,100.00 $0.00 $8,414.66 $102,685.34 $0.00 $102,685.34 7.57%

2202-225-350-512020 FRINGES-WORKERS COMP $15,900.00 $0.00 $1,221.75 $14,678.25 $2,443.50 $12,234.75 23.05%

2202-225-350-512030 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $215,800.00 $14,622.23 $14,622.23 $201,177.77 $14,627.77 $186,550.00 13.55%

2202-225-350-512040 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $28,300.00 $0.00 $16,350.00 $11,950.00 $900.00 $11,050.00 60.95%

2202-225-350-512050 FRINGES-LIFE INSURANCE $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $216.00 $1,284.00 14.40%

2202-225-350-512060 FRINGES-MEDICARE $11,600.00 $810.50 $1,600.80 $9,999.20 $0.00 $9,999.20 13.80%

2202-225-350-512080 FRINGES-UNEMPLOYMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2202-225-350-521000 SUPPLIES-GENERAL $12,000.00 $1,817.09 $1,817.09 $10,182.91 $1,182.91 $9,000.00 25.00%

2202-225-350-521030 SUPPLIES-CLOTHING $10,000.00 $970.36 $1,168.35 $8,831.65 $1,331.65 $7,500.00 25.00%

2202-225-350-521040 SUPPLIES-PPE $5,000.00 $842.00 $1,192.00 $3,808.00 $58.00 $3,750.00 25.00%

2202-225-350-521050 SUPPLIES-FUEL $60,000.00 $5,420.44 $5,420.44 $54,579.56 $9,579.56 $45,000.00 25.00%

2202-225-350-521060 SUPPLIES-ROAD SALT $90,000.00 $12,499.52 $12,499.52 $77,500.48 $20,900.48 $56,600.00 37.11%

2202-225-350-521080 SUPPLIES-CONSTRUCTION $35,000.00 $4,962.89 $4,962.89 $30,037.11 $37.11 $30,000.00 14.29%

2202-225-350-521100 SUPPLIES-PARTS AND ACC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2202-225-350-521140 SUPPLIES-SIGNAL/TRAFFIC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2202-225-350-522020 PROF DEV-EDUCATION/TR $7,500.00 $225.00 $245.00 $7,255.00 $1,630.00 $5,625.00 25.00%

2202-225-350-522051 PROF DEV-TRAVEL/TRANS $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $250.00 $750.00 25.00%

2202-225-350-523010 FEES-AUDITOR/TREASURE $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

2202-225-350-523020 FEES-INSURANCE/BONDS $43,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $43,500.00 $0.00 $43,500.00 0.00%

2202-225-350-523060 FEES-SUBSCRIPTIONS/ME $14,000.00 $135.00 $11,635.00 $2,365.00 $615.00 $1,750.00 87.50%

2202-225-350-523070 FEES-LICENSES/PERMITS $1,700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,700.00 $425.00 $1,275.00 25.00%

2202-225-350-523080 FEES-DISPATCH/RADIO $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $1,500.00 $3,500.00 30.00%

2202-225-350-523130 FEES-DUMPING $3,000.00 $5.35 $5.35 $2,994.65 $744.65 $2,250.00 25.00%

2202-225-350-523151 FEES-RENTS/LEASES-TEM $5,000.00 $208.00 $208.00 $4,792.00 $1,042.00 $3,750.00 25.00%

2202-225-350-524020 ACTIVITIES-ADVERTISING $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $625.00 $1,875.00 25.00%

2202-225-350-524030 ACTIVITIES-PRINTING $750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $750.00 $200.00 $550.00 26.67%

2202-225-350-524081 ACTIVITIES-WELLNESS-PH $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $125.00 $375.00 25.00%

2202-225-350-524172 ACTIVITIES-INSPECTIONS- $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2202-225-350-524200 ACTIVITIES-PROP DAMAGE $35,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,000.00 $5,000.00 $30,000.00 14.29%

2202-225-350-524201 ACTIVITIES-PROP DAMAGE $50,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $10,000.00 $40,000.00 20.00%

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 7 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

2202-225-350-531010 UTILITIES-ELECTRIC $4,500.00 $344.16 $344.16 $4,155.84 $1,600.00 $2,555.84 43.20%

2202-225-350-531013 UTILITIES-ELECTRIC-SIGNA $10,500.00 $958.27 $958.27 $9,541.73 $0.00 $9,541.73 9.13%

2202-225-350-531020 UTILITIES-GAS $6,500.00 $1,628.41 $1,628.41 $4,871.59 $1,621.59 $3,250.00 50.00%

2202-225-350-531030 UTILITIES-WATER/SEWER $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $250.00 $750.00 25.00%

2202-225-350-531040 UTILITIES-TELECOM $17,000.00 $1,687.87 $2,746.41 $14,253.59 $1,503.59 $12,750.00 25.00%

2202-225-350-531050 UTILITIES-MISC $500.00 $47.34 $47.34 $452.66 $77.66 $375.00 25.00%

2202-225-350-533000 ACTIVITIES-INTERNAL ENG $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2202-225-350-534041 INFRASTRUCTURE-TRAFFI $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2202-225-350-537400 ACTIVITIES-ASSET MAINT- $20,000.00 $2,556.82 $2,556.82 $17,443.18 $2,443.18 $15,000.00 25.00%

2202-225-350-537600 ACTIVITIES-ASSET MAINT-F $12,000.00 $1,311.89 $1,311.89 $10,688.11 $1,688.11 $9,000.00 25.00%

2202-225-350-537800 ACTIVITIES-ASSET MAINT-F $5,000.00 $1,560.93 $1,560.93 $3,439.07 $1,189.07 $2,250.00 55.00%

2202-225-350-540000 CONTRACT SERVICES-GEN $50,000.00 $1,162.46 $1,162.46 $48,837.54 $5,837.54 $43,000.00 14.00%

2202-225-350-540010 CONTRACT SERVICES-GEN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2202-225-350-543000 CONTRACT SERVICES-ENG $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2202-225-350-547400 CONTRACT SERVICES-ASS $25,000.00 $814.48 $814.48 $24,185.52 $4,185.52 $20,000.00 20.00%

2202-225-350-547600 CONTRACT SERVICES-ASS $50,000.00 $3,677.61 $3,677.61 $46,322.39 $12,654.79 $33,667.60 32.66%

2202-225-350-547800 CONTRACT SERVICES-ASS $25,000.00 $1,767.38 $1,767.38 $23,232.62 $3,232.62 $20,000.00 20.00%

2202-225-350-554000 CONSTRUCTION-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2202-225-350-557810 ASSETS-FLEET-VEHICLES $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 0.00%

Public Service Totals: $1,821,650.00 $119,137.33 $216,749.04 $1,604,900.96 $109,717.30 $1,495,183.66 17.92%

Public Service

2202-240-350-557410 ASSETS-EQUIPMENT-TOOL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2202-240-350-557420 ASSETS-EQUIPMENT-HEAV $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2202-245-350-577430 DEBT-LOANS-PROPERTY/F $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2202-250-350-573010 DEBT-BONDS-PRINCIPAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2202-255-350-573020 DEBT-BONDS-INTEREST $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2202-355-350-592090 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OTHE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2202 Total: $1,821,650.00 $119,137.33 $216,749.04 $1,604,900.96 $109,717.30 $1,495,183.66 17.92%

2203 POLICE FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Police

2203-215-450-511011 WAGES-FULL TIME REGUL $2,545,000.00 $204,763.39 $419,744.54 $2,125,255.46 $0.00 $2,125,255.46 16.49%

2203-215-450-511012 WAGES-FULL TIME OVERTI $88,000.00 $10,781.50 $18,835.70 $69,164.30 $0.00 $69,164.30 21.40%

2203-215-450-511021 WAGES-PART TIME REGUL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2203-215-450-511040 WAGES-COMP TIME PAYO $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 0.00%

2203-215-450-511050 WAGES-HOLIDAY PAY $105,200.00 $0.00 $11,197.89 $94,002.11 $0.00 $94,002.11 10.64%

2203-215-450-511060 WAGES-RETIREMENT PAY $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 8 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

2203-215-450-512010 FRINGES-EMPLOYER PAID $576,500.00 $0.00 $38,688.28 $537,811.72 $0.00 $537,811.72 6.71%

2203-215-450-512020 FRINGES-WORKERS COMP $55,800.00 $0.00 $4,493.93 $51,306.07 $8,987.86 $42,318.21 24.16%

2203-215-450-512030 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $566,000.00 $38,307.88 $37,493.95 $528,506.05 $38,312.12 $490,193.93 13.39%

2203-215-450-512040 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $23,100.00 $0.00 $17,650.00 $5,450.00 $0.00 $5,450.00 76.41%

2203-215-450-512050 FRINGES-LIFE INSURANCE $3,700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,700.00 $775.44 $2,924.56 20.96%

2203-215-450-512060 FRINGES-MEDICARE $40,500.00 $2,989.25 $6,247.21 $34,252.79 $0.00 $34,252.79 15.43%

2203-215-450-512080 FRINGES-UNEMPLOYMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2203-215-450-521000 SUPPLIES-GENERAL $16,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,500.00 $4,125.00 $12,375.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-521010 SUPPLIES-POSTAGE $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $125.00 $375.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-521030 SUPPLIES-CLOTHING $15,000.00 $2,398.20 $2,398.20 $12,601.80 $1,351.80 $11,250.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-521050 SUPPLIES-FUEL $91,000.00 $61.50 $61.50 $90,938.50 $22,688.50 $68,250.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-521070 SUPPLIES-WEAPONS AND $7,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,000.00 $1,750.00 $5,250.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-521120 SUPPLIES-EVIDENCE COLL $3,500.00 $0.00 $13.37 $3,486.63 $861.63 $2,625.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-521130 SUPPLIES-INVESTIGATION $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $375.00 $1,125.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-522020 PROF DEV-EDUCATION/TR $9,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,000.00 $3,650.00 $5,350.00 40.56%

2203-215-450-522041 PROF DEV-TUITION REIMB- $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 0.00%

2203-215-450-522042 PROF DEV-TUITION REIMB- $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 0.00%

2203-215-450-522051 PROF DEV-TRAVEL/TRANS $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $625.00 $1,875.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-523010 FEES-AUDITOR/TREASURE $19,666.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,666.00 $0.00 $19,666.00 0.00%

2203-215-450-523020 FEES-INSURANCE/BONDS $62,022.00 $0.00 $0.00 $62,022.00 $0.00 $62,022.00 0.00%

2203-215-450-523060 FEES-SUBSCRIPTIONS/ME $1,500.00 $205.00 $205.00 $1,295.00 $170.00 $1,125.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-523070 FEES-LICENSES/PERMITS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2203-215-450-523080 FEES-DISPATCH/RADIO $310,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $310,000.00 $155,000.00 $155,000.00 50.00%

2203-215-450-523161 FEES-INVESTIGATIONS-FO $2,400.00 $450.00 $450.00 $1,950.00 $150.00 $1,800.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-523162 FEES-INVESTIGATIONS-DIB $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0.00%

2203-215-450-523163 FEES-INVESTIGATIONS-CO $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $125.00 $375.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-523190 FEES-RETURN UNUSED GR $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2203-215-450-524030 ACTIVITIES-PRINTING $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $125.00 $375.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-524081 ACTIVITIES-WELLNESS-PH $2,000.00 $400.00 $400.00 $1,600.00 $100.00 $1,500.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-524180 ACTIVITIES-K9 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $750.00 $2,250.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-524190 ACTIVITIES-PRISONER CAR $300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $100.00 $200.00 33.33%

2203-215-450-531010 UTILITIES-ELECTRIC $6,769.54 $484.83 $484.83 $6,284.71 $500.00 $5,784.71 14.55%

2203-215-450-531020 UTILITIES-GAS $3,985.13 $857.37 $857.37 $3,127.76 $1,132.63 $1,995.13 49.94%

2203-215-450-531030 UTILITIES-WATER/SEWER $1,420.74 $0.00 $0.00 $1,420.74 $355.00 $1,065.74 24.99%

2203-215-450-531040 UTILITIES-TELECOM $40,558.84 $2,527.61 $4,115.42 $36,443.42 $6,084.58 $30,358.84 25.15%

2203-215-450-537400 ACTIVITIES-ASSET MAINT- $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2203-215-450-537800 ACTIVITIES-ASSET MAINT-F $500.00 $6.59 $6.59 $493.41 $118.41 $375.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-540000 CONTRACT SERVICES-GEN $90,000.00 $10,290.92 $10,290.92 $79,709.08 $12,209.08 $67,500.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-547400 CONTRACT SERVICES-ASS $2,500.00 $15.00 $15.00 $2,485.00 $485.00 $2,000.00 20.00%

2203-215-450-547600 CONTRACT SERVICES-ASS $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $125.00 $375.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-547800 CONTRACT SERVICES-ASS $47,000.00 $3,945.45 $3,945.45 $43,054.55 $7,804.55 $35,250.00 25.00%

2203-215-450-557810 ASSETS-FLEET-VEHICLES $55,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $55,000.00 $0.00 $55,000.00 0.00%

Police Totals: $4,839,422.25 $278,484.49 $577,595.15 $4,261,827.10 $268,961.60 $3,992,865.50 17.49%

Police

2203-240-450-551000 GENERAL-MISC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2203-240-450-557400 ASSETS-EQUIPMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 9 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

2203-240-450-557810 ASSETS-FLEET-VEHICLES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Police Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2203 Total: $4,839,422.25 $278,484.49 $577,595.15 $4,261,827.10 $268,961.60 $3,992,865.50 17.49%

2205 STATE HIGHWAY FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

2205-225-350-521000 SUPPLIES-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2205-225-350-521060 SUPPLIES-ROAD SALT $20,000.00 $1,664.08 $1,664.08 $18,335.92 $1,935.92 $16,400.00 18.00%

2205-225-350-521090 SUPPLIES-INFRASTRUCTU $15,000.00 $101.14 $101.14 $14,898.86 $3,648.86 $11,250.00 25.00%

2205-225-350-531014 UTILITIES-ELECTRIC-SIGNA $10,000.00 $730.05 $730.05 $9,269.95 $1,276.93 $7,993.02 20.07%

2205-225-350-534042 INFRASTRUCTURE-TRAFFI $7,500.00 $336.00 $336.00 $7,164.00 $1,539.00 $5,625.00 25.00%

2205-225-350-534110 INFRASTRUCTURE-STATE $50,000.00 $302.40 $302.40 $49,697.60 $12,197.60 $37,500.00 25.00%

2205-225-350-557000 ASSETS-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $102,500.00 $3,133.67 $3,133.67 $99,366.33 $20,598.31 $78,768.02 23.15%

2205 Total: $102,500.00 $3,133.67 $3,133.67 $99,366.33 $20,598.31 $78,768.02 23.15%

2209 PERMISSIVE TAX FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

2209-225-350-554001 CONSTRUCTION-GENERAL $100,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 0.00%

2209-225-350-554002 CONSTRUCTION-GENERAL $240,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $240,000.00 $0.00 $240,000.00 0.00%

2209-225-350-554130 CONSTRUCTION-SPAULDIN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2209-225-350-557420 ASSETS-EQUIPMENT-HEAV $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $340,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $340,000.00 $0.00 $340,000.00 0.00%

Public Service

2209-345-350-582000 ADVANCES-OUT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2209-355-350-592090 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OTHE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2209 Total: $340,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $340,000.00 $0.00 $340,000.00 0.00%

2210 OPWC UNION SCHOOLHOUSE RD Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

2210-225-350-554010 CONSTRUCTION-OPWC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2210-250-350-577010 DEBT-LOANS-PRINCIPAL $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 0.00%

Public Service Totals: $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 0.00%

Public Service

2210-345-350-582000 ADVANCES-OUT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2210-355-350-592090 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OTHE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 10 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

2210 Total: $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 0.00%

2211 FEMA GRANT FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Finance

2211-355-200-592090 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OTHE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2211 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2212 GENERAL ASSESSMENTS Target Percent: 16.67%

Finance

2212-210-200-523010 FEES-AUDITOR/TREASURE $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0.00%

Finance Totals: $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0.00%

Finance

2212-215-200-531011 UTILITIES-ELECTRIC-STRE $115,000.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $105,500.00 $19,000.00 $86,500.00 24.78%

Finance Totals: $115,000.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $105,500.00 $19,000.00 $86,500.00 24.78%

Finance

2212-220-200-541080 CONTRACT SERVICES-TRA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance

2212-230-200-531012 UTILITIES-ELECTRIC-STRE $75,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $75,500.00 $0.00 $75,500.00 0.00%

Finance Totals: $75,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $75,500.00 $0.00 $75,500.00 0.00%

Finance

2212-345-200-582000 ADVANCES-OUT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance

2212-355-200-592090 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OTHE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2212 Total: $200,500.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $191,000.00 $19,000.00 $172,000.00 14.21%

2213 OPWC VALLEY PIKE FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

2213-225-350-554010 CONSTRUCTION-OPWC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2213-250-350-577010 DEBT-LOANS-PRINCIPAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2213-250-350-577200 DEBT-LOANS-INFRASTRUC $8,800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,800.00 $0.00 $8,800.00 0.00%

Public Service Totals: $8,800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,800.00 $0.00 $8,800.00 0.00%

Public Service

2213-345-350-582000 ADVANCES-OUT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2213-355-350-592090 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OTHE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2213 Total: $8,800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,800.00 $0.00 $8,800.00 0.00%

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 11 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

2214 OPWC NEEDMORE RD FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

2214-225-350-554010 CONSTRUCTION-OPWC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2214-250-350-577000 DEBT-LOANS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2214-250-350-577200 DEBT-LOANS-INFRASTRUC $11,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,500.00 $0.00 $11,500.00 0.00%

Public Service Totals: $11,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,500.00 $0.00 $11,500.00 0.00%

Finance

2214-345-200-582000 ADVANCES-OUT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2214 Total: $11,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,500.00 $0.00 $11,500.00 0.00%

2215 COUNTY GRANT FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Community Development

2215-225-300-534100 INFRASTRUCTURE-TRANSI $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2215-225-300-540000 CONTRACT SERVICES-GEN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2215-230-300-524131 ACTIVITIES-ECON DEV INC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2215-345-300-582000 ADVANCES-OUT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2215 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2216 BRANTWOOD II SUBDIVISION FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Community Development

2216-230-300-523010 FEES-AUDITOR/TREASURE $750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $750.00 $0.00 $750.00 0.00%

Community Development Totals: $750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $750.00 $0.00 $750.00 0.00%

Community Development

2216-240-300-551000 GENERAL-MISC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2216-255-300-577231 DEBT-LOANS-INFRASTRUC $52,050.00 $0.00 $0.00 $52,050.00 $0.00 $52,050.00 0.00%

Community Development Totals: $52,050.00 $0.00 $0.00 $52,050.00 $0.00 $52,050.00 0.00%

Community Development

2216-355-300-592090 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OTHE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2216 Total: $52,800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $52,800.00 $0.00 $52,800.00 0.00%

2218 BRANTWOOD SUBDIVISION FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Community Development

2218-210-300-523030 FEES-REAL ESTATE TAXES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 12 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2218-230-300-523010 FEES-AUDITOR/TREASURE $1,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,250.00 $0.00 $1,250.00 0.00%

Community Development Totals: $1,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,250.00 $0.00 $1,250.00 0.00%

Community Development

2218-240-300-551000 GENERAL-MISC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2218-255-300-577231 DEBT-LOANS-INFRASTRUC $94,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $94,750.00 $0.00 $94,750.00 0.00%

Community Development Totals: $94,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $94,750.00 $0.00 $94,750.00 0.00%

Community Development

2218-355-300-592090 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OTHE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2218 Total: $96,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $96,000.00 $0.00 $96,000.00 0.00%

2223 CDBG PROJECTS Target Percent: 16.67%

Community Development

2223-230-300-524101 ACTIVITIES-NUISANCE ABA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2223-230-300-524120 ACTIVITIES-PROPERTY AC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2223-230-300-524152 ACTIVITIES-NEIGHBORHOO $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2223-230-300-537200 ACTIVITIES-ASSET MAINT- $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2223-345-300-582000 ADVANCES-OUT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2223 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2228 VOCA/SVAA Target Percent: 16.67%

Special Operations

2228-215-454-511011 WAGES-FULL TIME REGUL $40,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40,200.00 $0.00 $40,200.00 0.00%

2228-215-454-512010 FRINGES-EMPLOYER PAID $5,700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,700.00 $0.00 $5,700.00 0.00%

2228-215-454-512020 FRINGES-WORKERS COMP $850.00 $0.00 $0.00 $850.00 $0.00 $850.00 0.00%

2228-215-454-512030 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $25,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,500.00 $0.00 $25,500.00 0.00%

2228-215-454-512040 FRINGES-EMPLOYER HEAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2228-215-454-512050 FRINGES-LIFE INSURANCE $120.00 $0.00 $0.00 $120.00 $0.00 $120.00 0.00%

2228-215-454-512060 FRINGES-MEDICARE $600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $600.00 $0.00 $600.00 0.00%

2228-215-454-521000 SUPPLIES-GENERAL $1,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 0.00%

2228-215-454-522020 PROF DEV-EDUCATION/TR $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2228-215-454-522051 PROF DEV-TRAVEL/TRANS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2228-215-454-523191 FEES-RETURN UNUSED GR $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2228-215-454-523192 FEES-RETURN UNUSED GR $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2228-215-454-524000 ACTIVITIES-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2228-215-454-531040 UTILITIES-TELECOM $660.00 $0.00 $0.00 $660.00 $0.00 $660.00 0.00%

Special Operations Totals: $74,830.00 $0.00 $0.00 $74,830.00 $0.00 $74,830.00 0.00%

Special Operations

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 13 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

2228-240-454-557400 ASSETS-EQUIPMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Special Operations Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2228 Total: $74,830.00 $0.00 $0.00 $74,830.00 $0.00 $74,830.00 0.00%

2229 FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION GRANTS Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

2229-240-350-554020 CONSTRUCTION-AIRWAY R $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2229-240-350-554030 CONSTRUCTION-E SPRING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2229-240-350-554060 CONSTRUCTION-W SPRIN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2229-240-350-554070 CONSTRUCTION-VALLEY S $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2229 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2231 STATE LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST Target Percent: 16.67%

Police

2231-215-450-521000 SUPPLIES-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2231-215-450-557400 ASSETS-EQUIPMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Police Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2231 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2232 FEDERAL EQUITABLE SHARING Target Percent: 16.67%

Police

2232-210-450-521000 SUPPLIES-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2232-210-450-557400 ASSETS-EQUIPMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Police Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2232 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2236 LOCAL CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Finance

2236-215-200-524000 ACTIVITIES-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2236 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2237 LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Finance

2237-210-200-524000 ACTIVITIES-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2237-210-300-541501 EXTERNAL STUDIES-PROP $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 100.00%

Community Development Totals: $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 100.00%

Public Service

2237-210-350-524173 ACTIVITIES-INSPECTIONS- $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2237-210-350-543000 CONTRACT SERVICES-ENG $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0.00%

2237-210-350-554041 CONSTRUCTION-EASTMAN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 14 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

2237-210-350-554051 CONSTRUCTION-LYNNHAV $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2237-210-350-554052 CONSTRUCTION-MEYER-S $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2237-210-350-554061 CONSTRUCTION-W SPRIN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0.00%

Community Services

2237-210-403-524244 ACTIVITIES-COMMUNITY P $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Services Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2237-225-350-253180 TECH ASSIST GRANT SS4A $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2237-225-350-553030 ENGINEERING-WOODMAN $28,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $28,000.00 $0.00 $28,000.00 0.00%

2237-225-350-554062 CONSTRUCTION-W SPRIN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2237-225-350-554080 CONSTRUCTION-OLENTAN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2237-225-350-554140 CONSTRUCTION-RT35/WO $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $28,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $28,000.00 $0.00 $28,000.00 0.00%

Public Service

2237-235-350-557420 ASSETS-EQUIPMENT-HEAV $40,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 0.00%

2237-235-350-557421 ASSETS-EQUIPMENT-HEAV $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $40,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 0.00%

Public Service

2237-240-350-554000 CONSTRUCTION-GENERAL $85,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $85,000.00 $32,944.00 $52,056.00 38.76%

2237-240-350-554030 CONSTRUCTION-E SPRING $85,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $85,000.00 $0.00 $85,000.00 0.00%

2237-240-350-554060 CONSTRUCTION-W SPRIN $250,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $250,000.00 $0.00 $250,000.00 0.00%

2237-240-350-554110 CONSTRUCTION-HARSHMA $345,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $345,000.00 $0.00 $345,000.00 0.00%

2237-240-350-554120 CONSTRUCTION-SPINNING $149,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $149,000.00 $0.00 $149,000.00 0.00%

Public Service Totals: $914,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $914,000.00 $32,944.00 $881,056.00 3.60%

2237 Total: $1,013,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $1,007,000.00 $32,944.00 $974,056.00 3.84%

2402 WRIGHT POINT FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Community Development

2402-210-300-521010 SUPPLIES-POSTAGE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2402-210-300-523020 FEES-INSURANCE/BONDS $22,655.00 $0.00 $0.00 $22,655.00 $0.00 $22,655.00 0.00%

2402-210-300-523030 FEES-REAL ESTATE TAXES $154,000.00 $71,156.15 $71,156.15 $82,843.85 $0.00 $82,843.85 46.21%

2402-210-300-523110 FEES-PROPERTY MANAGE $33,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,000.00 $8,000.00 $25,000.00 24.24%

2402-210-300-523120 FEES-COMMISSIONS $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $3,750.00 $11,250.00 25.00%

2402-210-300-524020 ACTIVITIES-ADVERTISING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2402-210-300-524050 ACTIVITIES-CLAIMS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2402-210-300-531010 UTILITIES-ELECTRIC $152,074.49 $0.00 $0.00 $152,074.49 $45,000.00 $107,074.49 29.59%

2402-210-300-531020 UTILITIES-GAS $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $7,500.00 $22,500.00 25.00%

2402-210-300-531030 UTILITIES-WATER/SEWER $8,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $2,000.00 $6,000.00 25.00%

2402-210-300-531040 UTILITIES-TELECOM $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $3,000.00 $9,000.00 25.00%

2402-210-300-531050 UTILITIES-MISC $8,700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,700.00 $2,000.00 $6,700.00 22.99%

2402-210-300-540000 CONTRACT SERVICES-GEN $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0.00%

2402-210-300-541000 CONTRACT SERVICES-ARC $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,500.00 40.00%

2402-210-300-541060 CONTRACT SERVICES-LEG $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $2,500.00 $7,500.00 25.00%

2402-210-300-547600 CONTRACT SERVICES-ASS $150,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 $37,500.00 $112,500.00 25.00%

Community Development Totals: $607,929.49 $71,156.15 $71,156.15 $536,773.34 $112,250.00 $424,523.34 30.17%

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 15 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

Community Development

2402-240-300-557610 ASSETS-FACILITIES-1791 H $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2402-240-300-557620 ASSETS-FACILITIES-WRIGH $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $6,200.00 $18,800.00 24.80%

2402-240-300-557630 ASSETS-FACILITIES-WRIGH $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $6,200.00 $18,800.00 24.80%

Community Development

2402-250-300-571010 DEBT-GENERAL-PRINCIPAL $4,900,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,900,000.00 $0.00 $4,900,000.00 0.00%

Community Development Totals: $4,900,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,900,000.00 $0.00 $4,900,000.00 0.00%

Community Development

2402-255-300-571020 DEBT-GENERAL-INTEREST $85,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $85,750.00 $0.00 $85,750.00 0.00%

Community Development Totals: $85,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $85,750.00 $0.00 $85,750.00 0.00%

Community Development

2402-355-300-592090 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OTHE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2402 Total: $5,618,679.49 $71,156.15 $71,156.15 $5,547,523.34 $118,450.00 $5,429,073.34 3.37%

2404 EINTRACHT FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Community Development

2404-210-300-524020 ACTIVITIES-ADVERTISING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2404-210-300-540000 CONTRACT SERVICES-GEN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2404-230-300-524140 ACTIVITIES-BUSINESS RET $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2404-240-300-551000 GENERAL-MISC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2404-240-300-551010 GENERAL-PROPERTY ACQ $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2404-345-300-582000 ADVANCES-OUT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2404-355-300-592090 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OTHE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2404 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2406 CENTER OF FLIGHT Target Percent: 16.67%

Community Development

2406-230-300-523010 FEES-AUDITOR/TREASURE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2406-230-300-523020 FEES-INSURANCE/BONDS $408.00 $0.00 $0.00 $408.00 $0.00 $408.00 0.00%

2406-230-300-523030 FEES-REAL ESTATE TAXES $1,500.00 $536.51 $536.51 $963.49 $0.00 $963.49 35.77%

2406-230-300-523110 FEES-PROPERTY MANAGE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2406-230-300-523170 FEES-RELEASE DEPOSITS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2406-230-300-524020 ACTIVITIES-ADVERTISING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2406-230-300-531010 UTILITIES-ELECTRIC $900.00 $49.56 $49.56 $850.44 $100.00 $750.44 16.62%

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 16 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

2406-230-300-531030 UTILITIES-WATER/SEWER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2406-230-300-531050 UTILITIES-MISC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2406-230-300-533000 ACTIVITIES-INTERNAL ENG $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2406-230-300-540000 CONTRACT SERVICES-GEN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2406-230-300-541060 CONTRACT SERVICES-LEG $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2406-230-300-547600 CONTRACT SERVICES-ASS $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

Community Development Totals: $3,808.00 $586.07 $586.07 $3,221.93 $100.00 $3,121.93 18.02%

Community Development

2406-240-300-551010 GENERAL-PROPERTY ACQ $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2406-250-300-575411 DEBT-NOTES-PROPERTY/F $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2406-250-300-577411 DEBT-LOANS-PROPERTY/F $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2406-255-300-573412 DEBT-BONDS-PROPERTY/F $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2406-355-300-592090 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OTHE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2406 Total: $3,808.00 $586.07 $586.07 $3,221.93 $100.00 $3,121.93 18.02%

2407 AIRWAY/WOODMAN IMPROVEMT FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Community Development

2407-210-300-523010 FEES-AUDITOR/TREASURE $650.00 $0.00 $0.00 $650.00 $0.00 $650.00 0.00%

2407-210-300-524020 ACTIVITIES-ADVERTISING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2407-210-300-540000 CONTRACT SERVICES-GEN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2407-210-300-541000 CONTRACT SERVICES-ARC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2407-210-300-541060 CONTRACT SERVICES-LEG $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $650.00 $0.00 $0.00 $650.00 $0.00 $650.00 0.00%

Community Development

2407-355-300-592090 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OTHE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2407 Total: $650.00 $0.00 $0.00 $650.00 $0.00 $650.00 0.00%

2410 FIRE/EMS & POLICE INCOME TAX Target Percent: 16.67%

Finance

2410-215-200-523040 FEES-INCOME TAX COLLE $208,000.00 $0.00 $18,996.00 $189,004.00 $0.00 $189,004.00 9.13%

Finance Totals: $208,000.00 $0.00 $18,996.00 $189,004.00 $0.00 $189,004.00 9.13%

Finance

2410-355-200-592010 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO FIRE $1,781,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,781,000.00 $0.00 $1,781,000.00 0.00%

2410-355-200-592030 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO POLI $3,211,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,211,000.00 $0.00 $3,211,000.00 0.00%

Finance Totals: $4,992,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,992,000.00 $0.00 $4,992,000.00 0.00%

2410 Total: $5,200,000.00 $0.00 $18,996.00 $5,181,004.00 $0.00 $5,181,004.00 0.37%

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 17 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

2600 CEMETERY FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

2600-220-350-524000 ACTIVITIES-GENERAL $7,750.00 $1,497.95 $1,497.95 $6,252.05 $752.05 $5,500.00 29.03%

2600-220-350-537600 ACTIVITIES-ASSET MAINT-F $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $7,750.00 $1,497.95 $1,497.95 $6,252.05 $752.05 $5,500.00 29.03%

2600 Total: $7,750.00 $1,497.95 $1,497.95 $6,252.05 $752.05 $5,500.00 29.03%

2803 CONTINGENCY RESERVE FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Finance

2803-210-200-524220 ACTIVITIES-ACCOUNTING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance

2803-355-200-592090 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OTHE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2803 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

3300 G.O. DEBT RETIREMENT Target Percent: 16.67%

Finance

3300-250-200-573010 DEBT-BONDS-PRINCIPAL $98,000.00 $0.00 $16,722.54 $81,277.46 $0.00 $81,277.46 17.06%

3300-250-200-573210 DEBT-BONDS-INFRASTRUC $73,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $73,500.00 $0.00 $73,500.00 0.00%

3300-250-200-573220 DEBT-BONDS-INFRASTRUC $99,125.00 $0.00 $0.00 $99,125.00 $0.00 $99,125.00 0.00%

3300-250-200-577210 DEBT-LOANS-INFRASTRUC $56,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $56,250.00 $0.00 $56,250.00 0.00%

3300-250-200-577220 DEBT-LOANS-INFRASTRUC $11,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,000.00 $0.00 $11,000.00 0.00%

Finance Totals: $337,875.00 $0.00 $16,722.54 $321,152.46 $0.00 $321,152.46 4.95%

Finance

3300-255-200-573020 DEBT-BONDS-INTEREST $17,000.00 $0.00 $904.60 $16,095.40 $0.00 $16,095.40 5.32%

Finance Totals: $17,000.00 $0.00 $904.60 $16,095.40 $0.00 $16,095.40 5.32%

3300 Total: $354,875.00 $0.00 $17,627.14 $337,247.86 $0.00 $337,247.86 4.97%

4405 DANIS LAND ACQUISITION Target Percent: 16.67%

Community Development

4405-355-300-592090 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OTHE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4405 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702 CAPITAL INFRASTRUCTURE FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

4702-225-350-534011 INFRASTRUCTURE-MILL/FI $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-225-350-534012 INFRASTRUCTURE-MILL/FI $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-225-350-534020 INFRASTRUCTURE-CRACK $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-225-350-534031 INFRASTRUCTURE-PAVING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-225-350-534040 INFRASTRUCTURE-TRAFFI $25,000.00 $5,815.25 $12,848.75 $12,151.25 $684.75 $11,466.50 54.13%

4702-225-350-534050 INFRASTRUCTURE-TRAFFI $25,000.00 $6,827.79 $6,827.79 $18,172.21 $5,422.21 $12,750.00 49.00%

4702-225-350-534060 INFRASTRUCTURE-BRIDGE $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 0.00%

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 18 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

4702-225-350-534070 INFRASTRUCTURE-GUARD $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 0.00%

4702-225-350-534081 INFRASTRUCTURE-ROW A $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-225-350-534100 INFRASTRUCTURE-TRANSI $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $80,000.00 $12,643.04 $19,676.54 $60,323.46 $6,106.96 $54,216.50 32.23%

Public Service

4702-240-350-523180 FEES-GRANT APPLICATION $35,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,000.00 $18,500.00 $16,500.00 52.86%

4702-240-350-551030 GENERAL-PROPERTY ACQ $58,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $58,000.00 $0.00 $58,000.00 0.00%

4702-240-350-553000 ENGINEERING-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-240-350-553001 ENGINEERING-GENERAL-I $50,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 0.00%

4702-240-350-553002 ENGINEERING-GENERAL-E $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0.00%

4702-240-350-553010 ENGINEERING-EASTMAN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-240-350-553020 ENGINEERING-SPINNING P $26,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $26,000.00 $10,700.00 $15,300.00 41.15%

4702-240-350-553030 ENGINEERING-WOODMAN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-240-350-553040 ENGINEERING-LYNNHAVE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-240-350-553050 ENGINEERING-NEEDMORE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-240-350-554040 CONSTRUCTION-EASTMAN $0.00 $0.00 $7,172.77 ($7,172.77) $0.00 ($7,172.77) N/A

4702-240-350-554050 CONSTRUCTION-LYNNHAV $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-240-350-554060 CONSTRUCTION-W SPRIN $0.00 $0.00 $122,277.28 ($122,277.28) $0.00 ($122,277.28) N/A

4702-240-350-554080 CONSTRUCTION-OLENTAN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-240-350-554090 CONSTRUCTION-NEEDMO $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-240-350-554100 CONSTRUCTION-BURKHAR $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-240-350-554110 CONSTRUCTION-HARSHMA $329,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $329,000.00 $0.00 $329,000.00 0.00%

4702-240-350-554120 CONSTRUCTION-SPINNING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $503,000.00 $0.00 $129,450.05 $373,549.95 $29,200.00 $344,349.95 31.54%

Public Service

4702-345-350-582000 ADVANCES-OUT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

4702-355-350-592040 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO DEBT $240,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $240,750.00 $0.00 $240,750.00 0.00%

4702-355-350-592090 TRANSFERS-OUT-TO OTHE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $240,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $240,750.00 $0.00 $240,750.00 0.00%

4702 Total: $823,750.00 $12,643.04 $149,126.59 $674,623.41 $35,306.96 $639,316.45 22.39%

4703 CAPITAL EQUIP IMPROVEMENT FD Target Percent: 16.67%

Administration

4703-240-150-551000 GENERAL-MISC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4703-240-150-557010 ASSETS-GENERAL-INFORM $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Administration Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

4703-240-350-551000 GENERAL-MISC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4703-240-350-557200 ASSETS-PARKS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Fire

4703-240-400-551000 GENERAL-MISC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Fire Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Police

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 19 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

4703-240-450-551000 GENERAL-MISC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Police Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

4703-245-300-575410 DEBT-NOTES-PROPERTY/F $56,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $56,250.00 $0.00 $56,250.00 0.00%

Community Development Totals: $56,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $56,250.00 $0.00 $56,250.00 0.00%

Public Service

4703-245-350-573210 DEBT-BONDS-INFRASTRUC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4703-245-350-573220 DEBT-BONDS-INFRASTRUC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4703-245-350-577210 DEBT-LOANS-INFRASTRUC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4703-245-350-577220 DEBT-LOANS-INFRASTRUC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4703-245-350-577650 DEBT-LOANS-FLEET-3 DUM $35,295.52 $0.00 $0.00 $35,295.52 $0.00 $35,295.52 0.00%

4703-245-350-577660 DEBT-LOANS-FLEET-BACK $19,755.06 $19,755.06 $19,755.06 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 100.00%

4703-245-350-577670 DEBT-LOANS-FLEET-DUMP $36,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $36,000.00 $0.00 $36,000.00 0.00%

4703-245-350-577680 DEBT-LOANS-FLEET-ST SW $47,085.00 $23,541.34 $23,541.34 $23,543.66 $0.00 $23,543.66 50.00%

4703-245-350-577690 DEBT-LOANS-FLEET-STRE $38,546.22 $0.00 $19,273.11 $19,273.11 $0.00 $19,273.11 50.00%

Public Service Totals: $176,681.80 $43,296.40 $62,569.51 $114,112.29 $0.00 $114,112.29 35.41%

Fire

4703-245-400-577610 DEBT-LOANS-FLEET-2021 A $56,498.92 $0.00 $28,249.46 $28,249.46 $0.00 $28,249.46 50.00%

4703-245-400-577620 DEBT-LOANS-FLEET-2022 A $57,609.11 $0.00 $0.00 $57,609.11 $0.00 $57,609.11 0.00%

4703-245-400-577630 DEBT-LOANS-FLEET-FIRE E $111,952.89 $0.00 $55,976.45 $55,976.44 $0.00 $55,976.44 50.00%

4703-245-400-577810 DEBT-LOANS-EQUIPMENT- $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Fire Totals: $226,060.92 $0.00 $84,225.91 $141,835.01 $0.00 $141,835.01 37.26%

Police

4703-245-450-577640 DEBT-LOANS-FLEET-CRUIS $14,300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,300.00 $0.00 $14,300.00 0.00%

Police Totals: $14,300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,300.00 $0.00 $14,300.00 0.00%

4703 Total: $473,292.72 $43,296.40 $146,795.42 $326,497.30 $0.00 $326,497.30 31.02%

7804 INSURANCE DEPOSITS Target Percent: 16.67%

Fire

7804-210-400-523171 FEES-RELEASE DEPOSITS- $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0.00%

Fire Totals: $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0.00%

7804 Total: $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0.00%

9999 Payroll Clearing Fund Target Percent: 16.67%

division: 000

9999-000-000-950000 Standard $0.00 $9,509.79 $13,670.49 ($13,670.49) $0.00 ($13,670.49) N/A

9999-000-000-950001 Federal Tax $0.00 $42,529.03 $61,717.57 ($61,717.57) $0.00 ($61,717.57) N/A

9999-000-000-950002 State Tax $0.00 $10,669.73 $15,650.22 ($15,650.22) $0.00 ($15,650.22) N/A

9999-000-000-950003 County Tax $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

9999-000-000-950004 City Tax $0.00 $11,446.59 $17,037.79 ($17,037.79) $0.00 ($17,037.79) N/A

9999-000-000-950005 School Tax $0.00 $1,057.72 $1,569.57 ($1,569.57) $0.00 ($1,569.57) N/A

9999-000-000-950006 Medicare $0.00 $6,638.99 $9,881.84 ($9,881.84) $0.00 ($9,881.84) N/A

9999-000-000-950007 Fica $0.00 $1,706.10 $2,640.72 ($2,640.72) $0.00 ($2,640.72) N/A

9999-000-000-950008 Pension $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

9999-000-000-950009 Pension Buy Back $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 20 of 21 V.3.5



Expense Report for Current Year

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Expense YTD Expense UnExp. Balance Encumbrance Unenc. Balance % Used

9999-000-000-950011 Deferred Compensation $0.00 $17,053.44 $25,687.66 ($25,687.66) $0.00 ($25,687.66) N/A

9999-000-000-950012 Section 125 $0.00 $80.47 $7,972.96 ($7,972.96) $0.00 ($7,972.96) N/A

9999-000-000-950013 Medical R125 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

9999-000-000-950014 ChildCare 125 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

9999-000-000-950015 HSA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

9999-000-000-950016 Garnishment Of Disposable E $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

9999-000-000-950017 Garnishment Of Gross $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

9999-000-000-950018 Union Dues $0.00 $3,112.06 $5,056.56 ($5,056.56) $0.00 ($5,056.56) N/A

9999-000-000-950099 Payroll Clearing Fund Default $0.00 $304,634.09 $454,286.53 ($454,286.53) $0.00 ($454,286.53) N/A

division: 000 Totals: $0.00 $408,438.01 $615,171.91 ($615,171.91) $0.00 ($615,171.91) N/A

9999 Total: $0.00 $408,438.01 $615,171.91 ($615,171.91) $0.00 ($615,171.91) N/A

Grand Total: $29,684,906.53 $1,263,298.15 $3,442,795.44 $26,242,111.09 $898,188.39 $25,343,922.70 14.62%

Target Percent: 16.67%

2/24/2023 10:23 AM Page 21 of 21 V.3.5



 
REVENUE 

REPORT 



CITY OF RIVERSIDE

Revenue Report
Accounts: 1100-000-000-101000 to 9999-000-000-950099

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023 Include Inactive Accounts: No

Account Description Budget MTD Revenue YTD Revenue Uncollected % Collected

1100 GENERAL FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Finance

1100-110-200-411010 TAXES-INCOME $3,400,000.00 $0.00 $427,216.17 $2,972,783.83 12.57%

1100-110-200-411011 TAXES-INCOME-RETAINER REFUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $3,400,000.00 $0.00 $427,216.17 $2,972,783.83 12.57%

Finance

1100-115-200-411021 TAXES-PROPERTY-REAL ESTATE $365,000.00 $0.00 $6,220.67 $358,779.33 1.70%

1100-115-200-411030 TAXES-HOTEL/MOTEL $70,000.00 $0.00 $11,719.04 $58,280.96 16.74%

Finance Totals: $435,000.00 $0.00 $17,939.71 $417,060.29 4.12%

Finance

1100-120-200-431094 FEES-APPLICATION/REGISTRATION-RE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

1100-120-300-431030 FEES-DEVELOPMENT REVIEW $20,000.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $17,500.00 12.50%

1100-120-300-431040 FEES-TAX INCENTIVES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-120-300-431091 FEES-APPLICATION/REGISTRATION-BZ $3,750.00 $0.00 $400.00 $3,350.00 10.67%

1100-120-300-431092 FEES-APPLICATION/REGISTRATION-PL $7,500.00 $0.00 $800.00 $6,700.00 10.67%

1100-120-300-431093 FEES-APPLICATION/REGISTRATION-VA $8,000.00 $0.00 $1,576.00 $6,424.00 19.70%

1100-120-300-431130 FEES-NUISANCE ABATEMENT $25,000.00 $0.00 $3,240.40 $21,759.60 12.96%

Community Development Totals: $64,250.00 $0.00 $8,516.40 $55,733.60 13.26%

Finance

1100-125-200-431050 FEES-CIVIL WEDDING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-125-200-431060 FEES-FRANCHISE $257,000.00 $0.00 $4,969.38 $252,030.62 1.93%

1100-125-200-431080 FEES-CREDIT CARD CONVENIENCE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $257,000.00 $0.00 $4,969.38 $252,030.62 1.93%

Community Development

1100-125-300-431070 FEES-PERMITS $25,000.00 $0.00 $1,407.00 $23,593.00 5.63%

1100-125-300-431130 FEES-NUISANCE ABATEMENT $650.00 $0.00 $150.00 $500.00 23.08%

Community Development Totals: $25,650.00 $0.00 $1,557.00 $24,093.00 6.07%

Public Service

1100-125-350-431072 FEES-PERMITS-PARK $1,500.00 $0.00 $25.00 $1,475.00 1.67%

Public Service Totals: $1,500.00 $0.00 $25.00 $1,475.00 1.67%

Community Development

1100-130-300-435001 FEES-FINES-ZONING $1,000.00 $0.00 $120.00 $880.00 12.00%

Community Development Totals: $1,000.00 $0.00 $120.00 $880.00 12.00%

Finance

1100-135-200-411023 TAXES-PROPERTY-HOMESTEAD ROLL $60,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $60,000.00 0.00%

1100-135-200-411040 TAXES-ESTATE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-135-200-411070 TAXES-CIGARETTE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2/24/2023 10:25 AM Page 1 of 12 V.3.7



Revenue Report

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Revenue YTD Revenue Uncollected % Collected

1100-135-200-431071 FEES-PERMITS-LIQUOR $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0.00%

1100-135-200-451010 MISC-COUNTY-LOCAL SHARING $350,000.00 $0.00 $29,457.81 $320,542.19 8.42%

1100-135-200-451020 MISC-STATE-LOCAL SHARING $125,000.00 $0.00 $9,910.79 $115,089.21 7.93%

1100-135-200-460000 GRANTS-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100-135-200-464040 GRANTS-STATE-SAFE ROUTES TO SC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $540,000.00 $0.00 $39,368.60 $500,631.40 7.29%

Community Development

1100-135-300-461010 GRANTS-LOCAL-WELLFIELD $90,000.00 $0.00 $89,773.00 $227.00 99.75%

Community Development Totals: $90,000.00 $0.00 $89,773.00 $227.00 99.75%

Finance

1100-145-200-455010 MISC-INTEREST $1,000.00 $0.00 ($1,523.61) $2,523.61 -152.36%

Finance Totals: $1,000.00 $0.00 ($1,523.61) $2,523.61 -152.36%

Finance

1100-155-200-455030 MISC-DONATIONS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance

1100-165-200-450000 MISC-GENERAL $30,000.00 $0.00 $10,587.61 $19,412.39 35.29%

1100-165-200-455020 MISC-SALE OF PROPERTY $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $30,000.00 $0.00 $10,587.61 $19,412.39 35.29%

Finance

1100-310-200-472000 DEBT-NOTE PROCEEDS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance

1100-340-200-481000 ADVANCES-IN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance

1100-350-200-491010 TRANSFERS-IN-INTO GF $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

1100 Total: $4,845,400.00 $0.00 $598,549.26 $4,246,850.74 12.35%

2201 FIRE FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Fire

2201-115-400-411021 TAXES-PROPERTY-REAL ESTATE $615,000.00 $0.00 $9,839.70 $605,160.30 1.60%

2201-115-400-411022 TAXES-PROPERTY-TPP $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Fire Totals: $615,000.00 $0.00 $9,839.70 $605,160.30 1.60%

Fire

2201-120-400-431020 FEES-EMS BILLING $784,000.00 $0.00 $70,589.23 $713,410.77 9.00%

2201-120-400-431101 FEES-REPORTS-FIRE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Fire Totals: $784,000.00 $0.00 $70,589.23 $713,410.77 9.00%

Fire

2201-135-400-411023 TAXES-PROPERTY-HOMESTEAD ROLL $92,533.29 $0.00 $0.00 $92,533.29 0.00%

2201-135-400-460000 GRANTS-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2201-135-400-465011 GRANTS-FEDERAL-FEMA-SAFER $21,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $21,000.00 0.00%

2201-135-400-465012 GRANTS-FEDERAL-FEMA-ASSISTANCE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Fire Totals: $113,533.29 $0.00 $0.00 $113,533.29 0.00%

Fire

2/24/2023 10:25 AM Page 2 of 12 V.3.7



Revenue Report

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Revenue YTD Revenue Uncollected % Collected

2201-155-400-455030 MISC-DONATIONS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Fire Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Fire

2201-165-400-450000 MISC-GENERAL $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0.00%

2201-165-400-453010 MISC-PROPERTY DAMAGE REIMB $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Fire Totals: $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0.00%

Fire

2201-340-400-481000 ADVANCES-IN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Fire Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Fire

2201-350-400-491020 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM GF $464,500.00 $0.00 $54,860.00 $409,640.00 11.81%

2201-350-400-491030 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM POLICE/FIRE IN $1,781,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,781,000.00 0.00%

Fire Totals: $2,245,500.00 $0.00 $54,860.00 $2,190,640.00 2.44%

2201 Total: $3,768,033.29 $0.00 $135,288.93 $3,632,744.36 3.59%

2202 STREET FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

2202-125-350-431070 FEES-PERMITS $3,000.00 $0.00 $300.00 $2,700.00 10.00%

Public Service Totals: $3,000.00 $0.00 $300.00 $2,700.00 10.00%

Public Service

2202-135-350-411050 TAXES-GASOLINE $457,700.00 $0.00 $37,771.02 $419,928.98 8.25%

2202-135-350-411060 TAXES-MOTOR VEHICLE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $457,700.00 $0.00 $37,771.02 $419,928.98 8.25%

Public Service

2202-140-350-424000 ASSESSMENTS-CURB/DRIVE $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 0.00%

Public Service Totals: $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 0.00%

Public Service

2202-145-350-455010 MISC-INTEREST $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2202-165-350-431130 FEES-NUISANCE ABATEMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2202-165-350-433010 FEES-CONTRACT SERVICES-WATER M $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2202-165-350-450000 MISC-GENERAL $5,600.00 $0.00 $177.00 $5,423.00 3.16%

2202-165-350-453010 MISC-PROPERTY DAMAGE REIMB $50,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 0.00%

Public Service Totals: $55,600.00 $0.00 $177.00 $55,423.00 0.32%

Public Service

2202-350-350-491020 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM GF $1,290,350.00 $0.00 $322,585.00 $967,765.00 25.00%

2202-350-350-491040 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM OTHER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $1,290,350.00 $0.00 $322,585.00 $967,765.00 25.00%

2202 Total: $1,821,650.00 $0.00 $360,833.02 $1,460,816.98 19.81%

2203 POLICE FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Police

2203-115-450-411021 TAXES-PROPERTY-REAL ESTATE $1,200,000.00 $0.00 $17,926.99 $1,182,073.01 1.49%

2203-115-450-411022 TAXES-PROPERTY-TPP $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Police Totals: $1,200,000.00 $0.00 $17,926.99 $1,182,073.01 1.49%

2/24/2023 10:25 AM Page 3 of 12 V.3.7



Revenue Report

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Revenue YTD Revenue Uncollected % Collected

Police

2203-120-450-431000 FEES-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2203-120-450-431103 FEES-REPORTS-POLICE $100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 0.00%

2203-120-450-431110 FEES-PRISONER TRANSPORT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2203-120-450-452010 MISC-REFUNDS-TOW CONTRACT REB $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0.00%

Police Totals: $10,100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,100.00 0.00%

Police

2203-130-450-435001 FEES-FINES-ZONING $16,000.00 $0.00 $1,030.00 $14,970.00 6.44%

2203-130-450-435003 FEES-FINES-DUI $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00%

Police Totals: $16,500.00 $0.00 $1,030.00 $15,470.00 6.24%

Police

2203-135-450-411023 TAXES-PROPERTY-HOMESTEAD ROLL $185,905.63 $0.00 $0.00 $185,905.63 0.00%

2203-135-450-460000 GRANTS-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $80,250.00 ($80,250.00) N/A

2203-135-450-464050 GRANTS-STATE-BULLETPROOF VEST $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2203-135-450-464060 GRANTS-STATE-SCHOOL RESOURCE $70,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $70,000.00 0.00%

2203-135-450-464070 GRANTS-STATE-BODY CAM $0.00 $0.00 $32,493.24 ($32,493.24) N/A

2203-135-450-464080 GRANTS-STATE-IDEP/STEP $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 0.00%

Police Totals: $270,905.63 $0.00 $112,743.24 $158,162.39 41.62%

Police

2203-155-450-455030 MISC-DONATIONS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2203-155-450-455031 MISC-DONATIONS-K9 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Police Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Police

2203-165-450-450000 MISC-GENERAL $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0.00%

2203-165-450-453010 MISC-PROPERTY DAMAGE REIMB $1,990.21 $0.00 $0.00 $1,990.21 0.00%

2203-165-450-453020 MISC-PROF TRAINING REIMB $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Police Totals: $11,990.21 $0.00 $0.00 $11,990.21 0.00%

Police

2203-350-450-491020 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM GF $119,000.00 $0.00 $29,750.00 $89,250.00 25.00%

2203-350-450-491030 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM POLICE/FIRE IN $3,211,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,211,000.00 0.00%

2203-350-450-491040 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM OTHER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Police Totals: $3,330,000.00 $0.00 $29,750.00 $3,300,250.00 0.89%

2203 Total: $4,839,495.84 $0.00 $161,450.23 $4,678,045.61 3.34%

2205 STATE HIGHWAY FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

2205-135-350-411050 TAXES-GASOLINE $92,480.57 $0.00 $7,631.78 $84,848.79 8.25%

2205-135-350-411060 TAXES-MOTOR VEHICLE $13,385.81 $0.00 $960.24 $12,425.57 7.17%

Public Service Totals: $105,866.38 $0.00 $8,592.02 $97,274.36 8.12%

Public Service

2205-145-350-455010 MISC-INTEREST $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2205-165-350-453010 MISC-PROPERTY DAMAGE REIMB $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2205 Total: $105,866.38 $0.00 $8,592.02 $97,274.36 8.12%

2/24/2023 10:25 AM Page 4 of 12 V.3.7



Revenue Report

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Revenue YTD Revenue Uncollected % Collected

2209 PERMISSIVE TAX FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

2209-135-350-411080 TAXES-PERMISSIVE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2209-135-350-411081 TAXES-PERMISSIVE-COUNTY $85,000.00 $0.00 $146,662.56 ($61,662.56) 172.54%

2209-135-350-411082 TAXES-PERMISSIVE-STATE $291,977.61 $0.00 $22,933.11 $269,044.50 7.85%

Public Service Totals: $376,977.61 $0.00 $169,595.67 $207,381.94 44.99%

Public Service

2209-340-350-481000 ADVANCES-IN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2209 Total: $376,977.61 $0.00 $169,595.67 $207,381.94 44.99%

2210 OPWC UNION SCHOOLHOUSE RD Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

2210-135-350-464500 GRANTS-STATE-OPWC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2210-340-350-481000 ADVANCES-IN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2210-350-350-491000 TRANSFERS-IN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2210-350-350-491020 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM GF $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2210 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2211 FEMA GRANT FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Finance

2211-135-200-464010 GRANTS-STATE-FEMA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2211-135-200-465010 GRANTS-FEDERAL-FEMA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2211 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2212 GENERAL ASSESSMENTS Target Percent: 16.67%

Finance

2212-140-200-421000 ASSESSMENTS-LIGHTING $123,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $123,000.00 0.00%

2212-140-200-422000 ASSESSMENTS-TRASH COLLECTION $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2212-140-200-423000 ASSESSMENTS-ESID $79,115.00 $0.00 $0.00 $79,115.00 0.00%

Finance Totals: $202,115.00 $0.00 $0.00 $202,115.00 0.00%

Finance

2212-165-200-450000 MISC-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance

2212-340-200-481000 ADVANCES-IN $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 ($50,000.00) N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 ($50,000.00) N/A

Finance

2212-350-200-491020 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM GF $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2/24/2023 10:25 AM Page 5 of 12 V.3.7



Revenue Report

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Revenue YTD Revenue Uncollected % Collected

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2212 Total: $202,115.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $152,115.00 24.74%

2213 OPWC VALLEY PIKE FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

2213-135-350-464500 GRANTS-STATE-OPWC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2213-340-350-481000 ADVANCES-IN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2213-350-350-491000 TRANSFERS-IN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2213-350-350-491020 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM GF $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2213 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2214 OPWC NEEDMORE RD FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

2214-135-350-464500 GRANTS-STATE-OPWC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2214-340-350-481000 ADVANCES-IN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2214-350-350-491040 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM OTHER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2214 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2215 COUNTY GRANT FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Community Development

2215-135-300-460000 GRANTS-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2215-135-300-462010 GRANTS-COUNTY-EDGE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2215-135-300-463010 GRANTS-REGIONAL-RTA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2215-340-300-481000 ADVANCES-IN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2215-350-300-491040 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM OTHER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2215 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2216 BRANTWOOD II SUBDIVISION FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Community Development

2216-135-300-411023 TAXES-PROPERTY-HOMESTEAD ROLL $2,800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,800.00 0.00%

Community Development Totals: $2,800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,800.00 0.00%

2/24/2023 10:25 AM Page 6 of 12 V.3.7



Revenue Report

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Revenue YTD Revenue Uncollected % Collected

Community Development

2216-145-300-455010 MISC-INTEREST $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2216-160-300-411024 TAXES-PROPERTY-TIF $50,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 0.00%

Community Development Totals: $50,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 0.00%

Community Development

2216-165-300-454020 MISC-CONSTRUCTION ESCROW $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2216-350-300-491040 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM OTHER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2216 Total: $52,800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $52,800.00 0.00%

2218 BRANTWOOD SUBDIVISION FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Community Development

2218-135-300-411023 TAXES-PROPERTY-HOMESTEAD ROLL $6,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 0.00%

Community Development Totals: $6,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 0.00%

Community Development

2218-145-300-455010 MISC-INTEREST $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2218-160-300-411024 TAXES-PROPERTY-TIF $90,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $90,000.00 0.00%

Community Development Totals: $90,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $90,000.00 0.00%

Community Development

2218-165-300-454020 MISC-CONSTRUCTION ESCROW $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2218 Total: $96,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $96,000.00 0.00%

2219 DRUG LAW FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Police

2219-130-450-435002 FEES-FINES-DRUG LAW $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Police Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2219 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2223 CDBG PROJECTS Target Percent: 16.67%

Community Development

2223-135-300-462020 GRANTS-COUNTY-CDBG $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2223-340-300-481000 ADVANCES-IN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2223-350-300-491000 TRANSFERS-IN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2/24/2023 10:25 AM Page 7 of 12 V.3.7



Revenue Report

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Revenue YTD Revenue Uncollected % Collected

2223 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2227 ONEOHIO OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Police

2227-135-450-464090 GRANTS-STATE-ONEOHIO OPIOID SET $0.00 $0.00 $15,814.34 ($15,814.34) N/A

Police Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $15,814.34 ($15,814.34) N/A

2227 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $15,814.34 ($15,814.34) N/A

2228 VOCA/SVAA Target Percent: 16.67%

Special Operations

2228-135-454-464020 GRANTS-STATE-SVAA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2228-135-454-464030 GRANTS-STATE-VOCA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Special Operations Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Special Operations

2228-165-454-450000 MISC-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Special Operations Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Special Operations

2228-350-454-491020 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM GF $75,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $75,000.00 0.00%

Special Operations Totals: $75,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $75,000.00 0.00%

2228 Total: $75,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $75,000.00 0.00%

2229 FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION GRANTS Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

2229-135-350-465050 GRANTS-FEDERAL-TEA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2229-350-350-491040 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM OTHER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2229 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2231 STATE LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST Target Percent: 16.67%

Police

2231-135-450-460000 GRANTS-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $5,778.75 ($5,778.75) N/A

Police Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $5,778.75 ($5,778.75) N/A

2231 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $5,778.75 ($5,778.75) N/A

2232 FEDERAL EQUITABLE SHARING Target Percent: 16.67%

Police

2232-135-450-460000 GRANTS-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2232-135-450-465000 GRANTS-FEDERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Police Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2232 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2236 LOCAL CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Finance

2236-215-200-465020 GRANTS-FEDERAL-CARES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2/24/2023 10:25 AM Page 8 of 12 V.3.7



Revenue Report

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Revenue YTD Revenue Uncollected % Collected

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2236 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2237 LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Finance

2237-135-200-465030 GRANTS-FEDERAL-ARPA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2237 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2402 WRIGHT POINT FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Community Development

2402-150-300-431010 FEES-RENTS/LEASES $737,707.63 $0.00 $0.00 $737,707.63 0.00%

2402-150-300-431011 FEES-RENTS/LEASES-DEPOSITS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $737,707.63 $0.00 $0.00 $737,707.63 0.00%

Community Development

2402-165-300-450000 MISC-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2402-310-300-471000 DEBT-BOND PROCEEDS $4,735,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,735,000.00 0.00%

Community Development Totals: $4,735,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,735,000.00 0.00%

Community Development

2402-325-300-474000 DEBT-NOTE PREMIUM $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2402-350-300-491020 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM GF $146,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $146,000.00 0.00%

2402-350-300-491040 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM OTHER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $146,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $146,000.00 0.00%

2402 Total: $5,618,707.63 $0.00 $0.00 $5,618,707.63 0.00%

2404 EINTRACHT FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Community Development

2404-135-300-460000 GRANTS-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2404-135-300-464000 GRANTS-STATE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2404-150-300-431010 FEES-RENTS/LEASES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2404-340-300-481000 ADVANCES-IN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2404-350-300-491040 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM OTHER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2404 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2406 CENTER OF FLIGHT Target Percent: 16.67%

2/24/2023 10:25 AM Page 9 of 12 V.3.7



Revenue Report

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Revenue YTD Revenue Uncollected % Collected

Community Development

2406-150-300-431010 FEES-RENTS/LEASES $6,600.00 $0.00 $550.00 $6,050.00 8.33%

Community Development Totals: $6,600.00 $0.00 $550.00 $6,050.00 8.33%

Community Development

2406-160-300-411024 TAXES-PROPERTY-TIF $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2406-165-300-431011 FEES-RENTS/LEASES-DEPOSITS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2406-165-300-450000 MISC-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development

2406-350-300-491040 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM OTHER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2406 Total: $6,600.00 $0.00 $550.00 $6,050.00 8.33%

2407 AIRWAY/WOODMAN IMPROVEMT FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Community Development

2407-160-300-411024 TAXES-PROPERTY-TIF $43,850.00 $0.00 $0.00 $43,850.00 0.00%

Community Development Totals: $43,850.00 $0.00 $0.00 $43,850.00 0.00%

Community Development

2407-350-300-491040 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM OTHER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Community Development Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2407 Total: $43,850.00 $0.00 $0.00 $43,850.00 0.00%

2410 FIRE/EMS & POLICE INCOME TAX Target Percent: 16.67%

Finance

2410-110-200-411010 TAXES-INCOME $5,200,000.00 $0.00 $640,824.26 $4,559,175.74 12.32%

2410-110-200-411011 TAXES-INCOME-RETAINER REFUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $5,200,000.00 $0.00 $640,824.26 $4,559,175.74 12.32%

2410 Total: $5,200,000.00 $0.00 $640,824.26 $4,559,175.74 12.32%

2600 CEMETERY FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

2600-120-350-431120 FEES-BURIAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

2600-350-350-491000 TRANSFERS-IN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2600-350-350-491020 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM GF $7,750.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $5,750.00 25.81%

Public Service Totals: $7,750.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $5,750.00 25.81%

2600 Total: $7,750.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $5,750.00 25.81%

2803 CONTINGENCY RESERVE FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Finance

2803-350-200-491040 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM OTHER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2/24/2023 10:25 AM Page 10 of 12 V.3.7



Revenue Report

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Revenue YTD Revenue Uncollected % Collected

2803 Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

3300 G.O. DEBT RETIREMENT Target Percent: 16.67%

Finance

3300-350-200-491020 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM GF $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

3300-350-200-491040 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM OTHER $240,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $240,750.00 0.00%

Finance Totals: $240,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $240,750.00 0.00%

3300 Total: $240,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $240,750.00 0.00%

4702 CAPITAL INFRASTRUCTURE FUND Target Percent: 16.67%

Public Service

4702-135-350-411050 TAXES-GASOLINE $682,870.39 $0.00 $56,352.94 $626,517.45 8.25%

4702-135-350-411060 TAXES-MOTOR VEHICLE $165,091.65 $0.00 $11,842.99 $153,248.66 7.17%

4702-135-350-460000 GRANTS-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-135-350-464501 GRANTS-STATE-OPWC-EASTMAN $0.00 $0.00 $7,172.77 ($7,172.77) N/A

4702-135-350-464502 GRANTS-STATE-OPWC-LYNNHAVENM $0.00 $0.00 $122,277.28 ($122,277.28) N/A

4702-135-350-464503 GRANTS-STATE-OPWC-W SPGFLD $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-135-350-464504 GRANTS-STATE-OPWC-OLENTANGY B $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702-135-350-465040 GRANTS-FEDERAL-IGA E SPFLD $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $847,962.04 $0.00 $197,645.98 $650,316.06 23.31%

Public Service

4702-140-350-424000 CURB DRIVEWAY ASSESSMENTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

4702-145-350-455010 MISC-INTEREST $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

4702-165-350-453030 MISC-ROW ACQUISITION REIMB $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

4702-315-350-471000 DEBT-BOND PROCEEDS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service

4702-340-350-481000 ADVANCES-IN $0.00 $0.00 $420,000.00 ($420,000.00) N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $420,000.00 ($420,000.00) N/A

Public Service

4702-350-350-491000 TRANSFERS-IN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Public Service Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

4702 Total: $847,962.04 $0.00 $617,645.98 $230,316.06 72.84%

4703 CAPITAL EQUIP IMPROVEMENT FD Target Percent: 16.67%

Finance

4703-135-200-460000 GRANTS-GENERAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance

4703-325-200-473000 DEBT-BOND PREMIUM $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

2/24/2023 10:25 AM Page 11 of 12 V.3.7



Revenue Report

As Of: 1/1/2023 to 2/28/2023
Account Description Budget MTD Revenue YTD Revenue Uncollected % Collected

Finance Totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance

4703-350-200-491000 TRANSFERS-IN $473,300.00 $0.00 $118,300.00 $355,000.00 24.99%

4703-350-200-491040 TRANSFERS-IN-FROM OTHER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

Finance Totals: $473,300.00 $0.00 $118,300.00 $355,000.00 24.99%

4703 Total: $473,300.00 $0.00 $118,300.00 $355,000.00 24.99%

7804 INSURANCE DEPOSITS Target Percent: 16.67%

Fire

7804-165-400-454010 MISC-INSURANCE DEPOSITS-FIRE $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0.00%

Fire Totals: $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0.00%

7804 Total: $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0.00%

9999 Payroll Clearing Fund Target Percent: 16.67%

division: 000

9999-000-000-940000 Standard $0.00 $11,022.30 $16,113.75 ($16,113.75) N/A

9999-000-000-940001 Federal Tax $0.00 $42,529.03 $61,717.57 ($61,717.57) N/A

9999-000-000-940002 State Tax $0.00 $10,669.73 $15,650.22 ($15,650.22) N/A

9999-000-000-940003 County Tax $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

9999-000-000-940004 City Tax $0.00 $11,607.89 $17,280.94 ($17,280.94) N/A

9999-000-000-940005 School Tax $0.00 $1,095.89 $1,619.98 ($1,619.98) N/A

9999-000-000-940006 Medicare $0.00 $6,638.99 $9,881.84 ($9,881.84) N/A

9999-000-000-940007 Fica $0.00 $1,706.10 $2,640.72 ($2,640.72) N/A

9999-000-000-940008 Pension $0.00 $49,499.68 $74,831.82 ($74,831.82) N/A

9999-000-000-940009 Pension Buy Back $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

9999-000-000-940011 Deferred Compensation $0.00 $17,678.44 $26,312.66 ($26,312.66) N/A

9999-000-000-940012 Section 125 $0.00 $17,143.55 $25,500.83 ($25,500.83) N/A

9999-000-000-940013 Medical R125 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

9999-000-000-940014 ChildCare 125 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

9999-000-000-940015 HSA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

9999-000-000-940016 Garnishment Of Disposable Earnings $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

9999-000-000-940017 Garnishment Of Gross $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A

9999-000-000-940018 Union Dues $0.00 $3,884.22 $5,828.72 ($5,828.72) N/A

9999-000-000-940099 Payroll Clearing Fund Default $0.00 $304,634.09 $454,286.53 ($454,286.53) N/A

division: 000 Totals: $0.00 $478,109.91 $711,665.58 ($711,665.58) N/A

9999 Total: $0.00 $478,109.91 $711,665.58 ($711,665.58) N/A

Grand Total: $28,647,257.79 $478,109.91 $3,596,888.04 $25,050,369.75 12.56%

Target Percent: 16.67%

2/24/2023 10:25 AM Page 12 of 12 V.3.7



 
 

LEGISLATION 



MEETING DATE: March 2, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM: New Business 

TO: 

FROM: 

Riverside City Council 

Frank Robinson, Chief of Police 

SUBJECT: 23-O-820 An ordinance amending Section 351.03 Prohibited Standing or Parking 
Places of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Riverside, Ohio. 

EXPLANATION 
Due to a number of complaints of parked vehicles in front of mailboxes and mail not being 
delivered, it has been determined to update Section 351.03 Prohibited Standing or Parking 
Places of the City of Riverside Codified Ordinances to add no parking within ten feet of another 
property owner’s mailbox between the hours of 8:00 am and 5:00 pm.  

RECOMMENDATION 
It is respectfully recommended that the Mayor and City Council approve the attached legislation. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 
N/A 

EXHIBITS 
Exhibit A 



 
                    

                    23-O-820 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 351.03 PROHIBITED STANDING OR 
PARKING PLACES OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
RIVERSIDE, OHIO. 

WHEREAS, the City of Riverside has previously enacted Section 351.03 
Prohibited Standing or Parking Places; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Riverside desires to amend Section 351.03 to add 

language prohibiting parking a motor vehicle in front of a mailbox between the hours of 
8:00 am to 5:00 pm; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Riverside City Council finds that parking of vehicles in the 

proximity of mailboxes within the municipal boundaries of the City of Riverside has the 
ability to negatively affect public health, safety, and welfare, if not appropriately 
regulated; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Riverside, Ohio has determined that it is in 

the City’s best interest to incorporate the changes to better manage the City’s public 
parking resources by amending Section 351.03.  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF OHIO: 

Section 1: That Section 351.03 Prohibited Standing or Parking Places be amended as 
set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein as is fully 
set forth is hereby enacted.  

 
Section 2: This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council 

concerning and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in 
an open meeting of this Council and that all deliberations of this Council 
and of any of its committees that resulted in those actions were in meetings 
open to the public in compliance with the law. 

 
Section 3: That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the 

earliest date allowed by law.  
             
 
 PASSED THIS DAY OF ____________________________. 
           

 
APPROVED: 

    
 
_______________________________ 

                  MAYOR 



 
                    

                    23-O-820 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
CLERK 

 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF THE CLERK 
 

 
I, __________________________, Clerk of the City of Riverside, Ohio, do hereby 

certify that the foregoing Ordinance is a true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 23-O-820 
passed by the Riverside City Council on ______________________________. 
 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness my hand and official seal this day 
_________________. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
CLERK 



23-O-820 Exhibit A 

351.03 - Prohibited standing or parking places. 

(a) No person shall stand or park a vehicle, except when necessary to avoid conflict with other 
traffic or to comply with the provisions of this Traffic Code, or while obeying the directions of a 
police officer or a traffic control device, in any of the following places:  

 (1) On a sidewalk, curb or street lawn area, except a bicycle;  

 (2) In front of a public or private driveway;  

 (3) Within an intersection;  

 (4) Within ten feet of a fire hydrant;  

 (5) On a crosswalk;  

 (6) Within 20 feet of a crosswalk at an intersection;  

 (7) Within 30 feet of, and upon the approach to, any flashing beacon, stop sign or traffic 
 control device;  

 (8) Between a safety zone and the adjacent curb or within 30 feet of points on the curb  
 immediately opposite the end of a safety zone, unless a different length is indicated by a 
 traffic control device;  

 (9) Within 50 feet of the nearest rail of a railroad crossing;  

 (10) Within 20 feet of a driveway entrance to any fire station and, on the side of the street 
 opposite the entrance to any fire station, within 75 feet of the entrance when it is properly 
 posted with signs;  

 (11) Alongside or opposite any street excavation or obstruction when such standing or 
 parking would obstruct traffic;  

 (12) Alongside any vehicle stopped or parked at the edge or curb of a street;  

 (13) Upon any bridge or other elevated structure upon a street, or within a street tunnel;  

 (14) At any place where signs prohibit stopping, standing or parking, or where the 
 curbing or street is painted yellow, or at any place in excess of the maximum time limited 
 by signs;  

 (15) Within one foot of another parked vehicle;  

 (16) On the roadway portion of a freeway, expressway or thruway;  



23-O-820 Exhibit A 

 (17) Any public or private area designated and posted as a fire lane.  

 (18) Within ten (10) feet of another property owner’s mailbox between the hours of 8:00 
 am and 5:00 pm. 

(b) (1) Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, whoever violates this section is guilty of 
 a minor misdemeanor. If, within one year of the offense, the offender previously has been 
 convicted of or pleaded guilty to one predicate motor vehicle or traffic offense, whoever 
 violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor of the fourth degree. If, within one year of 
 the offense, the offender previously has been convicted of two or more predicate motor 
 vehicle or traffic offenses, whoever violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor of the 
 third degree. (ORC 4511.68)  

 (2) Whoever violates subsection (a)(17) hereof is guilty of a misdemeanor of the fourth 
 degree.  

 



MEETING DATE: March 2, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM: New Business 

TO: Riverside City Council 

FROM: Josh Rauch, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 23-O-821 – An ordinance amending Chapter 131 Public Health 
and Safety Commission of the City of Riverside, Ohio. 

EXPLANATION 
Over the last several months, the City has experienced reduced volunteer interest in serving on 
the Public Health and Safety Commission (Health & Safety). The Commission currently has no 
active members. The City deferred action on Health & Safety until the conclusion of the 2022 
strategic planning process. 

The attached ordinance makes three key changes to Health & Safety: 
- Reduces Commission size from 7 to 5 members to make filling vacancies easier.
- Provides for a Council seat on Health & Safety as one of the five members.
- Clarifies that the City Manager or City Manager’s designee may serve as ex-officio.

These changes will help provide increased Council oversight of the Commission and reduce 
volunteer requirements to fully staff Health & Safety. If adopted, City Council and staff can begin 
recruiting volunteers and establish a framework for the Commission that aligns with the City’s 
Strategic Plan. 

RECOMMENDATION 
It is respectfully recommended that the Mayor and City Council approve the attached legislation. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 
N/A 

EXHIBITS 
Exhibit A – Chapter 131 revisions 



 
                    

                    23-O-821 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 131 PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF RIVERSIDE, OHIO. 

WHEREAS, the City of Riverside established a Public Health and Safety 
Commission after incorporation in 1995; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City has experienced difficulty attracting and retaining volunteers 

to serve on the Public Health and Safety Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Riverside, Ohio has determined that the 

composition of the Public Health and Safety Commission should be adjusted to improve its 
viability and connection to the City’s strategic objectives. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
RIVERSIDE, STATE OF OHIO: 

Section 1: That Chapter 131 Public Health and Safety Commission be amended as set 
forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein as is fully set 
forth is hereby enacted.  

 
Section 2: That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the 

earliest date allowed by law.  
             
 PASSED THIS DAY OF ____________________________. 
           

APPROVED: 
    

_______________________________ 
                  MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
CLERK 

 
CERTIFICATE OF THE CLERK 

 
I, __________________________, Clerk of the City of Riverside, Ohio, do hereby 

certify that the foregoing Ordinance is a true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 23-O-821 
passed by the Riverside City Council on ____________________. 
 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness my hand and official seal this day 
_________________. 
 
____________________________________ 
CLERK 



23-O-821 Exhibit A   
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 
1 | P a g e  

 

CHAPTER 131 - PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMISSION 
131.01 - Creation and membership. 

(a) There is hereby created a Public Health and Safety Commission for the City. The Commission 
shall consist of seven five members to be appointed by Council. The Council may appoint one of 
its members to serve on the Public Health and Safety Commission. Membership shall be open to 
any resident elector of the City. 

(b) Each member shall serve terms of three years, except that members first appointed shall be 
appointed so that the terms of three members will expire after three years, the terms of two 
members shall expire after two years and the term of two members shall expire after a one year 
term. Two members shall serve terms ending in odd-numbered years, and three members shall 
serve terms ending in even-numbered years. Any member who misses three consecutive 
meetings without being excused by a majority of the Commission may be declared inactive by 
Council and replaced as provided above. 

(c) The City Manager, or the City Manager’s designee, shall be an ex-officio member of the 
Commission without the right to vote. 

(d) Membership on the Commission shall be honorary, and the members; shall serve without 
compensation. 

131.02 - Organization. 
The Public Health and Safety Commission shall organize, elect a chairperson by majority vote of its 
members and adopt such rules and regulations as may be necessary for the efficient and effective 
conduct of its business provided that such rules and regulations shall not be in conflict with the 
ordinances and Charter of the City and the laws of the State of Ohio. 

131.03 - Purpose. 
The purpose of the Public Health and Safety Commission shall be as follows: to study, consider and 
recommend to the City Manager programs, actions and activities relating to the enhancement of the 
public health, safety and environment of the City. 

131.04 - Powers and duties. 
The Public Health and Safety Commission may perform and exercise the following powers and shall have 
the following duties: 

(a) Elect a chairperson. 
(b) Adopt rules and regulations for the conduct of the Commission. 
(c) Establish and appoint such subcommittees as may be deemed necessary. 
(d) Advise the City Manager on such items as may be related to its purpose. 
(e) Cooperate with other boards and commissions and other governmental bodies and agencies, 

and with the City Manager. 



23-O-821 Exhibit A   
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 
2 | P a g e  

(f) Furnish to the City Manager an annual report on or before October 1st of each year, beginning 
in 1996, which shall include a review of the past year's activities, the goals and objectives for the 
next year, and any budget request for the upcoming fiscal year. 

(g) Keep official minutes of its meetings. Copies of minutes shall be forwarded to the City Manager. 
(h) All meetings of the Commission shall be held in accordance with the open meetings ordinance 

open to the public and held in accordance with applicable local and state laws regarding open 
meetings. 



 
 

MEETING DATE: March 2, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM: New Business 

 

TO:  Riverside City Council 

 

FROM: Chris Lohr, Assistant City Manager  

 

SUBJECT: 23-R-2829 A resolution appointing representatives to the Ohio Benefits 

Cooperative Council. 

 

EXPLANATION 

 

The Ohio Benefits Cooperative requires each participating jurisdiction to formally designate staff 

members to take part in the governance of the organization. This resolution designates Chris 

Lohr, Assistant City Manager, and Elayna Myers, Administrative Assistant, as primary 

representatives and Joshua Rauch, City Manager, as an alternate representative. These staff 

members are the most knowledgeable about the Ohio Benefits Cooperative and City benefits 

administration and so are the most appropriate for the role.  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is respectfully recommended that the Mayor and City Council approve the attached legislation 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

N/A 

 

 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 

N/A 

 

 

EXHIBITS 

N/A 



 
                    
                    23-R-2829 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING REPRESENTATIVES TO THE OHIO BENEFITS 
COOPERATIVE COUNCIL.  

 
 WHEREAS, the City has joined the Ohio Benefits Cooperative for the purpose of 
collectively negotiating favorable rates for health insurance; and  
 
 WHEREAS,  the City Council is required to and desires to appoint representatives 
to the Ohio Benefits Cooperative Council.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
RIVERSIDE, STATE OF OHIO: 
  

Section 1: That Chris Lohr and Elayna Myers are hereby appointed as 
representatives of the City to the Ohio Benefits Cooperative Council and 
Joshua Rauch as an alternate representative.  

 
Section 2: That the Clerk of Council be and is hereby authorized and directed to 

forward a certified copy of the within resolution to the City Manager and 
the City’s representatives. 

 
 Section 3: That this resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the date of its passage. 
 

            PASSED THIS DAY OF ____________________________. 
           

APPROVED:  
    

__________________________________ 
                  MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
CLERK 
 

CERTIFICATE OF THE CLERK 
 

I, ____________________________, Clerk of the City of Riverside, Ohio, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 23-
R-2829 passed by the Riverside City Council on ________________________. 
 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness my hand and official seal this day of 
__________________. 
 
_________________________________ 
CLERK 



 
 

MEETING DATE: March 2, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM: New Business 

 

TO:  Riverside City Council 

 

FROM: Chris Lohr, Assistant City Manager  

 

SUBJECT: 23-R-2830 A resolution authorizing the city manager to enter into an agreement 

with McGohan Brabender for insurance brokerage and consulting services. 

 

EXPLANATION 

 

McGohan Brabender serves as the exclusive broker for the Ohio Benefits Cooperative. As a new 

member of the Ohio Benefits Cooperative, the City has been required to switch brokers to 

McGohan Brabender. In the interest of expediency, McGohan Brabender worked with the City 

last year to complete the transition to the OBC. This resolution authorizes the City Manager to 

enter into an agreement with McGohan Brabender to formalize that business relationship.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is respectfully recommended that the Mayor and City Council approve the attached legislation 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

N/A 

 

 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 

N/A 

 

 

EXHIBITS 

N/A 



 
                    
                    23-R-2830 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANGER TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT WITH MCGOHAN BRABENDER FOR INSURANCE 
BROKERAGE AND CONSULTING SERVICES. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has joined the Ohio Benefits Cooperative for the purpose 
of collectively negotiating favorable rates for health insurance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, McGohan Brabender serves as the exclusive broker for the Ohio 
Benefits Cooperative; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to further utilize McGohan Brabender for various 
insurance consulting services.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF OHIO: 
 
 Section 1: That the City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract 

with McGohan Brabender for insurance brokerage and consulting 
services. 

 
 Section 2: That the Clerk be and is hereby authorized and directed to forward 

a certified copy of this Resolution to the City Manager. 
 

Section 3: That this Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the date of its passage. 

 
PASSED THIS DAY OF ____________________________. 

           
 
APPROVED: 

 
 

_______________________________ 
                  MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
CLERK 

 
 
 
 



 
                    
                    23-R-2830 

CERTIFICATE OF THE CLERK 
 

I, ____________________________, Clerk of the City of Riverside, Ohio, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 
23-R-2830 passed by the Riverside City Council on _______________________. 
 
 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness my hand and official seal this day 
_______________________. 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
CLERK 



 
 

MEETING DATE: March 2, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM: New Business 

 
TO:  Riverside City Council 
 
FROM: Lori Minnich, Economic Development Specialist 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 23-R-2831: A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 

enter into a Service Agreement with the Consultant, Projects West, Inc., 
an Ohio for profit Corporation, dba Downing Community Advisors, 
necessitated by conditions of a JobsOhio grant award and the allocation of 
City resources. 

 
EXPLANATION 
The City determined specialized professional services were necessary to support 
specialized economic development activities in 2023, including but not limited to the 
potential disposition of the Wright Point property and infill development. 
 
The Economic Development Specialist applied for, and the City was awarded, a 
JobsOhio Inclusive Planning Grant, to supplement payment of the Consultant’s services. 
 
In order to satisfy the grant award, the City must deepen and expand the scope of work to 
be performed by the Consultant in 2023. The expanded scope includes continued work 
regarding Wright Point and infill sites, as well as additional work relating to the 
establishment of a Community Improvement Corporation (CIC) to assist the City. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is respectfully recommended that the Mayor and City Council approve the attached legislation 
in order to enter into a service agreement with the consultant and fulfill the terms of the JobsOhio 
Grant award.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
$50,000 ($25,000 grant; $25,000 matching funds) 
 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDS 
$25,000 – JobsOhio Grant 
$25,000 – General Fund 
 
EXHIBITS 
N/A 



 
                    
                    23-R-2831 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH PROJECTS WEST, INC., AN 
OHIO FOR PROFIT CORPORATION, DBA THE DOWNING COMMUNITY 
ADVISORS (DCA), FOR THE PURPOSE OF INCLUDING THE CONDITIONS OF 
A GRANT AWARD.  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Riverside entered into a Service Agreement with Projects 

West, Inc. on June 13, 2022, to provide economic development and technical planning 
services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Riverside was subsequently awarded a JobsOhio Inclusive 

Technical Planning Grant in the amount of $25,000 to perform additional work with 
Projects West, Inc.; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City must modify the current scope of services with Projects West, 
Inc. to accept the JobsOhio Grant; and 
 

WHEREAS, the total revised scope of services with Projects West is valued at 
$50,000 in fiscal year 2023; and  
 

WHEREAS, the total contract amount with Projects West requires approval from 
the governing body; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the scope of services contemplated by the revised service agreement 
with Projects West and supported by the JobsOhio grant will support economic 
development activities in 2023, including but not limited to the potential disposition of the 
Wright Point property and infill development sites in the community.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
RIVERSIDE, STATE OF OHIO: 
  

Section 1: That the City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a revised 
agreement with Projects West, Inc., to provide professional services and 
direct technical assistance for the City of Riverside in a manner that 
satisfies the JobsOhio Inclusive Technical Planning Grant, in an amount 
not to exceed $50,000.  

 
Section 2: That the Clerk be and is hereby authorized and directed to forward a 

certified copy of the Resolution to the City Manager and Finance 
Director. 

 
 Section 3: That this resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the date of its passage. 
 

            PASSED THIS DAY OF ____________________________. 



 
                    
                    23-R-2831 

           
APPROVED:  

    
__________________________________ 

                  MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
CLERK 
 

CERTIFICATE OF THE CLERK 
 

I, ____________________________, Clerk of the City of Riverside, Ohio, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 23-
R-2831 passed by the Riverside City Council on ________________________. 
 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness my hand and official seal this day of 
__________________. 
 
_________________________________ 
CLERK 



 
 

MEETING DATE: March 2, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM: New Business 

 
TO:  Riverside City Council 
 
FROM: Josh Rauch, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 23-R-2832 – A resolution adopting a strategic plan for the 

City of Riverside. 
 
EXPLANATION 
In 2022, the City Council participated in two workshops designed to achieve Council 
consensus regarding key strategic priorities and focus areas for the City. This process was 
facilitated by the Wright Brothers Institute (WBI) and resulted in a final Strategic 
Planning Workshop Report. The City received the report from WBI on October 24, 2022. 
 
The report identifies the following key strategic focus areas and sub-categories: 

• Governance: Financial Sustainability, Communications, Policy, and 
Financial Transparency 

• Infrastructure: Roads, Design, Maintenance, Lighting, Facilities, and 
Smart City 

• Public Safety: Staffing, Community, Accountability, and Mental Health 
• Economic Development: Zoning (Ordinances/Codes), Staffing, 

Partnerships, Land Use, and Quality Development 
 
The final section of the report, “Strategic Priority Action Items,” captures ideas and 
initiatives that could be employed to advance the focus areas and sub-categories agreed 
upon by Council. It is important to emphasize that the ideas listed in this section of the 
report are not binding on the City, Council, or staff, and are best used as a reference point 
for identifying future project opportunities. 
 
The City Manager has prepared a draft implementation plan to accompany the Final 
Report which identifies projects and initiatives for the key strategic focus areas and sub-
categories. The implementation plan is a living document that will continue to be refined 
and updated in the coming years, until Council elects to revisit the strategic plan.  
 
Formally adopting the Final Report acknowledges the process Council engaged in to 
develop the plan and provides a clear baseline for managing the implementation plan and 
prioritizing new projects and initiatives in the coming months. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is respectfully recommended that the Mayor and City Council approve the attached legislation. 
 
 



 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 
 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDS 
N/A 
 
EXHIBITS 
Exhibit A – Strategic Plan Final Report 



 
                    
                    23-R-2832 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A STRATEGIC PLAN FOR THE CITY OF 
RIVERSIDE.   
 
 WHEREAS, strategic planning is a disciplined effort to produce fundamental 
decisions and actions that shape and guide what an organization is, what it does and why 
it performs the services and/or programs it does; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there are numerous benefits to strategic planning, including: 
increased effectiveness and efficiency, improved understanding among stakeholders, 
enhanced organizational capabilities, improved communications and public relations as 
well as increased political support; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council and City Manager conducted strategic planning 
workshops in August and October, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council engaged in multiple exercises and activities during 
each workshop to identify and achieve consensus on key strategic focus areas and sub-
categories, including: 

• Governance: Financial Sustainability, Communications, Policy, and 
Financial Transparency 

• Infrastructure: Roads, Design, Maintenance, Lighting, Facilities, and 
Smart City 

• Public Safety: Staffing, Community, Accountability, and Mental Health 
• Economic Development: Zoning (Ordinances/Codes), Staffing, 

Partnerships, Land Use, and Quality Development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the proposed Strategic Plan including 

key focus areas, sub-categories, and the City Manager’s draft implementation plan. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF OHIO: 
 

Section 1: That the City Council hereby adopts the attached Strategic Plan for 
2023-2028.  

 
Section 2: That the City will utilize the implementation plan prepared by staff 

to carry out the goals and objectives of the Strategic Plan, and modify 
the implementation plan as needed to best achieve said goals. 

 
Section 3: That the City shall post the adopted strategic plan on the City’s 

website to enhance public access. 
 
Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the date of its passage. 



 
                    
                    23-R-2832 

 
 
PASSED THIS DAY OF ____________________________. 

           
 
 
 
APPROVED: 

 
 

_______________________________ 
                  MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
CLERK 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF THE CLERK 
 

I, ____________________________, Clerk of the City of Riverside, Ohio, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 
23-R-2832 passed by the Riverside City Council on _______________________. 
 
 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness my hand and official seal this day 
_______________________. 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
CLERK  



 

0 5000 Springfield St  • Suite 100  • Dayton, OH 45431 

 

Wright Brothers Institute 
5000 SPRINGFIELD STREET, SUITE 100 | RIVERSIDE, OH 45431 

Strategic Planning 
Workshop Report 
PREPARED FOR THE CITY COUNCIL OF RIVERSIDE, OHIO 
 

 

  



  

 
1 

Strategic Planning Workshops 
for the City of Riverside, OH 

Founded in 1995, the City of Riverside, Ohio is a lively, resident focused city of over 25,000 located in 
southwest Ohio in the Dayton metropolitan area. Conveniently located near Interstates 70 and 75, US 
35, State Route 4, and Wright Patterson Air Force Base, it is home to numerous research and 
development, industrial, logistics, and technology and service-based businesses.  

The city’s business friendly atmosphere, growing housing inventory, and excellent parks and recreational 
amenities provide current and new residents and businesses alike with numerous opportunities in 
employment, education, and leisurely pursuits. As a community gateway to the National Museum of the 
United States Air Force, the city is proud of its aviation heritage and the burgeoning center of aerospace 
and defense innovation that the City of Riverside and the region embody.  

Strategic Planning Workshops 

Riverside is governed by the Riverside City Council, which serves as the policy making body for the city 
and appoints the City Manager, whose duties include overseeing operations and authorizing 
transactions on behalf of the city. At the request of the City Manager, City Council Members convened 
at Wright Brothers Institute’s Riverside office to participate in a series of strategic planning workshops 
designed to assist Council Members articulate key priorities and areas of priorities and translate ’s vision 
and priorities for the advancement of a three-to-five-year strategic plan. 

 

 

    

    
Workshop Participants (Left to Right & Top to Bottom): Peter Williams, Mayor; Zachary Joseph, Council Member; Brenda Fry, 
Council Member; Mike Denning, Deputy Mayor; Sara Lommatzsch, Council Member; Jesse Maxfield, Council Member; April 
Franklin, Council Member; & Joshua Rauch, City Manager. Not pictured: Katie Lewallen, Clerk. 

 



  

 
2 

 

Contents 

Strategically Aligned Performance................................................... 3 

Strategic Planning Workshop I Overview......................................... 4 

SWOT Analysis.................................................................................. 5 

Workshop II Overview...................................................................... 7 

Strategic Focus Areas........................................................................ 8 

Strategic Priorities............................................................................ 9 

Strategic Priority Action Items.......................................................... 17 

Summary & Recommendations........................................................ 20 

 

 

  



  

 
3 

Strategically Aligned 
Performance 

Strategic planning workshops are intended to inform and guide the decision-making practices of an 
organization and its leaders over the next three to five years. Key elements of the strategic planning 
process include: 

• Reviewing and updating, as applicable, statements of vision, mission, and values. 

• An examination of the current operational environment and the identification of important 
external forces and trends that influence and impact the organization’s ability to meet 
stakeholder expectations. 

• Assessment of the organization’s strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats. 

• Development and prioritization of strategic goals around which decisions can be evaluated and 
important organizational and operational activities can be managed. 

• Identification of a preliminary set of individual operational objectives, by strategic goal, which 
represent key initiatives/activities/programs to undertake over the next three to five years.  

The main goal of strategic planning workshops is to identify the “What” rather than the “How” and to 
orchestrate dialog across all participants such that they work together to explore ideas at the strategic 
rather than the operational level of the organization. The workshop activities were designed to create 
an environment that enabled an open discussion of the city’s current strengths and weaknesses, 
opportunities, and threats, and to then move to consensus around the highest order priorities for the 
city to address over the next three-to-five years. These priorities, in turn, establish the foundation for 
defining more specific action steps, resource plans and performance measures for the city staff to 
provide to the City Council. Holistically, the process is designed to be synergistic and continuous. 

❶ ❷ ❸ ❹ ❺ ❻ 

Understand 
Context 

Develop Goals, 
Objectives, & 

Measures 

Allocate 
Resources 

Implement 
Plans 

Assess 
Performance 

Share Progress 
& Results 

Source: WBI; Strategic Planning & Performance Management Process 

WBI conducted two workshops with Riverside City Council Members. The first session, held in August of 
2022, focused on examining the history of Riverside and its strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and 
threats relative to the current and future envisioned environment. The second session, held in October 
2022, worked toward coalescing Council’s thoughts to develop an articulated expression of key areas of 
focus and priority initiatives for the city over the next three-to-five years.  



  

 
4 

Workshop I Overview 

The first strategic planning workshop with Riverside City Council Members was held on August 13, 2022. 
An initial workshop exercise was conducted to capture each Council Member’s thoughts regarding what 
they were hopeful to gain by participating in the strategic planning process. All Council Members 
commented and shared their thoughts, which revealed the following desires: 

• Learn about similar communities 
• Update Riverside’s strategic plan 
• Have productive discussions 
• Move from short term to long term 

thinking 
• Listen to other’s ideas 
• Develop strategy; establish a long-term 

plan 
 

• Capitalize on resources 
• Learn about other communities 
• Gain fresh perspectives 
• Hear new ideas 
• Establish a baseline for productive 

discussions 
• Help Riverside do more; reach full 

potential 

Historical Timeline 

WBI lead the group in a second workshop exercise intended to reveal the history of the city and 
establish a mutual understanding among all Council Members around the key milestones and influential 
events that have contributed to present day Riverside. The effort revealed the impact of the rapid 
transformation of Riverside from a “village” 
with a few thousand residents to an 
incorporated community with over twenty 
thousand residents as it merged with the 
surrounding Mad River Township. Through 
the chartering and formation process, the 
city established its council and began the 
government’s work in formally addressing 
the people’s needs as the newly formed City 
of Riverside, Ohio in 1995.  

Fast-forward 27-years to present day and 
the consensus opinion of City Council 
Members participating in the workshop was 
that the city has been largely stagnant in 
residential and business growth over the nearly three decades since its founding. Further, participants 
acknowledged that there has been little attention given by City Council to strategic planning, the 
preponderance of effort has mostly focused on tending to the immediate needs and concerns of the 
city’s community members and government’s day-to-day operation.  

From the historical timeline exercise, the workshop transitioned into exploring the city’s strengths, 
weaknesses, opportunities, and threats (SWOT). 

Image 1: Historical Timeline Exercise 



  

 
5 

SWOT Analysis 

Workshop participants were asked to envision meeting a stranger on the streets of Riverside – someone 
they knew was not a current resident and share key points they would make regarding why Riverside is 
a wonderful place to live and work. Their comments were individually captured as “strengths” for the 
city and then later built upon through another workshop exercise that explored “opportunities” for 
growth and strategic advantage for the city. Those inputs were captured on a whiteboard (images 2 and 
3) and further summarized as follows: 

STRENGTHS OPPORTUNITIES 
• Geography: participants agreed that the 

overall layout of Riverside was a strength, 
citing the public parks, rivers, and bike 
trails available to residents 

• Proximity to Museum: participants 
agreed that the National Air Force 
Museum was a strength of Riverside that 
could be leveraged in future 
opportunities 

• Community Pride: the residents of 
Riverside are passionate about their city, 
and deeply involved with local groups 
(ex: churches, volunteer organizations) 
and would likely be an asset to be 
leveraged for the future.  

• Cost of Living: Riverside offers an 
attractive cost of living to potential 
residents, both nationally and within the 
suburbs surrounding Dayton  

• Police and Fire: Riverside offers a sense of 
safety and has responsive police, fire, and 
first responder workforces 

 
Other Strengths Noted: 

• Relationship with Wright Patterson Air 
Force Base 

• Inter-governmental relationships  
• Diversity  
• Career Vocational Education 
• Harshman/Woodman Route 
• Available Real Estate  
• Chamber 
• Hard Working Community 
• Community Paramedic Program 
• Regional Presence  

• Explore ways to capitalize on current land 
• Establish economic city nodes 

o Other centers 
o Possible “city center” 
o Community pockets 
o North, South 
o Localized representation 
o Identify demographic pockets of 

opportunity  
• Enhance safety presence 

o Increase lighting in communities 
• Reduce or leverage existing real estate 

o Example: food trucks in the 
parking lot 

• Maximize assets through leveraging 
partnerships 

• Create policies and procedures that will 
support future growth initiatives  

• Modernize facilities  
• Raise awareness of potential community 

members to get involved 



  

 
6 

 

 
Image 2: Articulated Strengths of Riverside, OH 

 

 
Image 3: Articulated Opportunities for Riverside, OH 

 

City weaknesses are those problem areas or aspects of the government organization and, in some cases, 
the community at large, that are currently standing in the way of strategic success and need to be 
overcome to achieve optimal results. Threats are current or potential future external events that, if 
ignored, have the potential to inhibit the city’s ability to realize its full potential. These may be political, 
economic, societal, natural, or man-made in nature. 

While a specific group activity was not performed in August’s workshop to expose “weaknesses or 
threats,” there were points noted through conversation during the session that were later reaffirmed 
through dialog in October’s workshop and are denoted below:  

WEAKNESSES THREATS 
• Lack of identity / brand 
• Outdated planning documents  
• Lean city staffing (e.g., fire and police) 
• Aging infrastructure 
• Too focused on the day-to-day issues 

• Financial (management) 
• Disengaged citizenship / low 

volunteerism 
• Regional competition for development 
• (Poor) Collaboration on Council 

 

Workshop I Summary 

The City of Riverside has many strengths, including its geography, proximity to the Wright-Patterson Air 
Force Base and National Museum of the U.S. Air Force, attractive cost of living, and a strong sense of 
community pride. These strengths are assets that could be leveraged for the future of Riverside. Several 
potential opportunities were also noted that could serve as “growth platforms” and paths forward for 
the city. The revealed opportunities could be standalone opportunities or could be combined to support 
one another such as establishing economic nodes which would encompass other opportunities like 
enhancing safety for residents or raising their awareness of what Riverside has to offer. 



  

 
7 

Workshop II Overview 

The second strategic planning workshop with Riverside 
City Council Members was held on October 8, 2022. 
Building on the conversation and exchange of ideas 
that occurred in the first workshop, WBI led the 
participants through an exercise in developing 
strategic priorities. Strategic priorities can be broadly 
defined as policy and strategy areas of focus that guide 
and align decision-making. They provide the 
framework for a city’s key projects and initiatives that 
then inform the city’s annual work plan as noted in 
Image 4.  

As a component of the overall strategic planning 
process, strategic priorities align with a city’s mission, 
vision statements, and guide an organization’s long-
term planning efforts. As a primer to an exercise 
where Riverside Council Members would brainstorm 
and explore potential strategic areas of focus for the 
city, WBI shared and reviewed an example of strategic 
priorities that a city such as Riverside might identify as 
shown in Image 5.  

Council Members worked independently and then 
shared among the group what they believed were the 
key issues and topics of importance for the city and 
placed them on “sticky notes” (Image 6). From this 
collaborative brainstorming exercise, a total of four 
common strategic themes emerged as the most 
important for the City of Riverside government.  

I. Governance 
II. Infrastructure 

III. Public Safety 
IV. Economic Development 

As illustrated on the following page, these are the 
strategic areas in which the Council Members believed 
focused efforts may be applied to move the 
community of Riverside forward towards its long-term 
vision and goals. Image 6: Workshop participants ideas on strategic priorities. 

Image 5: Example of strategic focus areas. 

Image 4: Strategic planning framework example. 



  

 
8 

Strategic Focus Areas 

❶ 

GOVERNANCE 
Contributing elements to the strategic focus area: 

• Consistency in governance 
• Reduce debt 
• Empower citizens to take ownership of community priorities/culture 
• Build trust (pass levy) 
• Financial transparency 
• Resource clearing house 

 
 

❷ 

INFRASTRUCTURE 
Contributing elements to the strategic focus area: 

• Street scape policy 
• Code changes that allow for more growth in the city 
• Making the city more attractive to moving here (residents & new 

businesses) 
• Work toward new facilities 
• Look at how we build streets/roads; how we improve our designs for 

accessibility 
• Community center that brings the “islands” together 

 
 

❸ 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
Contributing elements to the strategic focus area: 

• Full time fire & more police 
• Police and fire sustainability 
• Safety 
• Increase safety for vulnerable populations 

 
 

❹ 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
Contributing elements to the strategic focus area: 

• Increase productivity of land; increase density 
• Positive business climate 
• More companies/businesses to attract people to come into our city 
• Legislative polices that allow development 
• Prime location  

 
 



  

 
9 

Strategic Priorities 

After identifying the four strategic focus areas for the city, Council Members participated in a workshop 
exercise whereby they brainstormed and captured potential key projects and/or initiatives that the city 
might pursue under each strategic area of focus. These key projects/initiatives where clustered into sub-
categories under each of their respective strategic focus area.  

 

Key Projects/Initiatives 

Council Members were then asked to cast three “votes” across any of the sub-categories of potential 
key projects/initiatives highlighted within each of the four strategic focus areas. They were directed to 
apply this process for each of the four strategic focus areas, casting in total twelve votes for each Council 
Member (3 votes x 4 strategic focus areas). A total of eighteen votes per strategic focus area (6 Council 
Members in attendance x 3 votes per strategic focus area) were cast.  

 

 

Image 7: Riverside City Council Members prioritizing potential projects and key initiatives. 

 

Through this exercise, Riverside City Council collectively expressed the potential key projects/initiatives 
they recommended as priorities for the city within each of the four strategic focus areas. Results of the 
workshop effort are noted in the following section of this report. 



  

 
10 

❶ 
GOVERNANCE 
STRATEGIC FOCUS AREA  
FOR THE CITY OF RIVERSIDE, OHIO 

 

Twenty-six (26) potential key project/initiative ideas were generated by workshop participants under 
the strategic focus area of Governance. WBI made no attempt to deduplicate Council Member 
submissions for this report.  

Four clusters of activity emerged in association with the ideas generated and represented the sub-
categories in which City Council Members cast their votes to prioritize those of highest importance. The 
four sub-categories of activity under Governance were: 

i. Financial Sustainability 
ii. Communications 

iii. Policy 
iv. Financial Transparency 

The highest number of votes cast by Council Members were attributable to projects/initiatives aligned 
with the sub-categories of Financial Sustainability and Communications (tied). The following depicts the 
ideas and/or statements submitted by workshop participants via “sticky notes” during the workshop 
exercise and the corresponding number of votes cast for each sub-category cluster of potential 
projects/initiatives the city should consider pursuing over the next three-to-five-years:   

 

Votes: 
6 

FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY  
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster:  

• Grant writing 
• Pass street levy 
• Debt / fund balance policy 
• Financial sustainability 
• Sustainable funding (projects) 
• Sustainable funding 
• Set goals for debt reduction 
• Debt reduction 
• How we sustain our police & fire departments 
• Maximize outside funding 
• Maximize partner resources 

  



  

 
11 

Votes: 
6 

COMMUNICATIONS 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• New website 
• Adequate assessment of resources 
• Provide annual state of the city updates that reflect progress on 

strategic plan 
• Communication consistency 
• Empower citizens 
• Realistic picture of current condition 
• Better communication on needs & projects 
• Consistency in practice 

  

Votes: 
4 

POLICY 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• Resurrect capital improvement plan 
• CIP 
• Legislative policies 

  

Votes: 
3 

FINANCIAL TRANSPARENCY 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• Improve financial transparency 
• Transparency 
• Budget transparency 
• Open checkbook 

 

NOTE: A maximum number of eighteen (18) votes were to be cast. Total votes across Governance sub-categories 
equaled nineteen (19). 

 

❷ 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
STRATEGIC FOCUS AREA  
FOR THE CITY OF RIVERSIDE, OHIO 

 

Twenty-two (22) potential key project/initiative ideas were generated by workshop participants under 
the strategic focus area of Infrastructure. WBI made no attempt to deduplicate Council Member 
submissions for this report.  

 



  

 
12 

Six clusters of activity emerged in association with the ideas generated and represented the sub-
categories in which City Council Members cast their votes to prioritize those of highest importance. The 
six sub-categories of activity under Infrastructure were: 

i. Roads 
ii. Design 

iii. Maintenance 
iv. Lighting 
v. Facilities 

vi. Smart City 

The highest number of votes cast by Council Members were attributable to projects/initiatives aligned 
with the sub-category of Roads. The following depicts the ideas and/or statements submitted by 
workshop participants via “sticky notes” during the workshop exercise and the corresponding number of 
votes cast for each sub-category cluster of potential projects/initiatives the city should consider 
pursuing over the next three-to-five-years:   

Votes: 
6 

ROADS 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• Better roads 
• Repave residential streets 
• Increase tax base for neighborhood streets 

  

Votes: 
4 

DESIGN 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• Sidewalks and bike routes 
• Design standards 
• More people outside walking around = more safety 
• Prioritize non-auto-centric transportation in plans 
• Street / sidewalk design standards 
• Pedestrian focused street design 
• Build walkability into plans 

  

Votes: 
4 

MAINTENANCE 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• Regular preventative maintenance 

  

Votes: 
2 

LIGHTING 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• Increase lighting 
• Light through-way streets 
• Street lighting 
• Lighting on streets 



  

 
13 

  

Votes: 
2 

FACILITIES 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• New police (and fire) station 
• Update facilities 
• Facilities (Police/Fire department & Wright Point) 
• Work toward a community center facility 

  

Votes: 
0 

SMART CITY 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• City-wide Wi-Fi 
• Social media 
• Website 

 

❸ 
PUBLIC SAFETY 
STRATEGIC FOCUS AREA  
FOR THE CITY OF RIVERSIDE, OHIO 

 

Twenty-two (22) potential key project/initiative ideas were generated by workshop participants under 
the strategic focus area of Public Safety. WBI made no attempt to deduplicate Council Member 
submissions for this report.  

Four clusters of activity emerged in association with the ideas generated and represented the sub-
categories in which City Council Members cast their votes to prioritize those of highest importance. The 
four sub-categories of activity under Public Safety were: 

i. Staffing 
ii. Community 

iii. Accountability 
iv. Mental Health 

The highest number of votes cast by Council Members were attributable to projects/initiatives aligned 
with the sub-category of Staffing. The following depicts the ideas and/or statements submitted by 
workshop participants via “sticky notes” during the workshop exercise and the corresponding number of 
votes cast for each sub-category cluster of potential projects/initiatives the city should consider 
pursuing over the next three-to-five-years:   

 



  

 
14 

Votes: 
9 

STAFFING 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• Additional police 
• Increase staffing 
• Full time fire department 
• All full-time fire department 
• Larger police department 
• Staffing based on call volume 
• Recruitment 

  

Votes: 
4 

COMMUNITY 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• Community relationship focus 
• Community engagement 
• Open house 
• Trust in police 
• Increase public education 
• Reactive health and safety commission 

  

Votes: 
3 

ACCOUNTABILITY 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• Up-to-date technology 
• Measure safety outcomes 
• How we collect date for change 
• Set goals and stretch goals for police department 
• Proactivity (speeding, parking, patrol....) 
• Accreditation 
• Create plan for addressing hate crimes 
• Improve accountability for violent crimes/bullying 

  

Votes: 
2 

MENTAL HEALTH 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• Mental health focus 

 

❹ 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
STRATEGIC FOCUS AREA  
FOR THE CITY OF RIVERSIDE, OHIO 

 



  

 
15 

Twenty-seven (27) potential key project/initiative ideas were generated by workshop participants under 
the strategic focus area of Economic Development. WBI made no attempt to deduplicate Council 
Member submissions for this report.  

Five clusters of activity emerged in association with the ideas generated and represented the sub-
categories in which City Council Members cast their votes to prioritize those of highest importance. The 
five sub-categories of activity under Economic Development were: 

i. Zoning (ordinances / codes) 
ii. Staffing 

iii. Partnerships 
iv. Land Use 
v. Quality Development 

The highest number of votes cast by Council Members were attributable to projects/initiatives aligned 
with the sub-category of Zoning. The following depicts the ideas and/or statements submitted by 
workshop participants via “sticky notes” during the workshop exercise and the corresponding number of 
votes cast for each sub-category cluster of potential projects/initiatives the city should consider 
pursuing over the next three-to-five-years:   

Votes: 
5 

ZONING (ORDANCES / CODES) 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• Update zoning from land use plan 
• Zoning overhaul 
• Change codes to help development of city 
• Consistency in UDO 
• UDO rewrite 

  

Votes: 
4 

STAFFING 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• Defined resources 
• Dedicated staff positions 
• Right person in charge 
• Focus on code enforcement 
• Move attention to compliance of already in place zoning requirements 

  

Votes: 
4 

PARTNERSHIPS 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• Community improvement corp. 
• Network with developer 
• External partnerships 
• Regional partnerships 



  

 
16 

  

Votes: 
4 

LAND USE 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• Land use 
• Decrease lot/parking size requirements to increase growth 
• Focus development on “zones” identified in land use plan 
• City center “concept” 
• Legislative policies 

  

Votes: 
1 

QUALITY DEVELOPMENT 
Potential projects and/or initiatives identified for this cluster: 

• Positive business climate 
• Increase density / productivity 
• Need roof tops to brin in more tax base 
• Utilize green space available 
• Restaurants / shopping 
• Sell/package/develop city owned property 
• Housing 
• Food truck park in center of flight 

 

  



  

 
17 

Strategic Priority Action Items 

After identifying the four strategic areas of focus for the city and prioritizing sub-categories of potential 
key projects/initiatives under each that the city might pursue, Council Members then participated in a 
workshop exercise designed to solicit their ideas on what might constitute action items that the city 
could conduct in an effort to move forward on the top vote-getting sub-categories. The following 
material is an outcome of the effort. 

 

❶ 
GOVERNANCE 
STRATEGIC FOCUS AREA  
FOR THE CITY OF RIVERSIDE, OHIO 

 

KEY PROJECT/INITIATIVE ACTION ITEMS  
FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY 
• Pass levy (open checkbook) 
• Debt policy 
• Build a safe fund balance 
• Sell Wright Point buildings or turn over to CIC 
• Use CIP to limit capital spending 
• Establish debt reduction goal 
• Report annually on city’s position 
• Have the conversation before the vote 
• Understand future gains or losses that affect the city 
• Pass road levy 
• Storm water utility 
• Continue financial stewardship that Josh (City 

Manager) has enacted.  
• Pass a road levy 
• Pass & collect a stormwater utility fee 
• Conduct a class/compensation study (every 3-5 years) 
• Evaluate cost effectiveness of contracting out (HR, IT, 

Finance) 
• Increase public safety via property tax levy 
• Adopt a cost recovery policy 
• Avoid future staffing increases until specific financial 

criteria are met 
• Complete SSI implementation 

Potential projects/initiatives 
identified for Financial 
Sustainability:  
 

• Grant writing 
• Pass street levy 
• Debt / fund balance policy 
• Financial sustainability 
• Sustainable funding 

(projects) 
• Sustainable funding 
• Set goals for debt reduction 
• Debt reduction 
• How we sustain our police & 

fire departments 
• Maximize outside funding 
• Maximize partner resources 

 



  

 
18 

❷ 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
STRATEGIC FOCUS AREA  
FOR THE CITY OF RIVERSIDE, OHIO 

 

KEY PROJECT/INITIATIVE ACTION ITEMS  
ROADS 

• Pass levy 
• Design standards 
• Preventative maintenance 
• Repaving plan continuance 
• Increase staffing 
• Build community trust to a point that a road levy is 

viable 
• Create better design 
• Determine percent (not number of roads) of how 

much to spend each year 
• Revisit/revive repaving plan 
• Keep (repaving plan) up to date and ready to 

implement 
• Update PCI scores for all roads 
• Calculate 5 to 10-year CPI costs including all design 

elements for residential roads 
• Establish a minimum fund balance for capital 

infrastructure projects (roads, facilities, fleet) 
• Engage/collaborate with community to reach a 

supported position for funding residential roads 
• Increase maintenance budget for areas that are 

important for economic development 
• Include non-auto-centric transportation in all road 

projects or plans 

Potential projects/initiatives 
identified for Roads:  
 

• Better roads 
• Repave residential streets 
• Increase tax base for 

neighborhood streets 

 

 

 



  

 
19 

❸ 
PUBLIC SAFETY 
STRATEGIC FOCUS AREA  
FOR THE CITY OF RIVERSIDE, OHIO 

 

KEY PROJECT/INITIATIVE ACTION ITEMS  
STAFFING 

• Conduct a staffing analysis for police 
• Conduct a staffing analysis for fire 
• Develop a strategy / policy for diversifying recruitment 
• Determine data to dictate policy 
• Develop staffing index 
• MOU rework (leave policy, benefits) 
• Add 1-2 police officers per year; Add 2-3 full time fire 

fighters until reach demand analysis 
• Leverage all outside sources of funding and grant 

dollars to add public safety staff 
• Identify goals that we are targeting with additional 

hiring 
• Prioritize hiring when goals are needing addressed  

Potential projects/initiatives 
identified for Public Safety Staffing:  
 

• Additional police 
• Increase staffing 
• Full time fire department 
• All full-time fire department 
• Larger police department 
• Staffing based on call 

volume 
• Recruitment 

 

❹ 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
STRATEGIC FOCUS AREA  
FOR THE CITY OF RIVERSIDE, OHIO 

 

KEY PROJECT/INITIATIVE ACTION ITEMS  
ZONING 

• Reduce / eliminate backlog of code cases 
• Leverage code to abate frequent offenders more often 
• Assign code enforcement responsibilities to the 

Comm. Dev. Spec. 
• Rewrite UDO based on land use plan 
• Create dedicated budget capacity for significant 

abatements/demolitions 
• Create a CIC 
• New zoning code 
• Urban 3 analysis 

Potential projects/initiatives 
identified for Zoning:  
 

• Update zoning from land 
use plan 

• Zoning overhaul 
• Change codes to help 

development of city 
• Consistency in UDO 
• UDO rewrite 



  

 
20 

Summary and 
Recommendations 

As an outcome of the strategic planning workshops, City Council Members reached consensus on 
identifying four key strategic priority focus areas in which to frame their longer-term policy and 
decision-making practices:  

I. Governance 
II. Infrastructure 

III. Public Safety 
IV. Economic Development 

Multiple potential projects and key initiatives were identified and prioritized by Council Members under 
each of the four focus areas noted above. These initial efforts lay the groundwork for future 
conversations and work products to be developed as the city pursues fully developing its three-to-five-
year strategic plan and subsequent annual work plans.  

As Council Members continue to think about the future possibilities for the community of Riverside, WBI 
encourages the group to further its work on clarifying the city’s mission, vision, and strategic focus areas 
and priorities, translating those into well-articulated statements of intent and direction that can lead to 
measurable outcomes. This work, conducted in parallel with other efforts currently being performed, 
such as the city’s land use plan, can on whole lead to significant future improvements and opportunities 
for the city.  

Riverside City Council’s participation in strategic planning was an important milestone in the city’s 
expressed interest and renewed focus on long-term strategic thinking, planning, and management. The 
time, thought, and effort invested by all participants opened new channels of communication and 
understanding among City Council Members and established a foundation for continued collaboration 
that will allow them to go well beyond normal meeting-to-meeting, tactical decision-making routines.  

 

 



 
CITY MANAGER 

PREVIOUS 

UPDATES 



 
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 

 

MEMORANDUM  
TO:  Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers  

FROM:   Josh Rauch, City Manager 

DATE:   February 17, 2023 

SUBJECT:  Weekend Update 

CC:   Department Directors, City Clerk, Law Director 

City Manager’s Office 
• This week I attended an open house event hosted by United Rehabilitation Services to learn 

more about their operations and services.  

• I also attended a meeting of the Wright-Patterson Regional Council of Governments. We 

received a data request related to the base land use planning efforts and will be responding to 

that request in the coming weeks. 

• We have re-posted the Finance Administrator position here: 

https://www.riversideoh.gov/government/careers/#1676481443733-f158d776-40ff. Interested 

applicants are encouraged to reach out to me directly.  

• A reminder that City offices are closed Monday, February 20th, in observance of President’s Day.  

Administration 
• Employee Health and Wellness - Admin staff is meeting with the McGohan Brabender health 

and wellness rep next week to plan for introducing the health and wellness which is newly 

available to employees after joining the Ohio Benefits Cooperative. The health and wellness 

program is expected to be launched in March with two information sessions for employees.  

Community Development Department 
• Staff attended the Planning Commission February 15th and provided updates on Water 

Protection and UDO code revisions. Planning Commission discussed Council’s motion to 
consider changes to existing codes regarding urban agriculture. Those discussions are tentatively 
scheduled to occur later this year (April/May) to allow currently scheduled work to move 
forward to Council. 

• Staff met with representatives of 4405 Byesville to discuss cleanup efforts at that property and 
develop a plan to bring the site into compliance. 

• Staff attended the Montgomery County Environmental Crimes Task Force meeting this week. 

Finance Department 
• The second round of AP checks proceeded with minimal issues. 

• Additional minor improvements in the PO process have been identified and implemented. 

https://www.riversideoh.gov/government/careers/#1676481443733-f158d776-40ff


 
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 

 

Fire Department 
• Staff are preparing a resolution for Council regarding a replacement medic.  

Police Department 
• We do have 2 new officers currently in the Field Training Program. They are in different phases, 

but both appear to be doing well. 

• We do have an opening for Police Officer, and we are in beginning stages of starting the process 
to fill that position. We currently have 12 applicants in the process, however we are resending 
out recruitment efforts that hopefully will boost the numbers. 

• We are continuing to work with the Flock camera to set up the location placements for our 
cameras. But we are also waiting to get the check in hand before we get too aggressive with 
setup. The check should be here next week from what we have been told. 

• We are continuing to work with Enterprise to get our cruisers ordered. Still looking at the upfit 
to make sure we are getting the best price and the best service after the purchase.  

• We have Upfit quotes from KE Rose and we are waiting on PNR. PNR contacted us today to 
confirm the upfit package and stated they should have that quote to us on Tuesday 2/21/2023. 

• Police Lobby will be closed on Monday 2/20/2023 for Presidents Day. Administrative staff will be 
off. 

Public Service Department 
• Engineering/Administration: 

o Attended FHWA webinar on strategies to improve aging infrastructure and spur 
economic development 

o Invited by the Base and attended webinar on Defense Community Infrastructure 
Program 

o Reviewed the Woodman/Eastman intersection Safety Study 
o Sent out letters notifying residents of the upcoming Spinning Road Phase 2 project as 

required by ODOT. 
o Notified selected General Engineering consultant as well as those who did not get the 

contract 
o Finalized order for new pickup 

• Projects: 
o Kroger signal installation is proceeding, pole locations have been approved. 
o Paint striping quantities are submitted to MVCC for the 2023 bid. 
o Kevin attended the pre-con meeting for 35 & Woodman interchange. 
o Met with Golden touch landscaping about curb & drive aprons insulation. 
o Met with Tree Care Inc. about tree work across from Kroger  
o Updated Cemetery Registry with Department of Commerce. 
o Checked on multiple resident complaints. 
o Working  on getting vac-truck quotes. 
o Community Park play structure is scheduled for delivery 2/27/23. 

• Crews: 
o Applied 8+ tons of asphalt to patch citizen complaints and we started south working 

north plat by plat 



 
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 

 

o Completed the reconditioning of the highway bat wing mower after receiving ordered 
parts 

o Fabricating of the van to be our “sign truck” is ongoing 
o More clean up at the sign shop completed this week 
o Made another soil repair in the median in front of Kroger 
o Replaced the top 2 broken concrete steps in front of the Police Dept entrance 
o Got the welding machine serviced 
o Installed a drain pipe at the back of Eintracht to alleviate flooding between the driveway 

and building 
o Cleaned parks at beginning and end of the week 
o Routine sign and litter maintenance completed throughout the city 



 
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 

 

MEMORANDUM  
TO:  Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers  

FROM:   Josh Rauch, City Manager 

DATE:   February 24, 2023 

SUBJECT:  Weekend Update 

CC:   Department Directors, City Clerk, Law Director 

City Manager’s Office 
• This week I had some desk time to wrap up calculations and estimates related to the 

stormwater utility fee. I’ll do another round of internal validation and am planning on updating 

Council at the April work session.  

• I had a good conversation with SSI about the capabilities and partnerships of their utility billing 

system, and am awaiting revised quotes and some clarification on how we can leverage the 

system/third parties to mail bills. 

• Preliminary findings regarding elected official salaries have been distributed to Council for 

review. I’ll provide some commentary and an update at the March 2nd meeting. 

• Last November, I was elected Vice-President of the Dayton Area Managers Association (DAMA). 

We held our first lunch event today in West Carrollton. Representatives from Woodard 

Development and Dillin LLC spoke about creating a sense of place in West Carrollton along the 

riverfront. What West Carrollton is doing has strong similarities to what we’re trying to do in the 

Springfield St. corridor. I’ll be following up to learn more about their process in the coming 

months. 

Administration 
• Server Replacement- The delivery of two new servers is scheduled for mid-March. Once they 

are received, the hardware will be pre-configured for an anticipated replacement of existing 

servers in late March or early April.  

• Discrimination and Harassment Prevention Training- All staff are scheduled to attend 

discrimination and harassment prevention training during the week of Feb. 27th. Those unable 

to attend will complete the training via a recording.  

• Employee Wellness Introduction Meeting- An introduction and informational meeting for 

employees will be held on March 9th. The meeting will launch the employee wellness program 

which is newly available as a member of the Ohio Benefits Cooperative. 

Community Development Department 
• There will be two cases on the BZA agenda. The staff reports and other documents are online.  

https://www.riversideoh.gov/government/boards-and-commissions/planning-zoning-documents/


 
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 

 

• Lane has begun to reach out to other communities in the region to research urban 
agriculture/chicken regulations.  

• Cases: 114 YTD, 342 Currently Open, 21 Closed This Week, 20 New This Week 

o The U-Hauls and associated signage have been removed from 4835 Airway Road, Star 1 
Auto.  

o A letter outlining what remains at 4505 Byesville to achieve compliance went out this 
week. 

o All case research was completed for Nia to generate the Nuisance by Use AND by 
Condition for 4540 Fair Park and that notice was posted to the front door as well as sent 
via USPS. 

o Had multiple commercial vehicles in residential areas as well as Airway Shopping Center 

again. 

o Staff sent a NOV regarding the lighting and required county permits at 602 Woodman 
Drive.  

Finance Department 
• We’ve received two applications for the Finance Administrator position.  

• The position will remain posted until March 1. 

Fire Department 
• Crews are training for the annual EMS protocol recertification 

• Met with Horton Ambulance to finalize specs for medic build. Estimated deliver is still July. 

• I attended a State Department of EMS update on changes in state laws effecting firefighter and 
EMS certifications..  

Police Department 
• We are currently working on presentations for St Helens and East Dayton Christian Schools on 

internet safety, tween safety for apps and social platforms.   

• Phase I training with Montgomery County (CPR, Domestic Violence, and Taser training) has 
continued.  

• Officer Stamper went to first line supervisor training and have plans for Officer Vendetti and 
Officer Brookshire in May.   

• Our two new hire will be going to their seconds phases in the next week.   

• Detectives have worked leads to get the names of the suspects involved in the laundry-mat 
break in. 

• We are waiting on the OVI Taskforce Grant to be signed so we can assist in the upcoming ST 
Paddys day checkpoint.   

• Officer Wargo assisted in the GTA Taskforce and assisted in catching a homicide suspect in a 
murder that occurred. 

Public Service Department 
Engineering/Administration: 



 
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 

 

• The Woodman/Eastman intersection Highway Safety Improvement Grant Application was 
submitted to ODOT for review 

• Attended FHWA Value Capture, Innovative Finance & Project Bundling  2-hour webinar 

• Reviewed Taco John site plan 

• Reviewed crosswalk on Spaulding in response to citizen complaint 

• Attended meeting with Community Development and Board of Health on Campion Property 
 
Projects: 

• Kroger lighting foundations have been set/poured waiting for pole installation. 

• Tree line on east side of Woodman has been cut/removed for signal light installation. 

• Permissive tax application for crack sealing Valley Street and Harshman/Woodman has been 
submitted to Montgomery County for approval. 

• Eastman and Woodman Intersection lost its power feed, temporary power supply being used to 
run intersection lighting. 

• Working with AES & Mad River Schools for an easement to provide power to Eastman & 
Woodman intersection. 

• Community park play structure installation will begin Monday the 27th weather permitting. 

• Monitoring installation of fiber optic cable in the Valley View plat. 

• Maintenance of traffic sign installation and roadway saw cutting has started on the Woodman & 
Rt 35 project. 

 
Crews: 

• Verified that the new park mower will work on our tractor without further attachments or 
revisions: setup is complete 

• Began asphalt/drain repair in the Police Department parking lot 

• Inspected City’s drains for obstructions and other flood causing issues 

• 5.5 tons of asphalt applied to patch potholes 

• Completed modifications to the Van to make it a sign truck replacing an old medic 

• Picked up and installed multiple damaged or missing street signs; made repairs to other traffic 
signs 

• Picked up litter and dead animals from roadways 

• Cleaned parks at beginning and end of the week 
 


	23-O-821 Exhibit A - HealthSafety.pdf
	CHAPTER 131 - PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMISSION
	131.01 - Creation and membership.
	131.02 - Organization.
	131.03 - Purpose.
	131.04 - Powers and duties.




